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Delivering results

e continued progress towards higher
standards and greater efficiency

e outperformed against Ofwat 2007/08
determination for operating costs

e outperformed against Ofwat 2007/08
leakage target

® legacy issues neanng final resolution
group PBIT* £469 5 million up 15 8%

® dividends to increase by 3% above
inflation to 2010

*before exceptional tems

Group turnover £m

Group profit* £m

2008 15524

2007 1,480.2

+4.9%

2008 2922

2520

+16.0%

2007

* hefore tax, exceplional ilems and gans/losses on financial
instruments (see income staternent}

Group profit before tax £m

Earnings per share* pence

2008 192 4

2007 3255

-40.9%

2008 978

2007 824

* from continuing operations befare excepbonal items, ga:ns/
losses on financial nstruments and deferred tax (see note 16) + . o

final dividend pence

Total shareholder return

2008 41 29

2007 38.68

+6.7%
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What we do

At Severn Trent Plc, we are focused on water
We are the second biggest water company
in the FTSE 100, with two complementary
businesses Severn Trent Water and Water
Technologies and Services (branded as
Severn Trent Services)

Our industry

The water industry in England and Wales

Coverage

Severn Trent Water's region
stretches from mid Wales to
Rutland and from the Bnstol

Channel to the Humber We dehver

nearly 2 bilion htres of water

a day to homes and businesses
through 46,000 km of pipes

A further 54,000 km of sewers
take waste water away to over
1,000 sewage works
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We provide drinking water to 7 4 million people
and sewerage services to 8 5 million people
across the Midlands and mid Wales We also
provide water and waste water solutions to an
Increasing number of utilities and corporate
chents around the world

The regulatory framework

OQur prices

Every five years, Ofwat, our economic regulator, sets annual price imits
for each water company Qur current price limits were set in 2004 for

the penod 2005-2010 (the AMP4 penod) Our new price mits for the
period 2010Q-2015 {the AMPS pertod) will be set in late 2009

Qur performance

Each water company has to submit an annual return (the June Return)
to Oiwat covenng its activities This is the pnimary source of regulatcry
informatron and enables Ofwat to monitor and compare the
performance of the companies

Our vision for the future

In 2007, each water company was required by Ofwat to produce a 25
year Strategic Direction Statement for the years 2010-2035 This forms
the key foundation for the long term direction and development of the
compames A summary of the key pants i the report can be found

on pages 8 and 9 A complete copy can be found by visiting

www stwater co uk/focusonwater

Water quality in England and Wales 1s regulated by the Drinking Water
Inspectorate Water abstraction, river pollution and flooding 1s regulated
by the Environment Agency




Water and Sewerage

Turnover

£1,279.2m
82%

of group turnover

5,696 employees

*betore elimination of intra group sales

Severn Trent Water provides high quality water and sewerage services
to over 3 7 million households and businesses i the Midlands and
migd Wates

Key strengths

amongst the lowest bills for customers in the industry

dnnking water and waste water quality above industry average
focused management team with clear strategy

streamlined business measuring aganst 20 Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)

commitment to long term responsible stewardship of the business,
to the envirocnment, customers and the commuruties in which we
live and work

To find out more, visit www stwater co uk

Water Technologies and Services

Turnover

£297.3m’
19%

of group turnover

2,985 employees

*hefore elimunation of intra group sales

Branded as Severn Trent Services, Water Technologies and Services is
one of the world's leading suppliers of water and waste water treatment
solutrons Headquartered in the US, & has a growing presence in
Europe, the Middle East and Asia The business has three main
divisions Water Punfication, Operating Services and Analytical Services

Key strengths

® renowned for quality, reliability and stability

® 2 leader in high growth, high margin markets such as disinfection,
filtration, arsenic removal and emerging ballast water treatment

@ continually innovating to develop advanced technologies

® astrong track record of growth and cost control

To find out more, visit www severntreniservices com
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Chairman’s statement

The right team to deliver

Sir John Egan
Chairman

| am pleased to report on a year of significant
progress In implementing Severn Trent’s
focus on water business strategy

Twelve months ago we took the unique step of publishing
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Severn Trent Water to
demonstrate our ongeing journey to raise standards through
continuous IMmprovernent

In this Annual Report | am able to present our performance
against the KPIs twelve months on, so that there 1s transparency
In our performance

Tony Wray, our Chief Executive, will outline in his review some of
our key achievements and where we need to strive much harder as
we continue to recover from the consequences of past management

We believe we can raise standards while reducing costs through the

implementation of better processes and innovation We are currently
very close to having the lowest bills 1n the UK The cost of all Severn

Trent water and waste activities 1s on average arcund 80p a day per

household, one of the iowest costs in our industry

Our plans for the next 25 years are set out in our Strategic Direction
Statement which 1s summarised on pages 8 and 9

In additton we will continue to grow Water Technologies and Services
(branded Severn Trent Services) internationally by operating at the
forefront of new technology as a leading supplier of water and waste
water treatment solutions

Group results

Overall Severn Trent has delwered a good performance in 2007/08,

with group profit fram continumg operations before tax, gains/losses
on financial instruments and exceptional items at £292 2 million,

an increase of 16% Group profit from continuing operations before

tax was £192 4 million (2007 £325 5 rmullion)

In line wrth our declared policy, the board Is proposing a final dividend
of 41 29p (38 68p) to be paid on 1 August 2008 This would give

a total dividend for the year of 65 63p per ordinary share, an increase
of 6 8%

Corporate responsibility
Corporate responsibility Is at the heart of the way we develop,
manage and operate Severn Trent for long term sustainable benefit

To thrs end, we are reviewing our corporate responsibility principles
and policies to make sure they are in line with our Strategic
Direction Statement
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For example, we are determined to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
by being more efficient in what we do and also by increasing renewable
energy generation

We have a target of generating 30% of our gross energy requirements
from renewable sources by 2012 and are working on longer term
targets to support our 25 year plan

We will be increasing our focus on water efficiency This involves
Improving our own efficient use of water It also involves engaging with
our custormers and the wider community to influence all our behaviours

Severn Trent continues to focus on the health and safety of employees
and contractors | firmly believe that improving safety behaviours of
our staff and all who work with us and our increasing focus on satety
process review to improve the engineering safety of our assets wilt
contribute to Severn Trent's overall performance

Legacy i1ssues

Last year | wrote that when | joined the Severn Trent Plc board and
becarne its Charrman n 2005 | did not know the full extent of the
challenges which my new board and incoming management team
were to uncever and the Immense commitment of time and energy
which would be needed to manage these 1ssues

| am now able to say we are finally close to resolving the legacy
1ssues and putting this organisation back into the positive position
our customers, regulators and employees deserve

We pleaded guilty to two offences relating to leakage data supplied
to Ofwat 1n 2001 and 2002 The sentencing hearing to determine
the amount of the fine started on 2 June 2008 and s scheduled to
resume on 1 July 2008 Once that 1s concluded, we will be able to
commence discussions with Ofwat concerning the resclution of their
interim report of March 2006 which may result in further amends
being made to customers

Our economuic regulator, Ofwat, has proposed fines of £35 8 million

for misreporting customer service data and failing to meet Guaranteed
Service Standards in 2005/06 We accept the principle of a financial
sanction but we have raised 1ssues 1n relation to the amounts and the
approach taken by Ofwat to determine them

We have already credited customers’ accounts and altered bills
appropriately for subsequent years to ensure we have not profited
In any way from these past misdeeds

There 1s no doubt that the previous regime and culture in place during
the era from 2000 to 2004 was overly bureaucratic and lacked
appropriate controls and procedures

Those who were responsible have long since left Severn Trent and we
who are responsible for resolving the legacy 1ssues have apologrsed

to our customers for their fallings A comprehensive root and branch
reorgarisation of Severn Trent Water has been undertaken by Tony Wray
and his management team

My board and management team has taken, and wiil continue to take,
all actons we think appropnate to ensure the maintenance of both high
ethical and professional standards and resilient and effective controls
throughout our organisation




Board, management and employees
Colin Matthews retired from the boards of Severn Trent Plc and Severn
Trent Water Ltd in 2007

I thank him for his outstanding contnbution to Severn Trent during a
period of substantial change His leadership in corporate restructuring
has been crucial in laying firm foundations on which we are now
building for Severn Trent's future success, by focusing on water

Tony Wray, Managing Director of Severn Trent Water Ltd since March
2005, replaced Colin on 2 October 2007 and 1s already demonstrating
the positive results of our focus on water strategy

At the same time, three directors were appointed as executive directors
of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Ltd, namely Tony Ballance
(Regulation and Competition), Martin Kane {Customer Relations) and
Andy Smith (Water Services)

These appointments reinforce the board's commitment to the
successful transformation of the group into a focused water company

John Smith stepped down as a non-executive director of Severn Trent
Plc and Severn Trent Water Ltd on 29 February 2008 and as Chairman
of the Audit Cornmuttee of Severn Trent Plc We thank him warmly for
his four years of service during a particularly intense period of the
company's history

At the same time, we announced the appointments of Baroness Noakes
DBE and Martin Lamb as independent non-executive directors te both
the boards of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Ltd Baroness
Noakes was also appointed Chairman of the Audit Commuttee of Severn
Trent Plc They both bring a formidable breadth of experience to Severn
Trent which 1s already proving invaluable

The board of Severn Trent Plc continually reviews its management plans
to ensure orderly succession and continuity of leadership

We have also carried out ngorous board effectiveness reviews with
the help of independent consultants which will generate a number
of actions to secure improvements to board performance

I would like to pay a special tnibute to our dedicated employees who
have steadfastly focused on implementing our strategy despite also
having to resclve and repair legacy 1ssues from the past

| would also like to thank Severn Trent Water employees far their
outstanding support during the floods last July and the commitment
and hard work to restore service to our customers as soon as possible

Outlook
The outlock for the coming year 1s one of continued iImprovement

In Severn Trent Water, our improverment plans are progressing well

We expect to incur around £24 millien of restructuring costs over the
remaining two years of the AMP4 period These restructuring costs will
help drive increases in standards and deliver efficiency savings in the
current AMP4 penod and beyond We expect that the achievement of
our plans will enable us to deliver around £30 million of cost efficiencies
over the last two years of the AMP4 penod, which represents around

3% annual out performance against the Ofwat determination for
operating costs in 2008/09 and 2009/10

Risks to the achievement of these objectives include the potential impact
of new, externally imposed requirements on the business, principally
the Tratfic Management Act, which became law in Apni! 2008, and
unforeseen variations (n commodity prices or unhedged energy costs
Our energy costs are hedged to 93% of estimated volume 1in 2008/09
and to 86% 1n 2005/10

We have a strong hquidity position and our capital programme 18
proceeding according to plan We continue to expect to deliver on our
regulatory commitments whilst achieving around 6% efficiency over
the AMP4 period Achieving this level of efficiency has allowed us to
consider further options to enhance long term value, support our
improvement plans and deliver greater efficiency The three key areas
we are focused on are

@ accelerating our renewable energy programme to deliver greater
operational efficiency, enhance our natural hedge to energy costs
and reduce our carbon footprint,

® to engage with our supply chain to develop an “early start”
contracting strategy and nvestment plan to deliver benefits
in the AMP5 investment programme, and

® nvestments in economically enhancing technology and locations,
principally the construction of the new Severn Trent Centre

Our decisions to invest In these areas to provide sustainable future
improvements in efficiency will be equivalent to the 6% capex efficiency

In Water Technoiogies and Services, the markets for all three areas
of activity remain strong We are working to an accelerated and
focused growth strategy, building on our brand recognition and
reputation, our strong market positions, our international scale
and our advanced technologies

At group level, we remain committed to achieving our stated target
of around 60% group net debt to Regulatory Capital Value At 31 March
2008, group net debt was 58 0% of RCV

Severn Trent 1s a high quality business whose investment programme
dnives strong growth prospects The management team has a clear and
focused strategy and 1s engaged in the single minded pursuit of higher
standards as the means to achieve both hegher fevels of customer
satisfaction, and also sustained strong financial returns to shareholders

Severn Trent 5
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Chief Executive’s review

Focus on operational improvement

Tony Wray
Chief Executive

A revitalised Severn Trent 1s better placed
to serve our customers, shareholders
and regulators.

Introduction

| believe that a rewitalised Severn Trent 1s emerging from a dsfficult and
challenging period better placed to satisfy our customers, regulators,
employees and shareholders

Severn Trent Water now has a simple and compelling vision We aim to
be the water and waste services company 1in the UK which achieves the
highest quality of customer service standards whilst offering our
customers the lowest prices with great people delivering the service
We also aim to continue to develop our complementary business of
Water Technologies and Services to enhance our leadership position
as a supplier of water and waste water solutions 10 key markets around
the world

Qur improvement plans at Severn Trent Water are designed to ensure
a virtuous circle of Investment, process iImprovement, customer
satisfaction and regulatory comphiance, thereby delivering lower costs
and sustainabte returns

We need sustainable profits to finance investment In approximate
terms, for every £2 we make In profit we are investing £3 back into
water and sewerage assets

The implementation of our strategy of focusing on water 1s already
showing demonstrable results and, with our 25 year Strategic Direction
Staternent, we have a vision for the future which we are sharing with
afl our key stakeholders Details of this can be found on pages 8 and 9

Here are some of our key aperational results and achievements in the
past 12 months at Severn Trent Water
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Operational performance

Customer service

In 2006/07, whiist we undertook the establishment of the correct
measures and standards for service in our Customer Relations
operation, we were the poorest performer (n the mdustry and were
cnticised by Ofwat, our économic regulator, and the Consumer Council
for Water In 2007/08 we have re-engineered the processes, improved
our telephony infrastructure, trained our staff and are now delivering
levels of service that are rachcally improved Our reported and assessed
service for 2007/08 15 now back in line with other compames,
demonstrating a clear recaovery and imprevement. The mavernent In
KPl 4 {customer written complaints) shown an page 14 demonstrates
the results of the improvements we have made

Leakage

We have outperformed our Ofwat target for 2007/08 having failed
to meet this measure for the previous two years We have introduced
improvements in measurement and detection, speed of response,
resource allocation and targeting the replacement of cur network
More information about our leakage KPlcan be found on page 16

Controlling our costs

For the first two years of our regulatory contract (2005706 and
2006/07), we faled to get down to the spending level assumed by
Ofwat as we struggled with higher energy prices and inefficient
processes For 2007/08 we have delivered an operating cost outturn
shghtly better than the level assurmed by Ofwat in their final
determination of price mits in 2004 improvements to the supply
chain process for energy purchase have been established, enabling
a significant proportion of future energy demand to be hedged at
or ¢lose to the Ofwat final determination level for the last two years
of the AMP4 period

Environmental performance

In 2006/07, despite having a leading position when judged by size

of papulation, in absolute terms we had an above average number

of total poliution incidents, arcund %30 In 2007708 we have delivered
an action plan to improve the process of preventative maintenance
{targeted sewer cleansing) and speed of response We have reduced
the total number of incidents to around 417, which are recorded in the
Environment Agency's report to Ofwat This downward trend continues

Simphfying our management structures

We inherited a bureaucratic and unwieldy structure with costly
duplication between Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water, with
two boards and two executive teams

We committed to the creatien of a single executive team, establishment
of single support functions and the consequent reduction in corporate
overhead costs We have implemented the structueral and orgamisational
changes and have delivered £14 million cost reduction for 2007/08




Last year, we identified £24 milbon of restructuring costs 1o be incurred
In the remaining three years of AMP4 in orcer {0 raise standards and
improve efficiency We alsc highhighted that we expected staffing levels
to reduce (permanent and agency) in Severn Trent Water by around
600 posts over a five year pertod

In 2007/08 we expected to incur £8 milhon of restructuring costs, to
ehiminate 130 posts and to meet the Ofwat determination for operating
costs During 2007/08 we have actually invested £13 9 milhon
(classified as exceptional operating costs) This investment has delivered
sustainable improvements in 2007/08, with operating costs around

1% lower than that assumed in the Final Determination and 150 posts
being eliminated from the orgamsation Notwithstanding the progress
made to date, we continue to develop our plans to optimise the
performance of the company and sustain the improvements in the
longer term These plans are now focused on three broad areas

@ process improvements,

® the technology and systems that support these processes, and

® the location, training and development of aur people to operate
in this new enwironment

These improvement plans are integrated into our business plan, are
the basis of our future improvements in effective and efficient operation
and will form a major part of the company's draft business plan to be
submitted to Ofwat in August 2008 Over the next two years, we now
expect to incur exceptional restructuring costs of around £24 millicn
These costs represent the continuing implementation of our
improvernent plans that extend beyond the end of the current AMP
penod as we continue to deliver against our objective of raising
standards and improving efficiency As described In the Chairman's
outlook statement, we remain on track to deliver around 3% annual
cutperformance against the Cfwat determination for operating costs
tn 2008/09 and 2009/10

Creation of process aligned orgamsation

In 2007/08 we dismantled the previous operating model of Asset
Management, Engineenng, Operations and Customer Relations and
created an organisation based around the key aligned processes of
Water, Waste Water and Customer Relations Throughout 2007/08
we selected and appointed new teams in every part of our business
In addition, we have created alignment around our KPIs

Health and safety

| firmly believe that a successful organisaticn must be a safe one | talk
personally to everyone in Severn Trent Water who has a lost time injury
to reinforce further the importance of prevention and learming

In 2007/08, our group performance on our health and safety KPI

of Lost Time Incidenis {LT1) per 100,000 hours worked was 0 58,
compared with 0 55 in 2006/07 Both 2006/07 and 2007/08 LTI rates
have been restated to include road traffic accidents Although the figure
for the year overalt has not come down, in the [ast few months of
2007/08 we did achieve reductions Throughout 2007/08 we continued
to reduce the number of Lost Time Days

We remain comrmited to improving this performance for the benefit
of all our employees and for those who work with Severn Trent

Unplanned interruptions

Qur KP1 s based on Ofwat’s OG3 measure With regret, we report a
detenoration in performance against this measure in 2007/08 and we
fully recognise that this 1s unacceptable to our customers and regulator
and commit to delivering improverments in 2008/09 Details of this KPI
can be found on page 14

Sewer flooding

Due to a challenging first few months of 2007/08, we had significantly
more incidents of sewer flooding, resulting in us failling to iImprove our
KPI performance However, there were improvements from August
onwards which will position us better to deliver improved results over
the next year Details of this KPlcan be found on page 15

Floods

July’s unprecedented raintfall, record river levels and the sheer seventy
of the resulting flooding forced us to shut The Mythe Water Treatment
Works in Tewkesbury on 22 July 2007 in crder to protect the works,
causing 138,000 homes to lose their mains water supply

QOur custormers and employees responded magnificently, as did our
suppliers, local authorities, other water companies, the emergency
services and armed forces, as well as the community of Gloucestershire

We are already taking steps to make our plarts and networks more
resilient against the growing pressures that cimate change and growth
will put on thern We have also overhauled our emergency and
contingency plans, learning from the events of 2007

In addition, we established a £3 5 million recovery fund for
Gloucestershire, working with local authonties and voluntary
organisations to make sure the money went where It was needed most

Water Technologies and Services (branded as

Severn Trent Services)

Throughout 2007/08 we have achieved underlying top line and
bottom line growth and maintained a good return on invested capital

Qur strategy 1s clear We will continue to

® nvest In the geographic expansion of our products and services,

® expand the scope of our operating services in both our home
countries and other interrelated markets,

® focus on and invest in product and operational enhancements
to improve our effectiveness and efficiency,

@ develop and invest In new technologies at the forefront of water
and wastewater solutions

Our future direction

Severn Trent 1s a revitahised group with a clear strategy to focus on
water We are driving for hagher standards and continuing rmprovement
in performance We are making progress but we still have much to do
Our direction Is clear and we have the comrmitment of our board,
management and, above all, our staH to achueve our goals
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Our strategy

Focusing on continuous improvement

The right team
aligned with process

Strategic Direction
Statement

In delivering our strategic focus on water,
we have three connected touch points
highest standards, lowest charges and
great people This i1s at the heart of our
commitment to continuous iImprovement

When you drive for highest standards, you

find more efficient, effective and safer ways

of working This helps reduce operating costs,
which feeds through to keeping tariffs as low
as we possibly can for our customers And

of course to do all this you need a skilled set of
people - hence our belief in and backing of our
great people
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continuous
Improvement

Water
Waste water
Customer relations

Strategic Direction Statement

The Strategic Direction Statement 1s the result of a very thorough
process of engagement with all our stakehotders, including custormers,
customers' representatives, employees, environmental groups, investors
and local authonties It 1s a living document, which will be refined in
response to changing times

In summary, the eight Key Strategic Intentions (KSIs) we 1dentified are

Providing a continuous supply of quality water
We are commmitted to ensuring a safe, reliable, supply of drinking water,
which 15 the top prionty of cur customers

We need to ensure that there 1s encugh available, getting the right
balance between water storage and abstraction, reducing leakage and
reducing demand and balancing these with environmental pressures

Responding to customers’ needs

QOur customers expect to see and experience higher standards of
customer service The benetits of satisfying their expectation extend

to both customers and the company itself As an example, improving
the quality of our bill reminders or notices about pfanring Interruptions
to supply will reduce the need for customers to contact us, and make

it easter to offer a high speed of response and standard of service to
those customers who do need and want to contact us

Having the lowest possible charges

Our customers want us to make significant but affordable improvements
In services Increases (n bills in recent years have raised concerns about
the ability of low income customers to pay their water bills So over and
above the way we do business, we will continue to develop payment
options to help the most needy and teast able to pay

We are continuing on our journey to change the culture of our

organisatien, improving efficiency and uitimately improving the
standards that we set for curselves and the service we provide

to our customers




Having our business reorganised and streamlined around the three
key processes of water, waste water and customer service has, as
intended, enabled us to drive the improvements against our KPls
outlined on the following pages

The cost of all water and waste water activities for every household
1n our region today 1s on average around 80p a day, one of the lowest
costs in our industry

Dealing effectively with waste water

Our customers should have confidence that we will take away their
waste and treat it to the highest environmental standards before
returming it to our region’s rivers And new higher standards will drive
further new investment increasing our costs

The population s growing To meet this additional demand we will need
to ensure that treatment works capacity for both water and sewerage
can be planned and timed to provide services for new residents

In the 21st century, customers justifiably expect that homes should not
be flooded by sewers overflowing It 1s not acceptable, and we will invest
to reduce the risk of that happening We already work hard to avoid
serious pollution incidents and meet environmental standards for
discharges to rivers

Minimising our carbon footprint

We are an industry leader tn terms of mmmimising our carbon footprint
by generating renewable electricity, and we intend to maintain that
posihion We are already the biggest generator of green, renewable
energy tn aur sector Most of our production i1s used on the host site
with the remainder exported to the gnd The total electricity produced
15 equal to 17% of the total energy we consume

We believe we can mamntain a leading position in sustainable operations
but, as always, In doing so we will not compromise standards or
increase bills beyond levels which customers are willing to pay

Having the nght skills to deliver
If we are to deliver the service improvements we are aiming for, we need
to have the right people and resources available to us That means

attracting and, critically, retaining the right skills among our employees
and suppliers We must also play a leading role in the communities In
which we live and work, helping our customers understand what we do,
why, and how we can all assist n managing water resources

Maintaining investor confidence

The water industry I1s a long term undertaking, and that means
continuing to provide stable returns for investors and hmiting the extent
of the future capital programme to that which can be financed without
excessive Increases in the cost of raising finance There will be a
continwing targe capital programme to be financed

The annual incorme provided by custorners has always been insufficient,
in itself, to finance the capital programme over the past 18 years, and
horrowing has Increased steadily This situation will continue and is
cntically dependent upon a stable and transparent regutatory
framework, 1t should guarantee a far and appropriate return to equity
and debt investors through a farr return on capital or, in regulatory
terms, the weighted average cost of capital (WACC)

in 2007, we won a Building Public Trust award for our measures
of success and the honesty with which we presented our situation

We are committed to continually review and reset our KPI targets
and expectations, in line with our Strategic Direction Statement

Promoting an effective regulatory regime

The regulatory regime has played a major role in developing increased
efficiency and service improverments over the last 18 years But nothing
1s set in stone, and we beheve that the UK framework should now
develop to respond to the new challenges facing the industry going
forward 1n particular to encourage innovation and long term sustainable
solutions

A full version of the Strategic Direchion Statement can be found at
www stwater co uk/focusonwater
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Key Performance Indicators

Delivering against our 20 KPls

Wey argn Objactive Basis Measure

Partormance
2007

2008 guaﬂlh 008

Employee Provide a safe working environment MAT 1 Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked? 059 061 Medglan
Develop a confident and productive werklorce QR 2 Employee motivation % 76% 77% Upper

Customer Provide a high quality product MAA 3 Water quality (rmean zonal compliance) %!* 9998% 9996%  Upper
Quality interaction with the customer MAT 4 Customer written complaints per 1,000 properties'® 1658 1090  tLower

MAT 5 Frrst ime call resolution for biliing %* B80% 85%  Upper

Provide a high standard of operational service MAT 6 Unplanned interruptions > & hours per 1 000 properhes’’ 1070 2186 Lower

NPR 7 Properties at nsk of low pressure per 1,000 properties®® 009 006 Upper

MAT 8 First irme job resolution %* 849, 85% Median

Development of 2 sustainable service QR 8 Performance against regulatory cbligations %* 26% 15% Median

Last year, we reported that we had examined key aspects of Severn
Trent Water’s performance and carned out a benchmarking exercise
against comparable companies in the water and sewerage sector, and
where applicable against companies with similar charactenistics in other
sectors This exercise was detalled and thorough We used a range of
publicly avallable and internally generated data to identify the
population that we should compare ourselves to This process involved
a number of judgements being exercised 1o ensure that we used
appropriately comparable data points for each measure

The resuit of this process was represented by our publication of our
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Throughout 2007/08, we have

been measuring ourseives against these KPIs and the benchmarks we
established 1n 2006/07 In 2007/08 we improved year on year In five
of our KPls, maintained high standards in seven, remaimned static in four
and deteriorated year on year in three At the end of 2007/08, we have
10 KPIs at upper quartile, seven at median and three at lower quartile
As we expected, progress 15 being made but there s still mare to de

KPI highlights

KPI 20
Leakage Ml/d

491

We have outperformed our leakage target
Page 16

KPI 5

for billing

This table sets cut our actual perfarrmance for the period under review
Based on the benchmarking exercise carned out last year, our
performance 1s shown 1n one of three categories of what we consider
to be either lower quartile, upper quartile or median {representing 2nd
and 3rd quartile) performance

For each indicator, we have set ourselves ambwhious objectives for the
coming years, and have action plans for achieving them Our plans are
lang term, going beyond the current AMP4 period

It would be unrealistic for any company to be at the top of every
single league table but, nevertheless, we are aiming to achieve upper
quartile performance over the next three to five years Of course, the
goalposts will move, as companies In our sector or elsewhere redefine
what upper quartile means, so we expect our objectives to move with 1t
We intend to update our benchmarks during 2008/09 (and annually
thereafter) te allow us to report against these benchmarks in future
results announcements

First time call resolution

35%

We have invested heavily in our billing
call handling service and improved on our

KPI to resalve customer calls first time

Page 14
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Kay area Objective Basis

Measurs

Mansure

A Cuartita 2008

Financial Assel base enhancement ATD 10 Capex (gross) vs final determination % 27% m
MAT 11 Capuital process quality (no defects per 100k)* N/A 003 Upper

Manage trade debt 12 Debtor days**® 375 374 Median

Management of cost base MAT 13 Opex vs final determination (UK GAAP) £m™® 4791 4809 Median

MAT 14 Cost to serve per property £" 22693 23682 Median

Environment  Mirimise environmental impact MAT 15 Pollution incidents (cat 1, 2 and 3) per 1,000 properties*'? 0t4 011 Upper
MAT 16 Sewer flooding in¢idents - other causes™ 017 0z1 Lower

PPS 17 Sewage treatrnent works - breach of consents %! 000% 000% Upper

Optimuse use of resources MAA 18 Raw water storage %% 90% 929, Upper

MAT 19 Net energy use - kWh/Mi¢ 618 608 Median

MLE 20 Leakage Ml/gHH 524 491 Upper

Notes

All measures are for the peniod to 31 March 2008 except as stated
MAT =Moeving Annual Tatal

QR =Quartetly Review

MAA = Moving Annual Average

NPR =Number of properties on register

MLE =Maximum Likelihood Estimate

PP5 =Percentage of population served

ATD =AMP4 (Asset Management Peniod) to date

1 As reported in June Return to Ofwal. Performance figures are provisional at this
slage as the June Return will be submitted to Cfwat on 13 June 2008

Actual performance across all employees and agency stati 2007 performance
restated to include road traific accidents

Performance based on quarterly survey of 10% of permanent employees
Measure for calendar year to 31 December 2007

Performance excludes properttes billed by other water companies.

Actual performance based on internal data

~n

owew

KPI 15
Pollution incidents

0.11

We have reduced our poliution incidents
to 417 in 2007 from 530 1n 2006
Page 15

KPI 13

Page 13

2007 perfarmance restated to include the impact of unplanned interruptions over
6 12 and 24 hours. 2008 performance excludes impact of Summer 2007 flooding
2008 performance s 184 5 impact of Summer 2007 flooding included

Measure as at 31 March 2008.

2008 performance excludes impact of new pressure loggers installed in 2007/08
Including pressure loggers, 2008 performance 15 0 455

Actual performance based on audited UK GAAP financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2008

Actual performance based on audited regulatory accounts for the year ended

31 March 2008

Restated to reflect all Environment Agency types of category 1, 2 and 3

pollution incidents

2007 restated to reflect numbers of incidents as opposed o number

of atfected properties.

2007 restated to MLE leakage as opposed to DMA (District Metered Area) leakage

Opex vs final determination

£AS80.9,,

We have delvered an operating cost outturn
around 1% better than the fevel assumed
by Ofwat In that determination
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Performance review

Water and Sewerage

Performance
2008 2007
£m £m
Turnover 1,2792 1,2181
Profit* 4623 4130

*before interest, tax and exceptional items (see note 5)

Turnover in Water and Sewerage
increased by 5 0% in 2007/08, to
£1,279 2 million Sales prices increased
by 5 87% (ncluding inflation) from

1 Apnl 2007

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional
items (PBIT) was up by 11 9% on the
previous year, to £462 3 million as the
higher turnover was partially offset by
cost increases described opposite

Water quality % mean zonal comphance

2007 99 96
2006 9998
2005 992 95

Health and safety -
LTIs per 100,000 hours worked

2007/08 0.61

2006/07 0.59
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Tony Wray
Chief Executive

In 2007/08, we turned a significant corner The business of Severn
Trent Water 1s aligned and focused on driving up standards and
improving process efficiency to deliver lower costs and better customer
service We have mproved our operational performance in some areas,
while continuing to build on those areas which need greater focus

We also recognise there are still further improvements to be made
particularly in health and safety, sewer flooding and unplanned
interruptions As a result, | believe we are well positioned for the Price
Review 2009 (PR09) and the delivery of our 25 year plan and are
actively working towards both these pronties

Financial performance

Turnover in Water and Sewerage Increased by 5 0% in 2007/08, to
£1,279 2 million Sates prices increased by 5 87% (including inflation)
from 1 Apnl 2007

Profit before nterest tax and exceptional items (PBIT) was up by 11 9%
on the previous year, to £462 3 rmilhon Beyond the increase in turnover,
a number of factors impacted PBIT, principally a reduction i energy
costs of £19 4 million, other increases In our cost base, net of
efficiencies, of £21 2 mullion, an increase in infrastructure renewals
expenditure of £13 1 million, and a decrease n depreciation charges

of £3 1 million

Investing 1n assets more efficiently

Year after year, we invest in improving the quabty, resihence and
maintenance of our network During 2007/08, we invested £111 million
(net of grants received) in maintatming cur tnfrastructure network
Capital expenditure, exciuding spending on infrastructure maintenance,
was £446 million Gross capital expenditure (including infrastructure
maintenance expenditure) increased to £567 million

We are meeting our cbligations on investments and making them more
efficiently Our capex (gross) vs final determination KPI measures our
performance on managing the financial aspects of the delivery of our
vestment programme This measures the percentage variance
between our capitat expenditure and Ofwat’s final determination for
AMP4 We continue to be on track to meet our regulatory obligations
with an overall efficiency ot 6% compared to Ofwat’s final determination
We are taking the opportunity presented by this efficiency to invest in
some other return enhancing investments that should provide value
over the longer term These will include further renewable energy
generation, the early development of capital plans for AMPS and the
new Severn Trent Centre tin Coventry

Qur capex (gross) vs final determination KPI covers one aspect of our
performance against our objective of delivering services to customers
at the lowest costs Other KPIs, notably the capital process quality
measure, Should assess our ability of the capital programme to deliver
high quality services We have defined the measure for capital process
quality and are now trialling it in the field




Back on track in managing our cost base

In 2006/07 we exceeded our Opex vs final determination KPI, which
measures the vanance between our actual operating costs and Ofwat's
Final Determination for AMP4 This year we are back on track and our
outlook for the remaining two years of AMP4 will be that we should
outperform our Ofwat measure by 3%

Our KPI cost to serve per property measures the iotal cost (including
operating costs, depreciation, infrastructure renewals and third party
costs) associated with serving a single property During 2007/08 we
continued to maintain a cost base that supports our position of having
some of the lowest bills in the industry

Malkung the most of our property portfolio

Our property portfolio includes over 7,000 sites across 21,000 km?
In 2007/08, we focused on supporting a strategy to deliver the nght
space, at the right cost, of the nght quality, in the nght location and
held for the nght amount of time Cur flagship project 1n this respect
1s the development of the new Severn Trent Centre in Coventry, due
to open 1n 2010

Managing debt
We continue to manage our trade debt as effictently as possible
Year on year, there was no significant increase in bad debts

Assuming qur billing and collection performance stays the same, we
would expect our debtor days to increase each year by approxirmately
two days, due to customers switching from unmetered to metered
billing We installed 63,454 meters in 2007/08 We have previously
reported the number based on accounts set up on our bilking system
This year, in order to align with data published in our regulatory returns,
we are reporting on the number of meters actually installed Our debtor
days KPI has remained broadly unchanged at 37 4 days in 2007/08,
compared to 37 5 days in 2006/07

Qur plan has focused on increasing contacts with our customers 1n debt
and providing a designated team to assist these customers when they
contact us We have increased outbound dialhng to customers 1n arrears
and have introduced alternative forms of customer contact such as the
use of text messaging and telemessaging {(a modern day telegram)

We actively pursuee those who are able but unwilling to pay their bills,
whule offering ftexability for those who genuinely struggle to pay

KPI 12
Debtor Days

374

We have maintained our debtor days
KPI, managing debt both etficiently
and effectively

As consumer debt increases, the number of our customers who are
struggling to pay for water services grows For those customers who
experience severe financial hardship, we increased the contribution to
the Severn Trent Trust Fund to £4 5 mulhon 1in 2007/08 For customers
in arrears In receipt of eligible benefits, deductions directly from their
benefits ensure they make regular payments for their current charges
and reduce their arrears by an affordable amount We have received a
34% increase 1n the number of direct payments received from benefit
during the year Alsa, we continue to promote the WaterSure tanff to
cap charges for vulnerable customers and work together with caring
agencies to assist them

We have experienced a continued increase 1n the amount of aged debt
and therefore, where our recovery process has been unsuccessful and
Itigation has not abtained payment, we continue to use and expand
the use of specialist external debt collection agencies as an extension
of cur own practices

Smoothing the investment rollercoaster

\n 2007/08, we have started work on smoothing the so called
investment rollercoaster, where investment rises steeply in years two,
three and four of the AMP cycle before falling off sharply in year five
Smoothing this out so that there 1s a steady amount of investment
throughout the five years 1s beneficial for our supply chain, because it
allows thern to plan their resources more cost effectively, and for us,
because we can gain from etficencies and also smooth out the impact
on our own activities As a result, it supports long term mutually
beneficial relationships We have begun smoothing the investment by
bringing forward feasibility work on schemes for a two year rolling
programme and are buillding up a full programme for 2010 and 2011

We have begun procurement for AMPS as part of our comrmutrment
to obtain the best resources at the optimal cost

Water quality

We have a strong track record of providing high quality drnnking water
to our customers We have consistently achieved 99 9% compliance
with water quakhty standards set by the Drinking Water Inspectorate
(OWI) since 1997 This 15 amangst the best comphance records in
our industry

The DWI's performance tables for the 2007 calendar year showed that
we achieved 99 96% mean zenal compliance, based on over 500,000
tests from samples of our water Whilst we did not simprove on last
year's 99 98% compliance, we have nevertheless maintained a high
performance level

Our water quality KPls currently based on an overall DWI measure of
cormnphance at the customer's tap We plan to change our measure so
that it takes in compliance aleng the whole supply chamn, from reservoir
to tap Tihus more challenging measure should enable us to gain a
broader and deeper picture of water quality and to 1dentify the root
causes of any problems more accurately and efficiently This in turn
should allow us to iImplerment more effective long term solutions,
driving up water quality even higher

Qur customers expect not only high qualty water but also a
reliable supply
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Performance review Water and Sewerage continued

Unplanned interruptions

Our KPI for unplanned mterruptions to supply 1s based on Ofwat’s DG3
level of service Qur performance against this measure in 2007/08
deteriorated This year, around 195,000 properties expenenced
unplanned interruptions to supply for six hours or more, compared to
around 23,400 propertes in 2006/07 This represents 5 7% of the
properties connected to our network, compared te 0 7% in 2006/07
The flocding of The Mythe Water Treatment Works 1n July accounted for
138,000 of these properties We recognuse that despite the exceptional
incident this performance 1s not good enough and apologise to our
customers We are working to identify and fix the root causes of the
problem and are commutted to achieving an improvement in underlying
performance n the cormung year

Low pressure

Our other KPI for water supply I1s based on Qfwat's DG2 level of service
for properties at nsk from low pressure We have deployed 3,500
pressure loggers this year to better understand the performance of our
network By measuring pressure throughout the system, we should be
able to identify more points of low pressure and their root causes This
has led to a short term detenoration in our fow pressure KPI, but it
should result in a long term improvement in our delivery of a reliable
water supply to customers We have removed 1,082 properties from the
register this year but have identified 2,314 more This means we end
the year with 1,546 properties compared to 314 properties in 2006/07
This represents less than 0 05% of the properties we serve

Improving the customer experience

Our performance has improved on alt fronts in terms of interacting with
custamers This 1s a significant turnaround on poor performance in
previous years QOur first KPI for customer service performance 1s written
customer complaints per 1,000 properties We met this, with written
complaints down 34%, from 68,874 1n 2006/07 to 45,710 in 2007/08

We have invested heavily in our bilhing call handling service by
increasing the number of phone lines and improving the capabilities
and motivation of all cur staff through a comprehensive programme

of upskilhing hinked to performance based personal rewards As a result,
customers should get straight through to us when they call and i is
now highly likely that their query will be dealt with at the first point

of contact

KPI 4
Customer written complaints
reduced by

349%

We have reduced our written custormer
complaints, a complete turnaround on
last year's poor performance
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In our billing contact centre we handle a huge number of calls each
year Resolving these calls first ime 1s good both for our customers and
for us In 2007/08, we achieved an 85% level for our first time call
resolutron for bithng related contacts KP

We handle all customer queries related to our water and waste water
operations through one 24/7 Custormer Qperations Service Centre at
Coventry In 2007/08, we continued to refine our processes at the
Centre 1n order to be able to handle customer queries and find and
fix operational problems as quickly and effectively as possible

We have established a measure for our first time job resolution KPl We
are measuring the number of calls where customers ring us back to say
things haven’t been done We are currently developing systems ta
enable us to measure this

Improving customer service standards

Alengside our KPI performance measures and in line with what we said
we would do, we have improved our performance across Ofwat's DG
service standards, notably DG6 (response to wnitten billing queries),
DG7 (response to wnitten complaints), DG8 (meter readings) and DG9
(customer satisfaction with telephone calls)

For DG6, we achieved S0 7%, a significant improvement on 2006/07
Our performance in the last three months of the financial year has been
particularly strong and we are well placed to improve in 2008/09

in order to improve our performance, we carned out root cause analysis
on the top complaint areas telephone contact, people moving home
and bill explanation To tackle these areas we significantly increased

our telephone line capacity, retrained our staff in how to help pecple
moving home and are looking at the language and layout of our bills
We are also looking at making a full bill explanatien available on our
website and in the magazine that accomparues every bill We introduced
a new workforce manager tool which allows us to forecast accurately
and schedule workioads, and vehicle tracking for meter readers, helping
drivers take the best route and reducing vehicle emissions

Looking ahead, we will be investing in our website to improve it further
to become a genuine customer service centre The ambition over the
next 12 to 18 months 1s to move to an environment where our
custormers are able to interact with us in whichever way 1s the most
appropriate {or them, be it email, website, phone, letter or text message
To this end, we will continue to Invest in our systems and in improving
the skills of our operators

Developing a sustainable service for customers

Serving custorners also means logking after therr long term interests

as well as ther mmediate concerns Our main aim1s to ensure that we
are maintaining the serviceability of our assets This means carrying out
the work necessary to ensure our water and sewerage systems deliver
reliable service in the future for customers and the environment It takes
into consideration above and below ground water and sewerage assets
Our most recent assessment shows that we have a stable serviceabihity
across Qur asset base

Our KPIin this area not onty covers the serviceability of our assets

but our performance against our regulatory obligations more generally
This covers the key ocutputs that we are expected to deliver as part of
our regulatory contract over the AMP4 period

We have improved during the year and now believe that we have
reduced the number of areas with significant 1ssues from 26% in
2006/07 to 15% 1in 2007/08




Looking after the environment

We place great emphasis on our environmental responsibibities How

we abstract water, manage waste water discharges, operate over 1,000
sewage treatment sites and almost 3,000 sewage pumping stations, and
how we manage resources all have a huge potential impact on the tocal
environment We have a responsibility to mtnimise our environmental
impact and optimise our use of resources

Underlining the seriousness with which we take our responsibilities,
six of our 20 KPIs are linked to envirenmental performance, while also
reflecting our broader operational performance The six KPIs are
breach of consents at sewage treatment works, pollution incidents,
sewer flooding, raw water storage, net energy use and leakage

We have agreed a 13 point plan with the Environment Agency and
Ofwat to improve our environmental performance in relation to
pollutions A key theme of the plan 1s to produce better data So for
example, we now always carry out a camera survey of the viciity of

a pollution incident to help us accurately wdentify the root cause Also,
if we have an area that 1s prone to blockages, we intend to add it to
our routine cleansing programme Better data allows us t¢ drive much
harder to get to root causes and fix fundamental problems This in turn
helps prevent the unnecessary repetition of problerns

Sewage treatment works

In 2007 calendar year, our sewage treatment works complied with

the discharge consents 1ssued by the Environment Agency We had

no breaches of consent for sanitary and urban waste water parameters
In 2007 This consistently high level of compliance 1s among the best
in the ndustry Our standards are however always tightening and we
aim to maintain our high performance year after year

Pollution

The standard for pollution incidents has to be zero We have made good
progress on this front in 2007/08 Poliution incidents in the calendar
year 2007 are significantly down to 417, from 530.n 2006 Of the total
recorded, three were In the most severe category 1, compared with two
in 2006, and 10 were in category 2, compared with eight :1n 2006 In
terms of our KPI for pollution incidents, we achieved 0 11 per 1,000
properties in 2007

KPI 17
Sewage treatment works,
breach of consents

We continue the good work in this area
and have had no breaches in 2007

Sewer flooding

The first few months of 2007/08 were challenging in terms of sewer
flooding From April to July 2007 we had significantly more incidents
than the long term average level As a result, we missed our KP! for
sewer flooding - other causes per 1,000 properties Our performance
for this KPl was 021 However, from July onwards we did significantly
better than previous years over a five year profite, which shows that our
improvermnent plans are delivenng

Sewer flooding can be caused by overloaded sewers Properties flooded
in this way are put cn a register Currently, more properties in cur
region are being added to this register than taken off and we are
concentrating on making the necessary improverments to address this

We have continued to raise the awareness of our customers to the
problems caused by discharging fats, olls and grease to the sewers
We offer free fat traps to all of our domestic customers as well as
inforrmation on how to dispose of progducts that shouldn't be flushed
into the sewer system

To tackle the many camplexities surrounding flooding in the most
effective way, we work closely with all concerned, inciuding local
authorities, the community and the Environment Agency

Investing 1n improvements

We invest heavily in every aspect of our waste water process and
network In 2007/08, we invested £296 million in this part of our
business Improving Minworth Sewage Treatment Works 15 our biggest
ongomng scheme and one of the largest in the industry The works
serves over two million peeple In Birmingbam and the Black Country
Qther big sewage projects underway include improvements at Leicester,
Stoke-on-Trent and Derby Sewage Treatment Works Anocther example
of our invesiment 1s the £18 million scheme to build a 21st century
sewer network for Kenltworth

We are working closely with government and other agencies on the
requirement for us to take ownership of private sewers In our region
We welcome this new obhigation It will grow our sewer network by
around 50% Equally importantly, it will enabte us to improve our
service to customers both in terms of being able to manage these
sewers effectively and being able to answer any queries customers may
have concerning them without the need first to establish ownership

Raw water storage

We performed well against our raw water storage KP|, having an
average 92% of total raw water capacity available over the year Our
performance was the result of both effective resource management
and high ranfall

We have decided to change thus KPI, moving to a more complete
measure of our ability to supply treated water to customers as opposed
to the amount of raw water 1n gur reservoirs The new measure will

be the Ofwat Secunty of Supply Index

In line with our ongoing commitment to be able to maintain supples
of treated water, we are undertalung a number of investment projects
For example, our scheme at Frankley Water Treatment Works should
enable us to pump up to 120 megaltres a day from the River Severn
inte the works
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Performance review Water and Sewerage continued

Water network

Each year, we invest in maintaining, repairing and maodernusing our
extensive water network, some of which 1s over 100 years old The Ofwat
Determunation for AMP4 assumed around £184 million of expenditure
on mains renewal over five years (In nominal terms) So far, we have
invested £156 rmilhon in our network and expect to invest in total
around £256 millian, same 39% more than the amaount assumed in

the Determination

Water resources plan

Given the demands of chimate change and population growth,
demonstrated to the extreme by the 2007 summer floods in our region,
investing 1n improving the resilience and capacity of our network will
become increasingly important Our draft Water Resources Management
Plan, published on www stwater co uk descrihes our proposed strategy
far maintaining the balance between supply and demand 1n our regicn
over the next 25 years

Improving our use of energy

Qur net energy use KPI measures how much energy (net of renewable
energy generated by us) we consume per megalrtre of water or waste
water treated In 2007/08, we achieved 608 kWh/MI compared with
618 kWh/M| 1n 2006/07 This 1s an encouraging Impravement in
performance and puts us in 2 good position for the future achievement
of improvement plans

We generated more renewable energy in 2007/08 We also did a lot of
work on energy efficiency, from increasing awareness of our processes
on site and managing them more effectively to acting on data to target
high cost processes to investing 1n more energy efficient plants

We have ambitious plans to expand our approach to renewable energy
This includes increasing our use of our two established methods hydro
power and combined heat and power using biogas from our sewage
treatment works We are also lookung at new methods wind energy and
biomass energy crops We are at relatively early planning stages with
both these methods but are confident of their potential to help us
sigruficantly increase our generation of renewable energy

We have engaged a partner and are reviewing a number of potential
sites for wind energy We are also working with a partner on biomass
energy crops This 1s a particularly interesting potential source of
renewable energy for us as it would make good use of land to grow
crops for energy where, due to historical sludge disposal practices,
crops cannot be grown for human consumption

KPI 19
Net energy use

008 wivm

We achieved improvement against our
delivery of 618 kWh/M last year
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Meeting our leakage target

We have outperformed our leakage target for 2007/08, after faling
to meet it for the last two years We are determined to maintain our
performance In line with our written commitment to Ofwat for the
remaining years of AMP4

With water scarcity increasing, being able to reduce leakage becomes
ever more important for our customers, for the environment and for our
business We have succeeded this year as a result of better network
maintenance, better response times to finding and fixing leaks and a
better understanding of where water 15 used and where 1t 1s wasted In
our processes

In 2007/08, we found and fixed over 33,000 leaks, compared with
37,000 in 2006/07

Creating a great place to work
Creating a safe place to work s at the heart of our commitment to
creating a great place Yo work

In 2007708, our performance on our health and safety KP! of lost
tme incidents per 100,000 hours worked was 0 61, including road
traffic accidents

Although the figure for the year overall has not come down, in the last
few months of 2007/08 we did achieve reductions, with some areas
of the business achieving zero incidents This lays the groundwork for
improverment in 2008/09 We remaimn commutted to improving thrs
performance for the benefit of all our employees and for those who
work with us

We signtficantly reduced the number of lost days due to accidents
per 100,000 hours worked, from 19 days in 2006/07 to eight days
in 2007/08 This 1s the absence normalised to reflect an average
working life

This progress 1s due to a number of inithatives which are part of a
broader move to improve safety, quality and standards throughout
the business

Our Safe and Unsafe Acts (SUSA) safe management system introduced
in 2005/06 involves one to one discussions where trained managers
talk regularly with their team members about the safety aspects of thewr
work SLSA s now very much an active part of the way we build safety
into aur everyday business

tn 2007/08, following on from the business reorganisation, we set out
a 10 point action plan on safety, quahty and standards

The plan covers setting a standard for the rminimum acceptable
personal pretective equipment, iImproving our incident investigation

to allow us to get to the root cause and tracking all actions to ensure
they're all closed down, developing safety hazard workshops for
managers, so they understand their high risk actwvities and can manage
them properly and working to try and improve the performance of

our contractors

in 2007/08, we had six British Safety Council audits at a varety of
taciities Two recewved five stars, the highest grade and four received
tour stars

In 2006/07, we began a comprehensive health and safety process
review of our water and waste water sites We completed this survey
1IN 2007/08 In total we surveyed 6,646 of 7,081 sites and as a result
we are carrying out a large number and wtde range of improvements




Qur Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrence
Regulations (RIDDOR) rate 1s shightly higher in 2007/08 at 054 than
in 2006/07 which was 047 This 1s due to an increased identification
of Hand Arm Vibration Syndrome (HAVS) In 2006/07, there were
two cases, in 2007/08, there were 15 cases In addition, we have
had ene case of carpal tunnel syndrome also related to use of
vibrating equipment Consequently, we have embarked con a more
intensive programme to identify and reduce people’s exposure to
vibrating equipment

We have set up an engineering standards orgamisation which Is looking
at the asset safety process review and also at our contractors' safety
We recently had a forum for contractor safety management, covering
the AMP4 asset delivery programme We are also lcoking forward to
AMPS and the mere unified and intense standards that we expect for
the operaticnal management, enginearing, safety, quality assurance
and design of our assets

We are comrtted to improving the lang term physical qualty, security
and safety of the assets as well as the safety of cur people This 1s why
we focus on sustainable improvernents not only in our health and safety
culture but also in the quality of our assets through our extensive safety
process review and engineering modifications and refurbishments

Developing a motivated and productive workforce
We are committed to improving constantly the engagement, skills and
working environment of our employees

We currently hold an annual employee survey and three mini surveys
to gain a clear cngoing measure of staff morale and motiwation In
2007/08, our KPI for employee motivation was 77%, compared with
76% 1n 2006/07 The January 2008 survey revealed improvements in
terms of employees feeling they have the opportunity to progress in the
business, being happy to go the extra mite at work and n overall levels
of morale However, we recognise that we have more to do and are
committed to improving in this area

New ways of working

We are always locking for ways to /mprove and to increase our skitis

and capabilities We are developing a programme to introduce new
ways of working which combines a sertes of upskilling initiatives and
tools, simplified processes and improved communication Drawing on
the results of a series of pilots, we are developing a new operating
model for the way we work together and develop our people, which will
be used throughout the company The first area of focus 15 on managtng
performance - equipping our managers with enhanced skills and tools

KPI 2
Employee motivation

77%

We have improved this KPI from 2006/07,
and aspire to further improvements in
the future

to be able to get the best out of the:r teams The intention 1s to cascade
these programmes throughout the business

Creating a modern working environment

We are planming to move to our new Severn Trent Centre in Coventry

tn 2010 The Centre will be our flagship location — a modern working
environment where around 1,700 of our employees, from customer
service to asset delivery to finance, can work together more effectively,
efficiently, comfortably and flexibly The teams set to move currently
occupy offices In a number of locations In the south Midlands It will
make us more etficient to be located in one place and ultimately benefit
our ¢ustomers

Qur other employees will benefit from ongoing imprevements across
our property portfohie as well as opportunities for flexible working

Investing in technology

We are investing in technology to improve key processes that enable us
to work better together and improve our performance in water, waste
water and customer relations Investing in telemetry, for example, helps
us gain more detailed and accurate data, which in turn should resultin
better informed decisions around how to achieve long term improverments

The summer floods

Summer 2007 was the wettesi on record, causing widespread flooding
In the face of unprecedented challenges in the Gloucestershire floods in
particular, our people showed great dedication and single minded focus
on getting 138,000 households back on supply We deployed 1,500
bowsers dunng the 17 days and made available an alternative supply
of 50 mullion Iitres of water At one point we were supplying five million
litres of bottled water a day, the total average consumption of bottled
water in the entire UK per day 1s six milhion litres per day The cost of
the flooding 1s estimated to be £30-35 million An exceptional charge
of £13 & milion {net of £16 mullion of intenm nsurance recoveries)

has been made in this year arising from the impact of these floods

In response to the floods, we are iImproving our contingancy planning
and we are looking at system resihence throughout our area In
particular, we are working on a proposed pipeline from Strensham
Water Treatrment Works to The Mythe network near Tewkesbury

We have invested £3 5 mullion in the recovery of Gloucestershire, in
recognition of the huge amount of effort and energy everyone involved
in the local community devoted to tackling the event We are supporting
a wide range of projects through the fund, from financing a hovercraft
for the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service to resioring footpaths

in partnership with Gloucestershire First

Looking ahead

we will continue buillding on the significant progress made in 2007/08
Preparations for PRO9 and AMPS are underway and will intensify

We are well placed to produce a high guality plan for PROS that
balances the interests of all stakeholders customers, economic and
envirpnmentat regulators, and investors

We will continue working closely with everyone concerned on regulatory
reforms, notably competition and the adoption of private sewers We
welcome these changes and will make sure we are positioned to best
advantage for our customers and our shareholders We will look to
apply our robust funding strategy in order to continue securing the
finance we need to fund investment over the next 25 years and beyond

Above all, we will make sure we are constantly locking at the long term
stewardship of the business te ensure continuous sustainable
improvements to achieve higher standards, lower costs and further

develop our great people in the years ahead Severn Trent 17
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Performance review

Water Technologies and Services

branded as Severn Trent Services

Performance
2008 2007
£m £m
Turnover 2973 2889
Profit* 207 197

*before interest, tax and exceptional items

Turnover in Water Technologies and
Services was £297 3 mulion 1n 2007708,
up 2 9% on 2006/07 Profit before
Interest, tax and exceptional items was
£20 7 milhon, up 5 1%

2008 2007

£m £m

Turnover 2973 2889
Changes in group 01) {4 8)
2072 2841
Exchange rate impact (7 6)
2972 2765

Growth 7 5%

Lost days per 100,000 hours worked

2007/08 1477

2006/07 25 26

Lost time injury rates
per 100,000 hours worked

2007/08 044

2006/07 047

{exclucling road traffic accidents)
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Len Graziano
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Severn Trent Services

Leading the way in water and waste water treatment solutions
around the world

Qur Water Technologres and Services business 15 one of the world's
leading suppliers of water and waste water treatment solutions We
operate at the forefront of new water technology, are known around the
world for cur quality, rehability and stability and enjoy a strong posttion
1n our chosen markets

The business has three main divisions Water Purification, Operating
Services and Analyticat Services Water Purification 1s a leader 1In
developing advanced technotogies and products focused on
disinfection, filtration, arsenic removal, ballast water treatment and
metening Operating Services 15 a leader In running and maintaining
water and waste water treatment plants around the world and Analytical
Services 1s a leader in UK environmental water testing services

Another year of encouraging progress

Throughout 2007/08 we remained focused on water and made
excellent progress n all three divisions We achieved top hine and
bottorn line growth and maintained a good return on invested capital

The global market for water and waste water 1s substantial and 1s
growing at around 5-6% pa Within this diversified market, we focus on
the higher growth and higher margin market segments and geographies
where our particular products and services meet a significant need

In the financial year we have focused on grganic growth and have
concentrated on building our international presence Our strategy has
been to expand our existing technologies into new geographical markets
and take new technologies into existing markets To support this
strategy, we have been develeping our international sales and
distnibution network beyond our prirnary markets of the US, UK and
ltaly to establish a growing footprint in the Middle East and Asia Pacific
In 2007 for example, we opened a new branch in Abu Dhalbn

We continue to mprove cost control and efficiency and to look for
ways to maximise synergies throughout the business

Water Purification
Qur Water Punfication division performed well, with turnover rising
by 9 4%, excludmng the impact of exchange rates, to £112 million

We concentrate on advanced water and waste water treatment
technologies and maintain continuous levels of iInnovation in order

to keep winning To thus end for exampie, we invested in the acqursition
of Quay Technglogies, whose patented uitraviolet (UV) technology
significantly improves bulb ife and results in lower overall operating
costs compared with traditional UV We are developing this technology
and taking 1t to market under the Micro Dynamics™ brand name

We received a patent in the US for our systerm and method of ballast
water treatment within ocean going vessels — BalPure™




Qur electrochlorination product ine had a particularly good year

We are pioneenng alternatives to chlorine gas and lead the industry in
using seawater or brine to generate chlorine on site We introduced two
new product lines for sodium hypochlornte ClorTec® MCT, a medium-
sized unit, and the ClorTec® SCT, a smaller portable unit for the
European market

We also launched a new energy efficient SmartMeter™ range with

a battery life of up to 20 years in some products, giving sigrificant
whole life cost savings Using the SmartMeter™, we have developed
a new package to help water companies identify and quanty supply
pipe leakage

Notable contract wins included an electrochlorination contract in France
and phase two of cur project with the Abu Dhabi Water and Electricity
Authonty 1o install 46 onsite hypochlonte generation systems

In Australia, we supplied our denitnfication filters for the Bundamba
Advanced Water Treatment project

In Jiaxing, China, we tralled our TETRA® SAF™ denitrification filtration
technology to punfy polluted water from the local river

it proved both effective and cost effective so we installed a full scale
urit The project was highly commended n the 2007 Global Water
Intelligence Awards

We also secured a project to design, builld and nstall a membrane
filtration desalination plant in a large development for La Paz, Baja
Califormia Mexico This community has commuitted {o becoming
completely solar powered — our plant included

Operating Services
Turnover at our Operating Services division increased 5 0%, excluding
the impact of exchange rates

We had a particularly good year in the UK, ltaly and the US

In the US, we continue to stay at the forefront, growing our business
organically in line with US market growth We have improved our cost
base by conselidating our operations into bigger regions and by
rationalising a number of smaller contracts

We are operating the treatment plant at a second closed landfill site for
New York City We also won a contract to operate a 15 rmuilion gallons
per day waste water treatment plant for Bristol Tennessee and Bristol
Virginia, which 1s set to reduce operating costs by approximately 20%
annually In Pritchard Alabama, we won a contract to run two waste
water treatment facilities - our first wan In that state

Qur UK Coast to Coast Water (C2C) joint venture has been invited by
the UK Defence Secretary's office to be in thus year's Parllamentary
Year Book C2C serves some 1,500 UK Ministry of Defence (MoD) sites
In a 25 year £1 bilhon Private Finance Imtiative contract that began

in 2005 We are proud to be one ot six featured companies in the
Defence Section

Analytical Services

Both turnover and profits before interest and tax at Analytical Services
exceeded our expectations Anticipated reductions resulting from
planned changes in the scope of contracts with two major utilities were
offset by strong growth in our commercial business Turnover for the
year was down 1%

Towards the end of 2007, cur laboratory in Coventry became one of the
first autormated potable water microbiology labs in the UK The Kiestra
automated systern enables us to improve traceability of samples, quahity

of analysis, capacity, health and safety and environmental management
— every aspect of our service As a result we expect to deliver improved
quahty of data and cost savings to our chents

During the financial year we won sampling and analytical services
contracts with both C2C and Brey Utilities to support their 25 year
contracts to serve UK MoD sites throughout the country We also gained
preferred laboratory status with Vindor Waste Management for the next
three years

Committed to responsible business

We have maintained our focus on improving health and safety in all
areas of our business In 2007/08, we targeted reducing the number of
lost tume Incidents and also the number of lost days We succeeded in
reducing the number of lost ime incidents per 100,000 hours worked
by 7% and the number of lost days per 100,000 hours worked by 42%
year on year

Three of our UK businesses achieved Occupational Health and Satety
OHSAS 18001 accreditation in the financial year

We also targeted a 3% reduction in vehicle ermussions for the year

We achieved approximately an 8% reduction across Operating Services
in the US and Water Punification in the UK, the reductions accounted for
by core fleet reptacement, general driver awareness programmes, and
fleet reduction as a result of restructuring In fact, Water Purificabon UK
reduced emissions by approximately 30% compared with the previous
fiscal year

Reducing energy consumption is another prionity In the US, we are
looking to reduce electricity costs per one milhon gallons of water
produced To this end, we are producing Site Energy Management Plans
for our larger plants In one of our plants in Oklahoma for example,

we have achieved a 5% reduction 1n electricily costs

On UN World Water Day, 22 March 2008, three of our UK businesses
supported the Give an hour campaign, where you give an hour of your
salary to WaterAid

Looking ahead

The market for all three dwvisions remains strong Key drivers such as
water scarcity, water quality, secunity concerns and rising energy costs
will continue to create opportunities for us to grow by meeting the
increasing needs of our ciients for advanced water and waste water
treatment solutions

Going forward, we are working to an accelerated and more
focused growth strategy ~ building on cur brand recogmtion and
reputation, our strong market pesittons, our international scale
and our advanced technologies

Over the corming years we will focus on four key strategic initiatives
First, we aim to continue the geographic expansion of our products and
services Second, we aim to expand the scope of our operating services
1 both our home countries and other internatienal markets Third, we
aim to focus on product and operational enhancements to improve our
effectiveness and efficiency And fourth, continue to develop new
technologies that are at the forefront of water and waste water solutions

In ine with this strategy, we have established a central product
development group to help us focus very accurately on how best to
improve existing technologies and develop new technologies and
solutions that are really valued and welcomed by our clients around
the world
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Our corporate responsibilities

The heart of our business

Organisations use different terminology to describe the way they
address the impact of thewr activities on the enviranment, wider
society and future generations The UK government’s strategy in this
area I1s referred to as sustainable development We refer to corporate
responsibibty to describe the way we respond to these 1ssues as

a business

Our approach to corporate responsibility 1s based on considering what
it means to be a responsible organisation as an integral part of the way
we operate and plan our future strategy We communicate what this
means in practice to our staff and other stakeholders with reference

to four areas Community, Marketplace (customers and supply chain),
Workplace {our role as a responsible employer) and Environment

Many of our 20 KPIs hink directly to our focus on corporate
responsibrlity, for example our KPIs on health and safety, employee
motivation, water quality, pollution incidents, net energy use and
leakage Performance against these KPls can be found ¢n pages
10 and 11 of this document

In addition, we have a number of broader corporate responsibity
abjectives and measures which we track internally through the
Corporate Responsibitity Committee This 1s a cormmittee of the board,
chaired by a non-executive director, Bernard Bulkin The Chairman and
Chief Executrve sit on the committee, which meets four times a year to
develop, review and promote policies

The data we track in this area ts venfied by independent consultants
and pubhshed externzally via our website

Aligning corporate responsibility to our long term

strategic direction

Our focus going forward 18 to map our corporate respensibility
programme as closely as possible onte the long term strategic direction
of the business

This diagram tllustrates the way in which our corporate responsibility
strategy and measures are aligned to deliver the eight KSls contained
within our 25 year plan

Corporate responsibility measures

CR Themas aOhjectives Measures Key Strategic Intentions within 25 year plan
Community Provide a high quality product Water qualrty’
Quality investment in commumity and education Employee volunteering?
Community investment? z;z‘:::::? :‘:&l:tlnuous supply
Chantable giving?
Customer and community engagement?
Markatplace  Quality interaction weth the customer Customer complants' Responding to customer needs
Debtor days’ Promoting effective regulatory regme
Vulnerable customers? Mamntaining (nvestor confidence
Provide a high standard of operational service Suppliers and contractors standards and carbon fogtprint  AVING the lowest possible charges
Workplace Development of a sustainable service Regulatory abligatians!
Adaptation to climate change?
Develop a confident and productive workforce Employee motivation!
Whistleblowing? Having the right skits to deliver
Staff survey?
Promote and develop a diverse workforce % of fernale and ethrie minorities?
Provide a safe working environment Lost time incidents?
Emwironment  Mimimise environmental impact Polution intidents!
Waste?
Biodiversity?

Maximise use of resources

Net energy use'

Minimising our carbon footpnnt

Raw water storage’

Dealing efiectively with
waste water

Leakage

Renewable energy?

Water efficiency®

1 Measures relevant to carporate responsibility within our 20 business KPls
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Community

We have an active community precgramme For example, we have
classreoms on four of our sites where we bring in groups of children
to teach them about water resources

We also have a well developed and supported employee volunteer
prograrmme One of the ways we use employee volunteers 15 through
our BeSmart education programme - a scheme where we go inte
50 schools with an education pack focused on water resources and
water efficency We donate to a number of organisations, such as
WaterAid, as part of our chanties programme

Qur Analytical Services business supports a number of prajects in the
community with a particular focus on enhancing links with local schools
and colleges The visits are designed to introduce pupils to possible
careers 1n science and to demonstrate the way we use scientific skills

In our processes They recewe various presentations and a tour of the
laboratory with practical demonstrations

Public access sites

Our public access sites welcome around three million visitors a year
Through these sites we aim to deliver high quality conservation, access,
recreation and education for our customers and our communities
Mare information on our public access sites can be found on

www moretoexpernience co tk

Marketplace

Supply chain

We aim {o manage the whole supply chain responsibly, working with
our supphers and delivening for our customers

We have robust processes in place o ensure that as a minimum
requirement we are working with responsible suppliers, based on their
health and safety, environment and ethics track record We are also
idenbifying areas where our supphers will be able to help us achieve
some of our strategic objectives, such as reducing our carbon footprint
It's about long term relationship bwlding - focusing on managing the
contract and supplier relationships to maximise value

In 2007, we won Uity Week's Supply Chain Excellence Award for
our holistic two year supply chain management programme with
Nottingham Trent University for participants drawn from throughout
our business and our contractors and suppliers

Vulnerable customers

We ensure our corporate responsibility approach also addresses our
relationships with customers, in particular vulnerable custormers who
have dsfficulty in paying their bills or who have special needs

The Severn Trent Water Trust Fund 1s run through our chantable trust
We contribute £3 5 muliion a year towards vutnerable customers In
2007708, we increased our contribution to £4 5 million in response
to higher levels of demand for people needing help of this kind

Workplace

We are working on ways to improve the skills of our people, working
environments and communication We are, for example, enhancing our
internal communication programme so that employees can get easier
access to the information they need

We have launched a leadership behavioural modet and are roling this
out further among employees It 1s part of our comrmitment to develop
a modern work place, where people treat each other 1n a supportive
way and work together to achieve both the organisation’s and their
own perscenal goals

MOINDI FDUBLLIOHDY

We have a leadership forurmn for our management teams We also
have formal succession talent management reviews through the year

We are committed to improving the diversity of our workforce and
have relaunched the women's neiwork (n Severn Trent

We aim for open and honest relationships at work, where people work
together as a team and everyone has the opportunity to improve their
skills and capabilities and progress through the organisation

Through a share incentive plan, every Severn Trent Water and Severn
Trent Plc employee has an element of their pay based on our
performance against our 20 KPls

Severn Trent Services (STS) conducted its first global employee
engagement survey, which topped the list of motivation programmes
A development centre was piloted for middle management 1n two

of the UK businesses based on Severn Trent leadership competencies

Environment

Climate change

Climate change Is set to produce more severe forms of weather, from
droughts to deluges To respond to these changes, we are investing in
the resilience of our Severn Trent Water network and in helping to
protect communities from flooding

Climate change I1s a key component of our environment sirategy

We are commutted to reducing greenhouse gas enmissions by being
more efficient 1n what we do and also by Increasing renewable energy
generation We have a target of generating 30% of our energy from
renewable sources by 2012 This involves a wide range of solutions,
from wind turbines, to generating energy from sewage sludge and
biomass crops

We are commutted to understanding our carbon footprint and
playing our part in meeting the government’s targets to reduce
greenhouse emmussions within the overall economy We are in the
process of developing longer term targets 1n this area to align
with our 25 year plan

Within STS we are working to reduce the carbon footprint associated
with this growing part of qur business and continuing our focus to
ensure our facilities are as energy efficient as possible through
increased measurement and energy controls

Water resources

QOur draft Water Resources Management Plan 2009 sets out our
proposed 25 year strategy for maintaining the balance between the
supply and demand for water in our region and maintaning our service
lavel This strategy includes reducing leakage, accelerating domestic
customer metering, improving the connectivity of our network and
increasing water efficiency by working with customers to install more
water efficient equipment and promote water conservation

For further information on this aspect of our business, wisit
www severntrent com/corporateresponsibility
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Group financial performance

Michael McKeon
Finance Director

Financial tughhghts

2008 2007 % change
Turnover* (£m) 1,552 4 1,4802 49
Profit* before interest, tax and exceptionals (£m) 4695 4053 158
Profit* before interest and tax (£m) 400 7 4300 (6 8)
Profit* before tax, exceptionals and gains/losses on financial instruments (£m) 2922 2520 160
Profit* befare tax (£m) 1924 3285 (40 9)
Earmings* per share before exceptionals, gains/losses on financial instruments and deferred tax (p) 978 824 187
Earmings* per share {p) B9 3 1061 (158)
Final dividend {p) 4129 3868 &7
Interirm dividend (p) 24 34 2277 69
Total dividend for the year (p) 6563 6145 68

*from continuing operations

Group turnover from continuing operatrons was £1,552 4 milhon
(£1,480 2 milhon), an increase of 4 9%, over last year The growth in
turnaver was mainly due to the price increases in Severn Trent Water
and grganic growth in the Water Purification business

Group profit from coentinuing operations before interest, tax

and exceptional stems increased by 15 8% to £469 5 million

(£405 3 million) Beyond the net increase in turnover, the factors
affecting profit before interest tax and exceptional items were

cost increases in Water and Sewerage partially offset by margin growth
in Water Technologies and Services and reduced corporate overheads
There were net exceptional charges of £68 8 miflion (exceptional

gain of £24 7 milhon) Group profit before interest and tax was

£400 7 milhon (£4300 miltion}

Water and Sewerage

Turncver in Water and Sewerage increased by 5 0% in 2007/08, to
£1,279 2 milion Sales prices increased by 5 87% (ncluding nflation)
from 1 April 2007

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems was up by 11 9% on
the previous year, to £462 3 mullion Beyond the increase in turnover,

a number of factors impacted proht before interest, tax and exceptional
tems, pnncipally a reduction in energy costs of £19 4 milhon, other
Ingreases in our cost base, net of effrciencies, of £21 2 miliion, an
inerease 0 (nfrastructure renewals expenditure of £13 1 mullien, and

a decrease in depreciatton charges of £3 1 milhon

During the financtal year, Severn Trent Water invested £567 million in
fixed assets and maintaining and impraving its mirastructure network
Included in this total was net infrastructure maintenance expenditure
of £111 2 muthion
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Adjusting for minor timing differences and modifications to the AMP4
capital programme {notified to Ofwat through the change control
pracess) we are on track to deliver thus programme gver the AMP4
period We continue to be in hne to achieve around 6% efficiencies
compared to Ofwat's Final Determination for AMP4

Water Technologies and Services

Turnover in Water Technologies and Services was £297 3 mullion in
2007/08, up 29% on 2006/07 Remowing the impact of changing
exchange rates, turnover rose by 5 7% On the same basis, turnover
in the US was up by 6 6% Turnover in the UK and rest of the world
was up by 5 3% through continued organic growth Around 3 7% of
Water Technologies and Services' turnover arose from customers

in the US

Water Technologies and Services’ profit before interest, tax and
exceptional items increased by 5 1% to £20 7 milion The impact
of changing exchange rates was immaterial

Corporate and other

Other Busingsses' turnover was down 48% to £5 2 milon Corporate
and Other incurred a toss before interest tax and exceptional items
of £11 2 million (£26 3 mullion)

Interest and tax - group profit

After net interest charges of £177 4 milon (£153 8 million) and share
of results of assgciates and joint ventures of £0 1 milion (£0 5 million),
group profit from continuing operations before tax, exceptional

iterns and gains/losses on financial instruments, increased by 16 0%
to £292 2 milhon (£252 0 million) Group profit from continuing
operations before tax was £192 4 million (£325 5 millign)




The total tax credit for the year was £18 2 million (charge of

£769 million) A current tax charge of £56 2 millien (£58 5 mullion}
was offset by a deferred tax credit of £74 4 million, {charge of

£18 4 million) Profit for the period from continuing operations

was £210 6 million (£248 & million)

The effective rate of current tax on continuing businesses, excluding
prior year ¢charges and exceptional items, calculated on profit before tax,
exceptional items and gains/losses on financial Instruments was 25 6%
(26 9%) The decrease in effective rate 15 a result of higher year on year
capital expenditure leading to a greater level of capital allowances Going
forward we expect the effective current tex rate for 2008/09 to be in the
range 25% to 27%

The Finance Act 2007 implemented a reduction in the corporation tax
rate from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008 The impact of
this rate reduction on the deferred tax provision has been reflected In
these financial statements and has resulted 1in a deferred tax credit of
£54 7 milhon in the income statement and £5 4 million to reserves

As well as the reduction in corporation tax rate, the 2007 Budget also
announced the phasing out of Industrial Bulldings Alfowances (IBAs)
However, the legislation to implement this change has not been enacted
and therefore nc adjustment to the deferred tax prowvision has been
made In respect of this We anticipate that the abolitton of IBAs wili
result 1n an increased deferred tax charge of around £168 rmillion in
2008/09 with a cash tax cost of over £12 mullion in the three years

to abelition

Discontinued operations

Net profit attributable to discontinued operations was £0 8 million
{(£20 miliien} The profit arose mainly from price adjustments relating
toe transactions compieted in the previous year

Earnings per share

Basi¢ earmngs per share from continuing and discontinued operations
were 89 7p (114 7p) Adjusted basic earnings per share from continuing
operations (hefore exceptional items, gains/losses on financial
instruments and deferred tax) were 97 8p (82 4p)

Exceptional items

There was a net exceptional charge, on continuing operatiens,
in the year to 31 March 2008 of £68 8 mullion (exceptional gain
£24 7 milhen) compnsing

@ costs of £35 8 million ansing from the proposed Ofwat fine
announced on 8 April 2008,

@ charge of £13 9 mitlion in Severn Trent Water and £1 G mullion in
corporate costs arising from the ongoing and developing programme
to restructure and realign the business by improving standards
though process improvement, enhancements to supporting
technology systems and facilibes, and the development and
retraining of cur people,

® costs, net of £160 million insurance recoveries, of £13 6 million
arising from the impacts of the flocding in the summer of 2007,

® charge of £4 5 million relating to third panly lega! costs incurred in
the conclusion of a Water Technologies and Services arbitration to
settle an interpretation on a long term operating service contract

Cash flow
2007
2008 Continuing Discontinued Total
£m £m £m £m
Cash generated
from operations 6459 4865 875 5740
Net capital expenditure 4396 (317 7) (338) (3515)
Net interest paid aso01) (157 8) 14 (156 4)
Tex paid (76 2) (29 6) (64) (360}
Other cash flows (12) 08 04 12
Free cash flow (21 2) (17 8) 491 313
Dividends (147 3} (7395) - (739 5)
Acguisitions and disposals - 1380 - 1380
Financing 8.2 100 - 100
Change in net debt
from cash flows (160 3) (6093) 491 (560 2)

Cash generated from operations was £645 9 milhon (£574 G million)
The increase In cash generated was principally as a result of lower
pension contributicns and an increase 1n working capital on the previcus
year Capial expenditure net of grants and proceeds of sales of fixed
assets was £439 6 mulbon (£351 5 milllion) Net interest paid decreased
to £150 1 million (£156 4 million) Tax payments increased compared
with the prior year to £76 2 million (£36 0 million} Dividends paid,
amounted to £147 3 rmillion (£739 5 milhon inciuding the special
dividend of £575 million) After the receipt of £8 2 million from share
1ssues (£10 0 milhon) and other cash outflows of £1 2 mithon (Inflow
of £1 2 millhon) net debt increased by £160 3 mullion (£560 2 million)

Net debt at 31 March 2008 was £3,432 8 million {£3,127 6 million)
Year end batance sheet geaning (net debt/net debt plus equity) was

74 0% (73 3%) Net debt, expressed as a percentage of 31 March 2008
Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) was 58 0% (56 4%), based on RCV

at 31 March 2008 of £5,922 millicn (£5,546 miliien) The group’s

net interest charge, was covered 3 7 times (3 9 times) by profit before
interest, tax, depreciation and exceptional items, and 2 5 times

(2 4 times) by prefit before interest, tax, and exceptional items
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Group financial performance continued

Pensions

The group has three defined benefit pension schemes, of which the
Severn Trent Pension Scheme (STPS) is by far the largest Formal
actuarial valuations were last undertaken for the STPS and another
scheme, the Severn Trent Senior Staff Pensien Scheme (SSPS), as at
31 March 2004 The valuations of these schemes as at 31 March 2007
are nearing completion

On an [AS 19 basis, the estimated net position (before deferred tax)

of all of the group's defined henefit pension schemes was a deficit of
£126 0 million as at 31 March 2008 This compares to a deficit of
£135 1 million as at 31 March 2007 See note 29 for details of the year
on year movement in this net position

Total cash contributions to the schemes in the year were £55 6 million
{£97 4 million)

The key actuanal assumptions were

2008 2007
Price inflation 34% 30%
Salary increases 4 9% 4 5%
Discount rate 6 4% 54%
Pension increases in payment and deferment 34% 30%
Expected return on equities 8 00% 825%
Age to which current pensioners aged 65
are expected to live
Men 851 847
Women 882 871
Age to which future pensioners currently aged 45
are expected to live
Men B59 849
Women 889 880

On an |AS 19 basis, the funding level has remained at around 91%
at 31 March 2008

As at 31 March 2008 the group's defined benefit pension schemes had
total assets of approximately £1,332 milhion and total liabilties of
approximately £1,458 million

The following table summarises the estimated impact on scheme
habilities resutting from changes to key actuanial assumptions whiist
holding other assumptions constant

Impact on

Changes in scheme

Assumption assumption labihibies
Discount rate Increase/decrease Decrease/Increase
by 0 1% by £25 milhon

Price inflation increase/decrease Increase/decrease
by 01% by £25 mullion

Monrtality Increase life expectancies ' Increase
by one year by £365 million
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Dwidends

An interim dividend of 24 34p (22 77p) was paid on 16 January 2008
The board 15 recommending the payment of a final dividend of 41 29p
(38 68p) to make a total dividend of 65 63p (61 45p excluding the
special dividend), an increase of 6 8%

Treasury management

The group’s treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance
with 1ts Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement The treasury
operation's primary role i1s to manage liquidity, funding, iInvestment and
the group's financial risk, including risk from volatility in interest and (to
a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty credit risk Its activities
are subject to a set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of the
borrowings and investments under its management The board
determines matters of treasury policy and its approval 1s required for
certain treasury transactions

It 1s the group’s strategy to access a broad range of sources of finance
to obtain both the quantum required and the lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued availabilty

The group's principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, (s a long
term business characterised by mult year investment programmes
The strategic funding objectives of the group must reflect this and the
lquidity position and the availability of commuitted funding are essential
to meeting its goals The group therefore seeks to attain a balance of
long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding
sources at the best possible economic cost

In the context of a mere general “liquidity crunch” today, the group 1s In
a strong liguidity pesition 1t has in excess of £600 million 1n cash and
liquid reserves and £580 mullion of undrawn committed bank facilities
During the year, and up to July 2007 when this market effectively closed
down, the group issued a further £400 mdhon of 50 to &0 year
maturities bonds to the index inked bond markets and index linked
bonds total £1,021 rullion at the balance sheet date The group also
borrowed £150 milhion from the Eurepean Investment Bank and £199
millon via a commercial bank loan The group also extended the range
of markets from where #t obtains funds through a February 2008 debut
€700 million eight year Eurobond 1ssue (entirely swapped into sterling)
This market 15 of strategic importance to the future funding of the group
and 1t was a successful first step into this market in what were
challenging markets at the time Average debt maturity 1s now I1n excess
of 20 years {2007 14 years) and the effective average interest cost
during 2007/08 was 5 B%




The group 1s well funded for the investment dernands of this price
review period and for those demands that will come with the next
Ofwat price review from April 2010

The group uses financial derivatives solely for the purposes of
managing nsk associated with financing its normal business activities
The group does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for
financial trading purposes The group uses a hmited number of
currency swaps and interest rate swaps to redenominate external
borrowings into the currencies and interest rate coupon required for
group purposes

The group's pelicy for the management of interest rate risk requires
that no less than 50% of the group's borrowings should be at fixed
interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps or
forward rate agreements At 31 March 2008, interest rates for some
70% of the group’s net debt of £3,432 8 million were so fixed, at a
weighted average interest rate of 5 9% for a weighted average penod
of 15 6 years This policy has been implemented by entering into a
portfolie of long dated interest rate swaps that hedge the group's
economic exposure to changes in (nferest rates However, these swaps
are not designated to particuiar hatuiities and hence do not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting under IAS 38 Consequently the swaps
are revalued at each balance sheet date and the change in fair value
15 taken to the income statement under gains/losses on financial
instruments In the year ended 31 March 2008 £24 3 million was
charged (£52 7 milhien credited) to the income staterment in respect
of such fair value movements

The group’s business does not involve significant exposure to foraign
exchange transactions Cross currency swaps are employed te
exchange foreign currency borrowings for sterling The group also
has investments in varous assets denominated in foreign currencies,
principally the US dollar and the eurg The group’s current policy 15
to hedge an element of the currency translation risk assocciated with
certain foreign currency denominated assets

The long term credit ratings of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent
Water Lid are

Severn Trent Severn Trent

Long term ratings Water Ltd Plc
Moody's confirmed rating in April 2008 A2 A3
Standard & Poor's A A-

Further details of the group's borrowings, investrnents and financial
instruments are contained in note 22 1o the accounts
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Accounting polictes and presentation of the financial
statements

The group’s financial staternents are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards that have been ratified by
the European Union [n the current year, the group has adopted IFRS 7
'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ which is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007, and the
consequential amendments to I1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes to
IAS 1 has been to expand the disclosures provided in these financial
statements regarding the group’s finanoa!l instruments and
management of capital (see note 22)

Exchange rates

Approximately 3% of the group's profit before interest, tax, goodwiil
amortisation and exceptional tems and 4% of its net assets are
denominated 1in US dollars The trading results of overseas subsicharies
are translated to sterhng at the average rate of exchange ruling during
the year and their net assets are translated at the closing rate on the
balance sheet date

Supplementary information

For supplementary information including the group's prehmminary
results presentation, see the Severn Trent website

www severntrent com

Michael McKeon
Finance Director
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Board of directors

1 Tony Ballance BSc (Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (43)

Tony jomed the board on 2 Cctober 2007 He joined Severn Trent Water
as Director of Regulation and Competition in August 2005 Prior to that
he was an economic consultant in the utilitres sector, working as a
Director for Stone and Webster consultants and London Economics

He was formerly Chief Economist, Office of Water Services (Ofwat)

2 Bernard Bulkin BS PhD FRSC FRSA FIE (66)*

Bernard joined the board on 1 January 2006 He s Chairman of AEA
Technology Plc, Chairman of Swedish company Chemrec AB and a
non-executive director of Accelergy Corporation in Califernia He 15 also
a Venture Partner at Vantage Point, an international venture capital firm
and a Commissioner on the UK Sustainable Development Commission
In 2003 he retired as Chief Scientist at BP Ple, where he had worked
for 18 years

3 Richard Davey BA (59)*

Richard joined the board as semor independent non-executive director
on 1 January 2006 He 1s non-executive Charrman of London Capital
Holdings Pic and a non-executive director of Yorkshire Building Society
and Amlin Plc He also served as a non-executive director of Freeserve
Plc from 1999 to 2001 and of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance
Society from 1996 to 2000 The majortty of his executive career was
spent in investment banking at N M Rothschild & Sons where he served
In various roles including Head of Investment Banking Prior to that, he
worked at various orgamsations including Mernll Lynch International
Limited and Exco International Plc

*non-executive director
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4 Sir John Egan MSc (Econ) BSc (68)*

Sir John joined the board in October 2004 and became Chairman on

1 January 2005 He is a director of Warwick Castle Park Trust Ltd and

Borwick Group Limited and a non-executive director of Governance for

Owners Group LLP He was previgusly Chairman of Incheape Ple and |
Harrnison Lovegrove & Co Ltd Sir John worked in the motor industry \
until 1990 at General Motors, Massey Ferguson and British Leyland,

nsing to become Charrman and Chief Executive of Jaguar Plc He was

Chief Executive of BAA Pic from 1990 to 1999 and Chairman of MEPC

from 1998 to 2000 He was also President of the Confederation of

British industry from 2002 to 2004 Sir John was knighted in the

Queen's Birthday Honours List in 1986 He is a deputy lieutenant of the

County of Warwickshire and since September 2007, Chancellor of

Coventry University

5 Martin Houston BSc MSc DIC (50)*

Martin joined the board n September 2003 He 1s Executive Vice
President and Managing Director of BG Group's Americas and Global
Liquefied Natural Gas business, and a member of therr Group Executive
Commuttee He joined BG Group in 1983 and has hefd a number of
techrical and commercial roles with a predominantly international
focus He 1s a fellow of the Geclogical Society of London and a
comparnson of the Institution of Gas Engineers and Managers

6 Martin Kane BS¢c CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIWO (55)

Martin joined the board on 2 October 2007 He has been Director of
Customer Relations, Severn Trent Water since May 2006 He jomed
Severn Trent Water in 1975, holding various posts including Head of
Networks, Director of Engineering and roles 1n the design, construction
and operation of water and waste water treatment plants, water
distribution networks and sewerage systems He is also a board
member of UK Water Industry Research Ltd and Utility and Service
Industries Training Ltd




7 Martin Lamb BSc MBA (48)*

Martin joined the board on 29 February 2008 He joined IM1, an
engineering Plc headquartered in Birrringham, in 1985 and was
appointed to thewr board in 1996 He became Chief Executive in January
2001 He has extensive experience of engineering and managed several
major businesses within the group before his present appointment

An honours graduate in Mechanical Engineering from Impernal College,
Londan, he also holds an MBA from Cranfield Business School He s a
former non-executive director of Spectris Plc

8 Michael McKeon MA CA (51)

Michael joined the board on 13 December 2005 as Finance Director
Prior to that, he was Finance Director of the builldings materials group
MNovar Plc He worked for Rolls Royce Plc from 1997 to 2000 in various
semor roles including Finance Director of the Aerpspace Group He has
extensive international business experience, having worked overseas for
CarnaudMetalbox, EIf Atochem and Price Waterhouse Michael 1s a
Chartered Accountant and a Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland He was appointed a non-executive director of
The Merchants Trust Plc, with effect from 1 May 2008

9 Baroness Noakes DBE LLB FCA (58)*

Sheila Noakes joined the board on 29 February 2008 She is the Senior
Independent Director of Carpetright Plc and a director of the Reuters
Founder Share Company Sheila has also been a non-executive director
of ICI Plc and Hanson Plc, and a member of the Court of the Bank of
England She is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and spent most of her career in KPMG where she
was a seruor partner until 2000

Remuneration Committee
Richard Davey (Chairman)
Bernard Bulkin

Sir Jehn Egan

Martin Houston

Fliona Smith {Secretary)

Board Commuittees

Audit Committee

Baroness Noakes (Charrman)
Bernard Bulkin

Richard Davey

Kerry Pornitt (Secretary)

Nominations Commttee
Sir John Egan (Charrman)
Bernard Bulkin
Richard Davey

Corporate Responsibility
Committee

Bernard Bulkin (Chairman)
Sir John Egan

Tony Wray Martin Houston

Kerry Pornitt (Secretary) Martin Lamb
Baroness Noakes
Tony Wray

Fiona Smith {Secretary)

10 Andy Srmuth BTech {Hons) (47)

Andy joined the board on 2 October 2007 He joined Severn Trent in
January 2005 and was appointed Director of Water Services in February
2007 Pnor to that he was a board member and Group HR Director with
Boots He has previously beld senior management roles 1n engineernng,
HR and production with Pepsi-Cola International, Mars and BP

11 Tony Wray BSc (Hons) (46)

Tony joined the board 1n March 2005 He was appointed Chief Executive
on 2 October 2007 Prior to that, he was Director of Networks at Eircom,
the Republic of Ireland's telephone operator He joined British Gas in
1983 and held various managerial positions With the estabhishment of
the gas transportation business, Transco, he became Director of Asset
Management, then National Cperations Director, before being appointed
to implement the merger integration of Lattice (Transco) and National
Grid Group into National Grid Transco

*non-executive director

Semor independent
non-executive director
Richard Davey

Management Commtiee
Executive Committee
Tony Wray (Chairman)
Tony Ballance

Nick Burraston

Peter Gavan

Len Graziano

Myron Hrycyk

Martin Kane

Alec Luhaste

Richard Martin

Michael McKeon

Alec Richmond

Andy Smith

Fiena Smith

Kerry Pornitt (Secretary)

General Counsel
and Company Secretary
Fiona Smith
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financiat
statements of the group for the year ended 31 March 2008

Principal activity
The principal activity of the group 1s the supply of water and the
treatment and drsposal of sewage

Detalls of the principal joint venture, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2008 appear 1n notes 20, 21
and 42 to the financial statements on pages 72 and 95

Business review

The Chairman’s staterment, the Chief Executive’s review and the report
and performance reviews for the group’s main businesses on pages 4
to 19 provide detatled information refating to the group and its strategy,
the operation of its businesses and the results and financial position

for the year ended 31 March 2008

Details of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group are set
out in the corporate governance report on pages 36 {o 37

All of the above are incorporated by reference in (and shall be deemed
to form part of) this report

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development, including amounts
capitalised as tangble fixed assets related to research and development,
amounted to £4 9 milhion (2007 £4 2 millien)

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive In relation to
the use of financial instruments by the company are set out In note 22
to the accounts on pages 73 to 81

Post balance sheet events
Detatls of post balance sheet events are set out in note 40 to the group
financial statements

Dividends

Anntenm dividend of 24 34p per ordinary share was paid on

16 January 2008 The directors recommend a final dividend of 41 29p
per ordinary share to be paid on 1 August 2008 to shareholders on
the register on 20 June 2008 This would bring the total dividend

for 2007/08 to 65 63p per ordinary share (2007 61 45p {excluding
the special dividend paid on 20 October 2006)) The payment of

the final dividend 15 subject to shareholder approval at the Anrual
General Meeting
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Capital structure

Details of the authonsed and 1ssued share capital, together with details
of the movements in the company’s 1ssued share capital dunng the
year are shown in note 31 to the financial statements on page 88 The
company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to
fixed iIncome Each share carries the right to one vote at general
meetings of the company The percentage of the 1ssued nominal value of
the ordinary shares is 100% of the total 1ssued nominal value of all
share capital

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the
transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions
of the articles of association and prevailing legislation The directors
are not aware of any agreements between holders of the company's
shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or
on voting rights

Details of employee share schemes are set out In note 35 to the
financial statements on page 90 Shares held by the Severn Trent
Employee Share Ownerstup Trust abstain from voting

No person has any special nghts of control over the company's share
capital and all ssued shares are fully paid

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors, the
company is governed by its articles of association, the Combined Code,
the Companies Acts and related legislation The articles may be
amended by special resolution of the shareholders The powers of
directors are described in the Matters Reserved to the Board, the
articles and the cerporate governance report on page 32

Under its articles of association, the directors have authority to 1ssue up
to 111,298,079 crdinary shares, subject to the aggregate nomenal
amount mit set at the 2007 AGM

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or terminate,
upon a change of control of the company, such as commercial
contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease arrangements and
employees share plans None of these are considered to be significant
in terms of their (Ikely ympact on the business of the group as a whole
Furthermore, the directors are not aware of any agreements between
the company and its directors or employees that provide for
compensation for loss of office or employment that occurs because
of a takeover bid

Directors and theiwr interests

Details of changes to the board during the year and of the directors
offering themselves for reappointment at the AGM are set out on
page 32

Details of directors’ service agreements are set out in the directors'
remuneration report on page 42

The interests of the directors in the shares of the company are shown
on pages 46 and 47

Biographies of the directors currently serving on the board are set out
on pages 26 and 27




Directors’ indemnities

The company's articles of association provide that directors of the
company shall be indermnified by the company against any costs
incurred by them in carrying out their duties including defending any
proceedings brought against them arising out of their positions as
directors in which they are acquitted or judgment 15 givent in their
favour or relief from any liabihty 1s granted te them by the court

Suppher payment policy

Indwvidual operating companies within the group are respensible for
establishing appropriate policies with regard to the payment of thewr
suppliers The companies agree terms and conditiens under which
business transactions with suppliers are conducted It 1s group policy
that provided a supplier 1s complying with the relevant terms and
conditions, including the prompt and complete submussian of all
specified documentation, payment will be made 1n accordance with
agreed terms It 1s also group policy to ensure that suppliers know
the terms on which payment witl take place when business 1s agreed
Detalls of supplier payment policies can be obtained from the individual
compantes at the addresses shown in note 42 to the financial
staterments on page 95 Trade crecitors for the group at the year

end are estimated as representing 35 4 days’ purchases

(2007 45 2 days’ purchases)

Contrnibutions for political and chartablie purposes

Donations to charitable organisations during the year amounted to
£412,471 (2007 £277,476) The group focuses on the development

of long term partnerships with charities close to its major sites which
reflect the three core aims of promoting the natural envircnment,
education and building communities The group 15 also committed to
supporting WaterAid, the UK’s only major charity dedicated to providing
safe domestic water and sanitation to the world's poorest peaple

In addition, in response to the floods of July 2007 Severn Trent Water
established a £3 5 million recovery fund for Gloucestershire Of the

£1 6 million paid during the financial year, approximately £1 1 rullion
was paid to charitable orgarisations in the Gloucestershire area

The remainder of the total denation to the Flood Relief Fund was

paid through Gloucestershire local authonties and Gloucestershire
First (a partnership between publc sector bodies and local businesses)
o support other recovery projects A further £1 9 milhon, as agreed

by the Severn Trent Water board, 1s due to be paid in the 2008/09
financial year

Severn Trent’s policy 1s not to make any donations for pehtical purposes
in the UK, or to donate to EU pohitsical parties or incur EU Political
Expenditure Accordingly neither Severn Trent Plc nor its subsidtaries
made any political donations or incurred political expenditure in the
financial year under review

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and Referendums
Act 2000 (the relevant prowvisions of which are now contained 1n Part XA
of the Companies Act 1985), shareholder authonty 1s required for
political donations to be made or political expenditure to be incurred by
the company or any of its subsidiaries in the EU and disclose any such
payments 1n the annual report The legistation gives a wide definition of
what constitutes political donations and polifical expenditure including
sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for
emplayees fulfilling public duties and support for bodies representing
the business community In pelicy review or reform The company

has therefore obtained imitec authonity from sharehelders as a

precautionary measure to allow the company to continue supporting
the community and such organisations without inadvertently breaching
the legisiation

At the 2006 AGM, shareholders gave the company authorities to make
paliticat donations or to incur political expenditure in the EU (which
woultd not ordinarly be regarded as political donations) up to an
aggregate annual hmit of £50,000 each for the company and its
subsidiary Severn Trent Water Ltd The authorities will expire at the
2009 AGM Pursuant to those authorities, during the year ended

31 March 2008 the group wncurred costs of nil (2007 nil)

Substantial shareholdings

As at 2 June 2008 the company had been notified in accordance with
chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the following
major shareholdings

Name of holder Percentage
of voling No of
nghts and ardinary
1ssued shares
share of 97%%sp Nature of
capital each holding
Pictet Asset Management SA 7601% 17,718,717 Indirect
AMVESCAP Plc 5200% 12,140,054 Indirect

Legal & General Group Plc 5010% 11,769,005 Direct
Barclays Plc 3610% 8412304 Indirect
Newton Investment Management Ltd  3050% 7,161,850 Indirect

Authority to purchase shares

The company was given authonty at its AGM 1n 2007 to make market
purchases of ordinary shares up to a maximum number of 23,432,281
shares Similar authonity will again be sought {from shareholders at this
year's AGM No market purchases were made by the company during
the year ended 31 March 2008

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 15 shown tn
note & to the financial statements on page 64

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive cuiture 15 a key factor
in being a successful business Apart from ensuring an individual has
the ability to do the job we do nct discriminate i any way and make
every effort to ensure that those with disabilities are able to be
employed by us We ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are available for all our employees irrespective
of thewr gender, race, age or disability

The group actively encourages employee involvement and consultation
and places emphasis on keeping its employees infermed of its activity
and financial perfarmance by way of briefings and publication to staff
of ali relevant information and corporate announcements To help
develop employees' interest in the company's performance, Severn
Trent offers two employee share plans The Severn Trent Sharesave
Scheme, a HM Revenue and Customs approved SAYE plan, 18 offered
to UK employees on an annual basis The Severn Trent Share incentive
Plan, approved by HM Revenue and Custorns, makes an annual award
of shares to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water Lid employees,
based on performance aganstthe KPis

Further details of arrangements relating to employee involvement are
described 1n the corporate responsibiiity report on pages 20 to 21
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Directors’ report continued

Auditors
In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the company
at the date when this report was approved

® so far as each of the directors 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit
informatton of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and

® each of the directors has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a director to make himseli/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establhish that the company’s
auditars are aware of that information

Relevant audit information means information needed by the
company's auditors in connection with prepaning therr report

Thts confirmation I1s given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP has indicated its willingness to continue as
auditors A resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at this
year’s AGM

The reappointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP has been approved by
the Audit Commuttee, who will also be respansibte for determining
their audit fee on behalf of the directors

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Ltd

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Ltd are prepared and
sent to the Water Services Regulatory Authornty A copy of these
accounts will be available from the website of Severn Trent Water Ltd
(www stwater co uk) or on written request to the General Counsel and
Company Secretary (at the address given on the back cover) There 1s
no charge for this publication

Going concern

The board has a reasonable expectation that the group and the
company have adequate resources to continue 1n cperational existence
for the foreseeable future Accordingly the financial staterments set out
on pages 48 to 95 and 96 to 105 have been prepared on the going
concern basis

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the company will be held at the International Convention
Centre, Broad Street, Birmingham Bl 2EA at 11 00am on Tuesday
22 July 2008 The notice convening the meeting, together with details
of the business to be considered and explanatory notes for each
resolution, 15 distributed separately to shareholders |t s also avallable
on the company's website www severntrent com

By order of the board

(b

Fiona Smith
General Counsel and Company Secretary
4 June 2008
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, directors’
remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable {faw and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements

for each financial year The directors are required by the IAS Regulation
to prepare the group financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by
the Eurcpean Union The group financial statements are also required
by law to be properly prepared 1n accordance with the Comparues Act
1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financia!
statements present fairly for each financial year the group's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and condition
In accordance with the defimtions and recogrition criteria for assets,
llabahities, incorme and expenses set out in the International Accounting
Standards Board's ‘Framework for the Preparation and Presentation bi.
Financial Statements' In virtually all circumstances, a tair presentatien
will be achieved by comphance with all apphicable IFRSs However,
directors are also required to

properly select and apply accounting policies,

present information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
infermation, and

provide additional disclesures when comphliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity's financial position and financial performance

The directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial
statements 1n accordance with Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) The parent company financial statements are required
by law to give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the company
In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgments and esttmates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements, and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis

unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue In business

20URLIDA0E)

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure that the parent company
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other wregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the company's website
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation

ther jurisdictions

Michael McKeon

2lnance DWQM
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Corporate governance report

Corporate governance

The board of directors of Severn Trent 1s committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance The board recognises that strong
corporate governance procedures and adherence to best practice are
1ntegral factors in improving group performance and mantaining
investor confidence

Comphance statement

This report describes how Severn Trent has applied the principles

of good corporate governance as set out in the Combined Code on
Carporate Governance issued by the Financial Reporting Cauncil in
2006 (Combined Code) Throughout the year ended 31 March 2008,
the company has complied with the Combined Code provisions

set out In section 1 of the Combined Code apart frorm the matter
detailed below

Foltowing the announcernent of the appointment of three additional
executive directors, made on 2 October 2007, the company did not
comply with provision A.3 2 which states that at least half of the board,
excluding the Charrman, should comprise non-executive directors
determined by the board to be independent As stated in the regulatory
announcement dated 2 October 2007, the board was actively engaged
tn appointing an additignal non-executive director to restore the balance
of executive and nan-executive directors Following the appointments of
Baroness Noakes and Martin Lamb on 29 February 2008, the company
camplied fully with the prowisions of the Combined Code

Organisation and structure

Board membership

The board consists of a non-executive Chairman, five executive directors
and five non-executive directors, ensuring an appropriate balance of
experience and independence

The company's articles of association reguire all directors to submit
themselves for reappointment at least every three years In addition
to this prowision, as a minimum, one third of the board of directors,
together with any director appointed since the last Annual General
Meeting, retires each year and, If eligible and so desires, stands for
reappointment at the AGM Directors retire on the basis of their length
of service since therr last election

Tony Ballance, Martin Kane, Martin Lamb, Baroness Noakes and Andy
Smith have all been appointed since the last AGM and offer themselves
for reappointment

Bernard Bulkin, Richard Davey and Michael McKeon are the directors
retiring by rotation and offer themselves for reappointment

The Neminations Committee has formally reviewed the performance,
contribution and commrtment of each of the retiring directors The
committee supports and recommends their reappointment ¢ the
board The committee has confirmed that each director standing for
reappointment continues to make a valuable contnbution to the board's
deliberations and continues to demonstrate commitment

The following also served as drrectors during the year

® Colin Matthews retired from the board as an executive director
and Chief Executwe on 2 October 2007

® John Smith retired from the board as a non-executive director
and Chairman of the Audit Commuttee on 29 February 2008

Biographical details for alt the directors currently serving on the hoard
are set out on pages 26 and 27
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Division of responsibilities

In accardance with the Combined Code, separate individuals, Sir John
Egan and Tony Wray, are appointed to the positions of Chairman and
Chief Executive respectively Cohin Matthews held the position of

Chief Executive untd his retirement from the board on 2 October 2007
The Chief Executive 1s responsitie for the executive management of
all of the group's businesses and for implementing board strategy
and paolicy within approved budgets and timescales The Chief
Executive 1s supported by and ¢hairs the Executive Committee During
the year the Executive Committee compnised the executive directors
and senior executive managers respensible for key central and
cperational functions

Directors’ independence

The board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and
considers them all to be independent in character and judgment and
within the definition of this term in the Combined Code

The Chairman and the non-executive directors contribute external
expertise and expenence in areas of importance to the group such as
corporate finance, general finance, corporate strategy, environmental
matters, general management and corporate governance They also
provide independent challenge and rigour to the board's deliberations

Richard Davey 1s the senior independent non-executive director He
chairs the Remuneration Committee and s a member of the Audit and
Nominations Committees The non-executive directors, led by the semor
independent non-executive director, meet at least once year, without the
Chairman present, where there 1S an opportunity for them to appraise
the Chairman's performance

Directors’ interests and remuneration

The directors’ remuneration report, which includes a statement on the
company's policy on directors’ and senior executive managers’
remuneration, is set out on pages 38 to 47 The remuneration report
also provides details of the directors’ service agreements, emoluments,
their interasts in the shares of the company and in awards or aptions
over such shares granted under the company’s incentive and employee
share schemes

No director had a matenal interest at any time during the year in any
contract of significance, other than a service contract as shown in the
drrectors” remuneration report on page 43, with the company or any

of its subsidiary undertakings

Directors' insurance and indemnities

Severn Trent purchases directors and officers’ liabihty and indemnity
insurance t¢ cover ts directors and officers agamst the costs of
defending themselves in cvi! proceedings taken against them in that
capacity, and in respect of damages resulting from the unsuccessful
defence of any proceedings

Directors’ terms and conditions of appointment

The terms and condittons of appaintrment of the directors are available
for inspection by any person at the company's registered offrce during
normal business hours and will be available at the AGM




Board meetings and attendance

The board has reguiar scheduled meetings throughout the year and
committees of the board are establshed to deal with specific 1ssues or
approvals, as and when necessary Dunng the financial year committees
of the board have considered such matters as final approval of the pre-
close trading statement, intennm management statement, appointments
to the board, results announcements and approval of announcements
relating to the SFO and Ofwat investigations Not all directors are

required to attend these additional meetings, but may do so If they
wish All directors receive notice of such meetings and have the
opportunity to comment on the matters under discussion The board
had eleven scheduled meetings and eight additional meetings of
committees of the board during the year Details of the board and
principal committees’ meetings attended by each director during
the year are set out in the table below

Board Commutiges Audit Remuneration Nominations Respcool:!":%'l?l:;

scheduled of the board Committee Comrnittee Committee Comrittee

Number of Meetings 11 8 7 7 4 4
Sir John Egan il & - 7 4 4
Tony Ballance! 5 3 - _ - -
Bernard Bullan 10 - 6 5 3 4
Richard Davey 11 3 7 7 4 -
Martin Houston 9 4 - 6 3 -
Martin Kane? 5 4 - _ - -
Martin Lamb? 2 - - - - _
Michael McKeon 11 8 - -
Baroness Noakes* 2 - 1 - - -
Andy Smuth® 5 3 - - - _
Tony Wray 11 5 - - - 1
Colin Matthews® [ 2 - - - 2
John Smuth? 8 1 6 - 3 -

1 - Appointed 2/10/07
2 - Appointed 2/10/07
3 - Appointed 29/2/08
4 - Appointed 29/2/08

5 - Appointed 2/10/07
6 - Resigned 2/10/07
7 ~ Resigned 29/2/08

Board procedures

The board has ulumate responsthility for ensuning that the company i1s
properly managed and achieves the strategic objectives it sets It has an
agreed schedule of matters reserved to 1t, which includes setting long
term strategic and business objectives, overseerng the company's
internal control systems and ensuring that appropnate resources are In
place to enable the company to meet its objectives

The Chairman has prime respansibility for the effective workings of the
board and agrees the agenda in consultation with the Chuef Executive
and General Counsel and Company Secretary

In addition to the AGM and an annual strategy day, the board meets at
least 10 times in each financial year and convenes additienal meetings
as and when required

Papers, Including minutes of board commttees held since the previous
board meeting and reports from each of the executive directors
responsible for the group’s operating businesses or key central
functions, are circulated in advance of each meeting In addition to the
board meetings, the Chairman meets with the non-executive directors
without the executive directors present

Board effectiveness

Induction

On joining the board, directors are provided with a comprehensive
induction pack, fadored to thewr individual requirements, including notes
on the group structure, operating businesses within the group, financial
reports and business plans, information on corporate governance and
group policies Meetings are arranged with members of the Executive

Committee and group departments who provide support to the relevant
board comrmuttees the directors may serve on Visits to operational sites
across the group are also arranged for directors joining the board

Continuing professional development

Regular seminars, arranged to coincide with board meetings, are held to
update and refresh the board's knowledge and understanding on a
variety of topics during the year The seminars are arranged and
conducted by the General Counsel and Company Secretary and
facilitated by an external consultant Senior executive managers,
appropriate to the materal being presented, are also 1n attendance
Recent serminars have covered topics including nsk management,
directors’ duties and habilities and competition in the water industry
Forthcorming seminars will address health and safety legislation and the
role of regulatory bodies including the FSA, UKLA and Ofwat

There 15 an agreed procedure in place which allow directors to take
independent professtonal advice in the course of therr duties and all
directors’ have access to the advice and services of the General Counsel
and Company Secretary Where a director has a concern over any
unresolved matter he/she is entitled te require the General Counsel

and Company Secretary to minute that concern Should the director
later resign over the 1ssue, the Chairman will bring 1t to the attentron

of the board
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Corporate governance report continued

Performance and effectiveness reviews

The board evaluated the conciusions from the review carned out in
2006/07 and took action in relation to the management information
provided to the beard and the board processes tdentified in it

Durmg the year the board, with the help of an outside facifitator,
commenced a formal evaluation of its performance and that of its
committees as well as the individual performance of directors Each
director answered a questionnaire an bus/her perception of the
composition, operation and effectiveness of the board and its
committees and on the performance of the chairmen of the board and
board cormmittees as well as individual directors in addition they were
interviewed by the facilitator to explore certain 1ssues n greater depth
and o wdentify areas requiring improvement Conclusions of the
evaluation are to be discussed i detail at the board, and individually
with the director and actions agreed to address any 1ssues raised

Collectively, the board 1s satisfied it has all of the necessary skills,
experience and qualities to lead the company

Board Committees
The board has established an effective committee structure to assist in
the discharge of its responsibiiities The terms of reference of the Audit,

Remuneration and Nominations Committees {the Principat Committees)

comply with the provisions of the Combined Code and are available for
inspection, together with the terms of reference of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee and Executive Committee, on the company's
website (www severntrent com) or may be obtained on written request
from the General Counsel and Company Secretary at the address given
on the back cover

Each of the Principal Committees has reviewed ts effectiveness and
terms of reference during the year and any necessary actions have
been identified and reported to the board

The membership of all board committees 1s set out on page 27

Principal Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Commiitee has been chaired by Baroness Noakes since her
appointment to the board on 29 February 2008 (previously chaired by
John Smith until his retirement) Its membership comprises Bernard
Bulkin and Richard Davey Only independent non-executive directors
may serve cn the committee Shena Noakes has been dentified by the
board as having recent and relevant financial experience

The cornmittee meets with the group’s external auditors at least four
times a year By invitation of the committee other individuals such as
the Chairman, Chief Executive, Finance Director, General Counsel and
Company Secretary and Director of Internal Audit will normally be 1n
attendance for all or part of those meetings The committee and the
Auditors also hold separate meetings without the attendance of
executive management

In their assessment of the independence of the auditors, the committee
recewves annually in writing details of relationships between the auditors

and the group, which may bear on the auditors’ independence and
receives confirmation that they are independent of the group as
reguired by International Auditing Standard 260

The committee annually approves the level of the auditors’ fees In
respect of the audit of the financial staterments of the group and its
subsicharies at the same time as considering the adequacy of the
auditors' proposed audit plan
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The group's policy 1s that the external auditors may not carry out work
which impairs their independence [n addition, any material project
work where fees payable to the auditors are hkely to exceed £100,000
must be approved by the Audit Committee Where fees are expected to
exceed £500,000 the project work would normally be the subject of a
competitive selection process The fevel of non audit services provided
by the aud:tors and the associated fees are considered annually by the
committee, in the context of the auditors’ iIndependence, as part of the
committee’s review of the adequacy and cbjectivity of the audit process
An analysis of fees payable to the auditors in respect of audit and non
audht services is pravided on page 63

It s the group's policy to seek rotation of the auditors' prmeipal
engagement partner as a matter of course every five years and of other
key members cf the audit team, where deemed appropriate by the
Aud:it Commuttee

The Audit Committee has, throughout the year, monitored the integrity
of the financral statements together with the company’s formal
announcements relating to its financial performance, paying particular
attention to significant reporbing judgements contained therein

The Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management process and
the process by which the board reviews effectiveness of the system of
internal control during the year ended 31 March 2008 and has reported
to the board on the ocutcome of thus review

The effectiveness of the group's internal audit function has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews annually the group’s forma! whistle
blowing policy that deals with allegations from employees relating to
breaches of the group’s Code of Conduct

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s ¢chaired by Richard Davey The other
members of the committee are Bernard Bullkun, Sir John Egan and
Martin Houston Only independent non-executive directors, and the
Chairman, who was considered independent on appointment, may serve
on the comrittee As allowed by the updated Combined Code, Sir John
Egan was appocinted to the committee on 3 November 2006 The Chief
Executive also attends Remuneration Committee meetings at the
invitation of the Remuneration Committee Chairman The commuttee
wili pormally meet at least four times a year

The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the board, the
Severn Trent policy on the remuneration of executive directors and the
Chairman of the board, and 1s consulted by the Chief Executive
regarding remuneration for the group's seniar executive managers

Further information on the activities of the Remuneration Committee
Is given In the directors’ remuneration repcrt on pages 38 to 47

The directors’ remuneration report also describes how the pningiples of
the Combined Code are applied 1n respect of remuneration matters and
ncludes a statement on the company's palicy on directars’ and senior
executive managers' remuneration, benefits, share scheme entittements
and penston arrangements

A resolution to approve the directors’ remuneration report will be
proposed at the AGM



Nomunations Commuttee

The Nominations Comrmittee 1s chaired by Sir John Egan and its
members are the Chief Executive and all non-executive directors A
minimum of two independent non-executive directors attend each
meeting, but all non-executive directors will attend meetings subject 1o
their avallatality Other executive directors, senior management and
external advisers may be invited to attend meetings as considered
appropnate The Nominations Commuttee has responstbihty for
considering the size, structure and compesition of the board of the
company, relirements and appointments of additional and replacement
directors, succession planning and making recommendations 50 as to
maintain an appropnate balance of skills and experience on the board
The committee meets at least three times a year

The board appointments made during the year in respect of
Bargness Noakes and Martin Lamb were undertaken using an
external search consultancy

Other Committees

Corporate Responsihility Committee

The Corporate Responsibility Committes 1s ¢chaired by Bernard Bulkin
and 1its members are Sir John Egan and Tony Wray Other executive
directors and senior management involved with managing businesses
or formulating policies within the group are regularly invited to attend
committee meetings The committee’s main responsibiiity is to develop,
review and promote policies to further the group’s envircnmental values
in its business, workplace and community engagement activities The
committee's terms of reference may he viewed on the company's
website (www severntrent com) Details of the group’s corporate
responsibility activities may be found on pages 20 to 21

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee, chaired by Tony Wray, oversees the
management of the group and is the decision making bedy for those
matters not specifically reserved to the board It operates within the
lirruts set out 1n the Group Authornisation Arrangements policy and
the committee’s terms of reference

Foilowing a review dunng the financial year the Executive Committee
adopted a new structure and now meets four imes each month,
focusing on a particular area at each meeting The main areas of focus
are strategy, business and financial planning, operational performance
and detaited reviews of operational and key central functions The
Executive Commitiee also agrees and reviews matters to be submitted
to the board

Detas of the membership of the Executive Committee are set out on
page 27

Shareholders

Relations with shareholders

The board recogmses the importance of representing and promoting
the interests of its shareholders and that it 1s accountable to
shareholders for the performance and activities of the company

The annual report and accounts I1s the pnincipal means of
communicating with sharehclders To coincide with the
e-communications maihing to shareholders in April 2008, which
allowed shareholders to decide whether they wished to receive
information from the company via the webisite or by post, the
company's wehsite (www severntrent com), was redesigned and
relaunched In May 2008 The relaunched website 15 now easier to
navigate and use and contains an archive of annual reparts together
with other information relevant to investors This includes
comprehensive share price information, financial results and financial
calendars Further shareholder information ¢an be found on pages
107 to 108, after the notes to the financial statements

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and
exercise their right to vote The notice of meeting and related papers
are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting
Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue
For the 2008 AGM a poll will be taken on each resolution Shareholders
present at the meeting will be able to register one vote per share held
using an electronic voting system Results of the poll on each resolution,
including details of the votes for and against registered prior to and at
the meeling, proxy votes and the number of abstentions will be
displayed at the meeting

Past AGMs have been well attended and, as part of the board's ongoing
commitment to the provisions ot the Combined Code, shareholders are
given the opportunity to meet with the board before the AGM
Presentations are made on the group’s activities and performance prior
to the formal business of the meeting Shareholders have the
opportunity to ask questions of the board and present their views The
chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees,
together with all other directors wilk normally attend the AGM The
exhibition area planned for the 2008 AGM will include informative, as
well as some interactive, stands based around a selection of the
company KPls and operational areas of the business

The company announces its results on a half yearly basis and complies
with its requirement to make intenm management statements
Presentations are made to analysts and shareholders following the
release of the interim and year end results The Chief Executive and
Finance Director meet shareholders duning the year The Chawman and,
if appropniate, the senior independent non-executive director are
available to meet shareholders if required The board receives written
feedback following meetings with institutional shareholders Major
shareholders are also able to meet with new non-executive directors

it required
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Corporate governance report continued

Internal control

Internal control and risk management

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s system of internai
control and for reviewing s effectiveness

The board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal cantrol,
including financial, operational, comphliance and risk management, at
least annually in accordance with the reguirements of the Combined
Code and the guidance set out within it The system of internal control
1s reviewed for effectiveness and adequacy

The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstaterment or loss, as 1t 1s
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of faillure te achieve
business objectives

The board reviews risk management and the effectiveness of the system
of internal control through the Audit Committee The board also keeps
under review ways In which to enhance the control and audit
arrangements in the group The Audit Committee receives reports every
six months from the Chief Executive on the significant risks faced by the
group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each of those
risks and an action plan to improve controls where this has been
assessed as necessary Any significant control weaknesses that have
been identified as requiring remedy are also reported to the Audit
Committee The aud:tors also report on significant controt 1ssues to this
committee The Internal Audit department provides objective assurance
and advice on risk management and control

The beoard confirms that procedures providing an ongoing process for
dentifying, evaluating and managing the principal risks faced by the
group have been in piace for the year to 31 March 2008 and up to the
date of the approval of the Annual Report

Key elements of the group's processes and procedures are

® clearly defined and communicated strategic and business
objectives,

® an organisation structure with clear lines of accountability and
responsibslity,

® performance management and succession planning systems,

@ regular, structured reviews of business risk by semor management

and the Executive Committee, including a self assessment of controf

effectiveness,

a scheme of delegated authority, approval of plans, budgets and

significant investments,

robust business planning including the identification and

impiementatien of relevant improvement alans,

manthly reporting and menitoring of financial results, regulatory

compliance and other operational performance indicators, and

independent assurance provided by both internal and external

audhitors
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During the course of the year, a new Risk and Compliance team has
taken steps to enhance the existing nsk management process, to
improve consistency 1N assessment and reporting and create greater
transparency around the nsk of non-comphance Graphics that set cut
the group's nisk profile and any sigmficant changes to this between
reporting periods have been designed to aid debate hy the Executive
Committee and Audit Committee twice a year In addition, we have
embarked upon a programme of work designed to better align risk
outputs with cther activities including Performance Momitoring,
Business Planning, Performance Management, Insurance, Business
Resilience and Internal Audit

Principal risks

Cur nsk management process has identified the following nsk factors
that could have a matenal adverse effect on our businesses, financial
condition, operations and reputation, as well as the value and hquidity
of our securities Not all of these factors are within our control and, in
addition, other factors besides those listed below may have an adverse
effect on the group Where the need for control improverment has been
identified, necessary action plans have been put in place

Changes in law or regulation in the countries and types of business
in which we operate could have an adverse effect on our business
and operations

Regulatory decisions i relation to our businesses, eg on the structure
of the water industry worldwide, on whether licences or approvals to
operate are renewed, whether market developments have been
satisfactonly implemented, on the level of permitted revenues for our
businesses, whether there has been any breach of the terms of a icence
approvai or other obligation, could have an adverse impact on the
results of our operations, cash flows, financial condition of our
businesses and the abilty to develop those businesses (n the future

The results of our operations depend on a number of factors relating
to business performance, including the ability to outperform
regulatory targets and deliver anticipated cost and efficiency savings
Earnings from our businesses will be affected by our ability to meet or
better our regulatory targets set by Ofwat, the Environment Agency,
Dninking Water Inspectorate and other regulators To meet these targets,
we rmust continue to improve management systems, processes and
operational performance In addition, earnings from our regulated
business also depend on meeting service quality standards set by
regulators To meet these standards we must improve service reliability
and customer service Increased anticipated earnings from our non
regulated businesses will be affected by our ability to deliver the growth
strategy for these businesses If we do not meet these targets and
standards, both our results and our reputation may be adversely
affected and penalties could be imposed




Various government environmental protection and health and safety
laws and regulations govern our businesses

These laws and regulations establish, amongst other things, standards
for drinking water and discharges into the environment which affect our
operations In addition, our businesses are required to obtain various
environmental permissions from regulatory agencies for their cperation
Environmental laws and regulations are complex and change fregquently
These laws and their enforcement have tended to becorne more
stringent over time, both 1n relation to their requirements and in the
levels of proof required to demonstrate compliance While we believe we
have taken account of the future capital and operating expenditure
necessary to achieve and maintain compliance with current and
foreseeable changes in laws and regulations, it 1s possible that new or
stricter standards could be imposed or current interpretation of exssting
legislation amended, which will increase cur businesses operating costs
or capital expenditure by requiring changes and modifications to their
operations in order to comply with any new environmental or health
and safety taws and regulations

The failure of our assets or our inability to carry out critical

operations could have a stgmificant impact on our firancial

position and our reputation

We may suffer a major fallure in any of our assets which could arise
from a faslure to deliver the capital investment pregramme for our
businesses or to maintain the health of our systems Any failure could
cause us to be in breach of a licence or approval and even incidents
that do not amount to a breach could result in adverse regutatory action
and financial consequences, as well as harming cur reputation Some of
our businesses control and operate water and sewerage networks and
undertake maintenance of the associated assets with the abjective of
prowding a continuous service The falure of a key asset could cause a
significant nterruption to the supply of services, which may have an
adverse effect on our operating results or financial position In addition
water supplies may, inter alia, be subject to contamination from the
development of naturaliy occurning compounds and pollution from man
made sources and these may have an adverse effect on our operating
results or financial position We could also be held liable for human
exposure to hazardous substances or other environmental damage

In addition, we are subject to other risks which are largely outside
our control, such as energy costs, the impact of climate change,
weather or unlawful acts of third parties, including terranst attacks,
sabotage or gther international acts which may also physically
damage our business ar otherwise significantly affect corporate
activities and, as a consequence, affect the results of our operations
or our financiat position

External factors could affect the group’s pension schemes and
adversely impact on our financial position

Pension assets and labilities (pre-tax) of £1,332 3 million and

£1,458 3 milion are held in the group's balance sheet as at 31 March
2008 Movements in equity markets, interest rates and life expectancy
could maternally affect the level of surpluses and deficits in the schemes
and could prompt the need for ihe group to make additional pension
contributions in the future The key assumptions used to value our
pension liabilities are set out In note 29 on pages 85 to 87

External financial market factors could adversely impact on our
financial position

The group's financial position and business results could be adversely
affected If 115 existing funding arrangements are materially altered

The main risks faced by the group 1n its treasury operations relate to
external conditions in the banking and capital markets or in the credit
rating of the water industry as a whole These factors could result in us
not being able to service our exsting debt, refinance our loans as they
fall due, raise new money to finance our actwities in the future, and
enter into derivative contracts to manage our financtal nsks

In addition, we could face materially igher interest rates and suffer
a financial toss
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Directors’ remuneration report

This report provides the information required by the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 1t also describes how the
principles of the Financial Reporting Council’'s 2006 Combined Code
on Corporate Governance (Combined Code} are applied by the
company n relation to directors’ remuneration and sets out the
remuneration policy for the year ended 31 March 2008 and, subject
to ongoing review, the current and forthceming financial years

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines, on behalf of the board,

the company's policy on the remuneration of executive directors

and the Chairman of the board The committee determines the total
remuneration packages and contractual terms and conditions for these

individuals The committee 1s also consulted on the remuneration policy

for the next band of senior executive managers The policy framework
for remunerating all senior executive managers Is consistent with the
approach taken for executive directors

The committee 15 comprised exclusively of independent non-executive
directors of the company, with the exception of Sir John Egan, the
company Chairman who was independent on his appointment to the
board The members of the committee during the year were

® Richard Davey
® Bernard Butkin
& Sir John Egan
® Martin Houston

With the exception of Sir John Egan, the committee members have
no perschal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in the
matters to be decided As stated above, as company Chairman,
Sir John Egan's fees are set by the commuittee and Sir John Egan
15 not party to this discussion In setting performance related
remuneraticn, the committee has regard to the provisions set out
in Schedute A to the Combined Code

Advisers

To ensure that the company's remuneration practrces are market
competitive, the commitiee has access to detailed external research
on market data and trends frem experienced specialist consultants

The committee has received matenal advice from Hewitt New Bridge
Street (a trading name of Hewitt Associates Ltd which acquired New
Bridge Street Consultants LLP, the committee’s advisers, on 18 March
2008) which have been appointed by the committee for the purpase
of providing this advice Hewitt New Bridge Street, the principal adviser
to the committee, has not provided any other services to the company
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The Chief Executive (Colin Matthews until 1 Octeber 2007 and Tony
Wray from 2 October 2007) and the Human Resources Director, (Sally
Smedley until € July 2007 and Alec Luhaste from 16 July 2007), also
attended some meetings to provide adwice and respond to specific
questions Such attendances specifically excluded any matter
concerning therr own remuneration The General Counsel and Company
Secretary acts as secretary to the committee

The committee’s terms of reference can be viewed on the company's
website at www severntrent com or requested from the General Counsel
and Company Secretary (at the address on the back cover)

Remuneration policy

The company’s continuing remuneration policy for executive directors 1s
to provide remuneration n a form and amount which will attract, retain,
motivate and reward high calibre individuals The remuneration package
Is based on the following principles

& incentives are aligned with the interests of shareholders and seek
to reward the creation of long term value,

® reward elements are designed to reinforce the link between
performance and reward Performance related elements should
form a significant proportion of the total remuneration package
and typically comprise at least 50% of total remuneration, if paid
al the maximum,

® the total remuneration package for on target performance should
be fully competitive, but not excessive, in the relevant market, and

@ packages are structured flexibly to meet critical rescurce needs
and retain key executives

Each year, the committee reviews the remuneration policy for executive
directors and other senior executive managers, taking into account both
the external market and the company's strategic objectives over the
short and the medium term

As explained In iast year's report, 1n 2007, the committee reviewed the
balance of performance refated remuneration for the executive directors
for 2007/08 They conciuded that it was important for the executive
directors to be focused on the achievement of specific strategic goals
from year to year, which are closely linked to the company’s 20 KPls
and intended to create a strong focus on the creation of operational
efficiencies This was achieved through a reweighting of performance
pay from longer term measures to more targeted annual measures
and and did not reflect a matenal increase 1n total target pay

The committee considered the arrangements again n early 2008

and concluded that those arrangements remain appropriate for

the 2008709 financial year




The chart below shows the expected values of salary, bonus and

long term incentives for target performance for the executive directors
The committee considers the mix between fixed and performance pay
to be appropriate

Chief
Executive

All other
executive
directors

0% 20% 40% 60% B0% 100%

[ salary[] Target bonus {cash)|_] Target banus (deferred shares) [ | Expected value of LTIP awards

Changes in 2007/08

Colin Matthews left the company on 2 October 2007 and receved

a payment of £846,000 This was calculated by reference to the
contractual prowisions which entitled him to 1 75 times hus base salary
for the notice period but reduced by two months to reflect an element
of mitigation In addition he received an allowance of £36,000 1n
respect of outptacement support and a contribution of £1,000 towards
legal fees Mr Matthews also receved a prorated bonus of £384,000
for the period from 1 Apnl to 2 October 2007, the details of which are
shown on page 40 The committee agreed that the LTIP awards made
to Mr Matthews on 5 September 2005 and 18 June 2006 should vest
on cormpletion of the normal performance penod and subject to
achievement of performance conditions and time prorating

Tony Wray was appointed Chief Executive on 2 October 2007 His salary
on appointment was £410,000, reflecting his transition into the CEQ
role and the dimensions of the restructured organisation

Also from 2 October 2007 Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith
were appointed as executive directors on salaries of £160,000,
£175,000 and £240,000 respectively

Personal shareholdings

The company operates shareholding guidehnes under which executive
directors are expected to build and mantain a mintmum holding of
shares in the company The Chief Executive I1s expected to build and
maintain a holding of shares to the value of 1 5 x base salary and other
executive directors 1 x base salary Executive directors are expected to
retain at least half of the shares they receive through the Long Term
Incentive Plan or other share based plans until they meet the guideline
holdings within five years If insufficient shares are awarded within five
years then this imescate will be extended

External directorships

Executive cirectors are encouraged to take on external non-executive
directorships, though normally only one other FTSE 100 appointment
In order to avoid any conflicts of interest, all such appointments are
subject to the approval of the Nominations Committee Executive
directors are normally only permitted to retain the fees ansing from one
such appointment

Michael McKeon was appointed as a non-executive director of The
Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 Accordingly, he did not recewve any
fees In respect of the appointment for the year ended 31 March 2008

No other executive directors currently hold any external
non-executive directorships

Rermuneration arrangements for executive directors
The remuneration arrangements for executive directors comprise
the following elements

® Base salary and benefis
® Annual bonus plan

® Long Term Incentive Plan
® Pension

Detalls of each of the above elements are as follows

Base salaries and benefits

Base salaries for indwidual directars are rewewed annually by the
remuneration cammittee and teke effect from 1 July The company's
policy 1s to set the salary for each executive director having regard to
the market median for similar roles in publicly quoted companies of a
comparable size and, so far as practical, undertaking similar activities
Salaries are set with reference to individual performance, experience
and contribution, together with developments in the relevant
employment market and internal relativities
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive directors’ salaries have recently been reviewed for the
financial year 2008/09 They are as follows

Salary wef
Dtrector July 08 In¢rease
Tony Ballance £168,000 5 0%
Martin Kane £185000 57%
Michael McKeon £425,000 63%
Andy Srmith £250,000 42%
Tony Wray £450,000 9 8%

Tony Wray's increase reflects his performance and ongoing progression
into the Chief Executive’s role Michael McKeon’s increase reflects
prevalling executive inflation and his performance 1n the role durng

a year of sigmficant transition

In 2007/08 there were 11 executives immediately below board (avel
(including Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith prior to therr
appointments to the board) whe were paid salaries of between
£100,000 and £250,000 per annum

Salary £000 Number of executives
100-150 3
151-200 3
201-250 5

The non salary benefits for executive directors comprise a company
car or allowance, fuel, private medical insurance, life assurance and an
incapacity benefits scheme Private medical insurance and some other
benefits may be flexed under the company’s flexible benefits scheme

Annual bonus plan 2007/08
As explained in last year's report, executive directors are eligible for
annual benuses to encourage improved performance, with targets

established by the committee to align executive directors’ interests with

shareholders The annual benus opportunity for all the executive
directors was 120% of salary (other than Cohin Matthews whose bonus
potential was set at 150%; to reflect the fact that he did not recewve an

LTIP award) For the achievement of target performance (which requires

satisfaction of challenging KPI goals), 60% of salary would be earned
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In addrtion, 50% of any bonus paid will be deferred into shares to be
held for three years following payment and subject to continued
employment unless the committee determines 1t 1s appropriate te
release the shares in ‘good leaver’ cases

The bonus outturn s operated by reference to a balanced scerecard of
measures, based on 18 of the 20 KPIs outhned earlier {of the KPls histed
on pages 10 and 11, first hme job resoluticn % and capital process
quality {no defects per 100k) were excluded from the outset} The plan
attributes a points score to each KPJ and bonus entitlement 1s
determined by reference to the aggregate number of points achieved
across all the KPis All of the targets are considered by the board to
have an impact on the {onger term financial performance of the
company and a number of thern are reported to Ofwat

The commuttee reserved the discretion by exception to reduce (but not
increase) bonus payments If health and safety targets were not fully met
or If the company's overall financial performance was not felt to warrant
the indicative level of bonus

In 2007/08 the company’s performance against the basket of 18 KPIs
used In the annual bonus scheme was below target As a consequence,
executive direclors received a bonus payment of 35 6% of thewr bonus
maximium The actual bonus payments awarded to each director are
contained in the table of emoluments on page 44

Consistent with the latest developments in institutional gutdelines, the
rules of the annual benus plan new provide that the committee may
reclaim seme or all of the after tax part of any bonuses awarded to
executive directors If 1t subsequent!y transpires that the bonus
calculation was based on calculations which are subsequently
demenstrated to be materally incorrect

Annual bonus payrnents to executive directors are not pensionable

Colin Matthews' bonus arrangement reflected the fact that be left the
company i October 2007 His annual bonus maximum for 2007708
was 150% and he was set specific personal targets The commuttee
determined that these targets had largely been met and awarded a
bonus of 88% of maximum Details of his bonus payment, which was
prorated to reflect his tength of service during the year, are contained
In the table of emoluments on page 44



Annual bonus plan 2008/09

The committee has reviewed the operation of the plan and concluded
that the same structure and gquantum should apply in respect of
2008/08 with a maximum bonus opportunity for all executive directors
of 120% of salary and a target of 60% In respect of thes year, all

20 KPIs will be reflected in the bonus

Long term incentives

At the 2005 Annual General Meeting, shareholders approved the
introductton of the Long Term Incentive Plan 2005 (LTIP 2005}, which
replaced the 1997 Long Term Incentive Plan Under the LTIP 2005,
annual conditional awards of performance shares may be made to
executive directors and sentor staff, up to an annual maximum limit of
shares worth 125% of base salary

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect
dividends paid through the performance penod an the basis of such
notonal dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price
Awards will normally vest as soon as the commuttee determines that the
performance conditions have been met provided that the participant
remains N employment at the end of the performance pericd

2007 and 2008 LTIP awards

As outhined in the policy section above and disclosed 1n last year's
report, the committee reviewed the balance of vanable pay for 2007/08,
and concluded that whilst it did not wish to materially alter the overall
quantum of remuneration for the executive derectors, it wished to
rebalance performance more towards focused, short term targets
Accordingly, LTIP awards of 50% of salary were made to Michael McKeon
and Tony Wray 1n 2007 Colin Matthews did not recerve an LTIP award

n 2007

In 2008, 1t 1s anticipated that LTIP awards of 50% of salary will be made
to the executive directors and 70% to the Chief Executive, Tony Wray

In determining the performance conditions, the committee reflected on
the recent restructuring of the group and the fact that there are fewer
UK hsted utilities companies

The vesting of awards made in 2007 and 2008 will therefore be subject
to Total Shareholder Return (TSR), measured refative to those companies
ranked 51-150 in the FTSE by market capitalisation {excluding
investment trusts) This s felt to be the most suitable comparator group
since the number of comparable regulated utilities against which to
compare the company's performance 1s now too small to enable
meaningful analysis The performance measures remain unchanged
with 25% of awards vesting at mecian perfermance, and 100% vesting
for performance in the upper quartile In addition, for awards to vest,
the committee must be satisfied that the company's TSR s reflective

of the company's underlying performance

After the end of the performance penod, the performance condition will
be measured and independently verified by Hewitt New Bridge Street on
behalf of the committee

2005 and 2006 LTIP awards

With regard to the 2005 LTIP awards, the performance condition
applying to half of the award measures Severn Trent’'s TSR relative to
the following companies AWG, BOC Group, BT Group, Diageo, Kelda,
National Grid, Northumbrnian Water, Pearson, Pennon Group, Rentoki!
imibial, Scottish and Newcastle, Scottish and Southern Energy, Scottish
Power, Shanks Group, Unilever and United Utiities, (with 25% of
award If Severn Trent 1s at median and full vesting at upper quartile)
Companies which delist over the period are replaced from the date of
delisting by the next ‘highest yield' company The remaining

50% of awards are subject to Econamic Profit (EP) targets, the details
of which have not been disclosed due to commercial sensitivity 25% of
the EP awards vest at the pre-determined threshold EP, with full vesting
at stretch

The performance condition applying to the 2006 awards 1s wholly
dependent on Severn Trent's TSR relative to the following FTSE 100
‘tugh yield' companies AWG, BT Group, Centrica, Compass, Kelda,
Naticnal Grid, Northumbnan Water, Pennon Group, Rentokit Initial,
Scottish and Mewcastle, Scotish and Southern Energy, Scottish Power
and United Ubilittes The commitiee has agreed to use Rexan and

Tate & Lyle as substtutes for Scottish Power and Kelda Should further
delistings occur, Cable and Wireless, Pearson and Diagee will be used
as the next substitute comparater companies

Performance graph

This graph shows the value, by 31 March 2008, of £100 invested in
Severn Trent Plc on 31 March 2003 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 100 Index The FTSE 100 was chosen as the
comparator because the company (s a constituent of that index

Total shareholder return
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All employee share plans
Through a variety of share schemes, employees are encouraged to hold
shares in the company

in 2007 the company retaunched an all ernployee Share Incentive Plan
which included a performance conchition based on achievernent of 18
of the 20 KPls Employeges of Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water
Ltd participate in the plan

For the year 2007/08, awards oi shares to the value of £268 will be
made to all ehgible employees

The company also offers an all employee HMRC approved SAYE plan on
an annual basis and periodically reviews the use of other all employee
incentive vehicles

Hedging of awards

Details of the company’s shares that are held tn trust on behalf of
participants of certain of the employee share schemes are given on
pages 46 and 47 In respect of the LTIPs, the company’s policy 1s to
purchase, and hald in trust, 50% of the total number of shares that
could potentiatly vest from all eutstanding LTIP awards The requirement
to purchase shares 1s calculated, and the purchase carried out, shortly
after each annual award
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

In respect of awards made under the company’s Share Incentive Plan,
alt the shares taken up by employees at each invitation are purchased
and placed In trust immediately

The company grants SAYE options over unissued shares, always
operating within the didution mits contained 1n the scheme rules

The committee is satisfied that the overall didution lirmits provide
sufficient headroom for all the company's share schemes

Pensions

Of the current executive directors, Andy Smith and Tony Wray
participate tn the Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme

The scheme 15 a funded HMRC registered final salary occupational
penston scheme which prownides

® A normal retirement age of 60 years

@ An overall pension at normal retirernent age of two thirds of
final pensionable salary, which for executive directors 1s defined
as base salary only, subject to the completion of 20 years'
penstonable service

® Life cover of 4 x pensionable earntngs

® A pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds
of il health

® A dependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the
member’s pension

Andy Smuth and Tony Wray participate up to the level of the scheme
specific earnings cap ("the Cap") which in 2007/08 was £112,800
They are provided with a cash supplement in lieu of pension
entitlernent above the Cap at 40% of their respective salanes

Mermbers’ contnbutions are payable at the rate of 6% of pensiochable
earnings Early retirement s available after the age of 50 with the
consent of the company Any pension would be subject to a reduction
that the Trustee considers appropriate, acting on actuanal advice, to
reflect the expected longer payment of the pension In the event of
Incapacity, early retrrement i1s avallable on an unreduced basis ailowing
for pensionable service to age 60

Under the Trust Deed and Rules, pensions in payment 1n excess of
any Guaranteed Mimmum Pension are guaranteed to Increase in ine
with price inflation subject to a maximum of 5% each year In the
calculation of individual cash equivalent transfer values, allowance

15 made for such increases

As disclosed 1n last year's remuneration report, the company reviewed
Its pension policy for directors and employees as a result of the
Pensions Act 2004, Finance Act 2004 and the results of the triennial
valuation of two of its main schemes dunng 2004 As a result of this
review, new executives are offered an allowance, expressed as a
percentage of base salary, to fund their own pensien provistan The
individual 1s able to choose whether the allowance 1s paid to the
company’s regrstered defined contribution scheme, taken as cash or
paid to a personal pension arrangement This reflects the wish of the
committee to remove future exposure to defined benefit schemes for
senior executives The new arrangements apply to Michael McKeon at
40% of base salary
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Martin Kane is a member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (WPS
Section) but ‘opted out’ of the scheme in June 2007 He receves a cash
supplement of 30% of his basic salary in heu of accrual for future
service frorn that date While he no longer accrues additional years of
service for pension purposes, consistent with the legislabion, Mr Kane's
accrued benefits generally continue to be linked to his final salary (or
£161,000 plus RPI from 30 June 2007 to the date of his retirement,

if hugher) and schemea benefits are preserved in relation to ifl health
retirement and death 1n service His normal retirement age 1s 65
although early retirement 1s possible prior to age 60 with the consent
of the company, but any benefits relating to senvce accruing after

1 December 2006 would be subject to an actuanal reduction

Tony Batlance 15 2 member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme
(Pension Choices secticn) which 1s the company’s defined contribution
scheme Dr Ballance currently contributes 3% of salary and the
company contrnibutes at 30%, plus a further 2 5% in respect of death

in service and Ill health benefits Total employer's pension contributions
in respect of Tony Ballance for 2007/08 were £26,000 The normal
retirement age for the scheme 1s 6% although retirement prior to 65

15 possible with the consent of the company

Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointment

A model service contract was approved by the committee in 2004 and
updated during the financial year Service agreements for all executive
directors have notice periods of 12 months from either party They also
provide for a maxmum damages payment in the case of redundancy
or termination in breach of the agreement by the company of up to
175% of base salary which was calculated as a conservative estimate
of the value of selary, fixed benefits and on target bonus The mode!
contract was reviewed and updated in early 2008 as part of a penodic
legal review Contracts for executive directors are, in all material
respects, similar

The reference to 175% 1s a cap and any damages payments will not be
made automatically but will be subject to both phasing and mitigation
unless, in the circurnstances, the commuttee considers 1t appropriate to
achieve a clean break through payment of a lump sum 1n which case 1t
will require some discount for early payment Contracts also perrmit the
committee to take into account a view of the extent of poor
performance on the part of the executive director There are no specific
contractual payments or benefits which would be triggered in the event
of a change n control of the company Any damages payment will not
nclude amounts in respect of awards which have been made under the
company's Long Term Incentive Plan over which the committee retains
discretion The committee believes that the contracts provide as much
scope as 15 feasible to protect the mnterests of shareholders when
negotiating a termination, at which time it would address the duty

of mitigation




Detalls of the current executive directors’ agreements are as follows

Executve directors Date of agreement Etfectve date Expiry date
Tony Ballance 2 June 2008 23 July 2005 Terminable on 12 months' notice
Martin Kane 2 June 2008 30 Septernber 1975 Terminable on 12 months’ notice
Michael McKeon 6 December 200% 13 December 2005 Terminable on 12 months' notice
Andy Smith 2 June 2008 1 January 2005 Terminable on 12 months' notice
Tony Wray 20 May 2008 7 March 2005 Terminable on 12 months’ notice

Tory Ballance, Martin Kane, Michael McKeon and Andy Smith are the subject of reappointment as executive directors at the forthcoming AGM

Details for the executive directors who ceased to serve on the board duning the year are as follows

Executive director Date of agreement Effectve dale Expiry date
Colin Matthews 3 June 2004 6 Septermber 2004 2 QOctober 2007

Chairman and other non-executive directors
The remuneration policy for non-executive directors, other than the Chairman, is determined by the board, within the limits set out in the articles
of association

Remuneration for non-executive directors, other than the Chairman, compnises an annual fee for acting as a non-executive director of the company
and additional fees for acting as

® Chairman of a board commuittee (£1 5,000 pa for the Audit and Remuneration Committees and £10,000 pa for the Corporate
Responsibiity Commuttee)

& Member of a board committee who 1s not the chairman of that committee (£3,000 pa per committee other than for the Nominations
Commuttee for which no fee 1s paid)

® Senior independent non-executive director (£10,000 pa)

During the year, Sir Jechn Egan was paid {ees of £230,000 for his role as Chairman He does not receive any additional fees for committee
memberships Sir John 1s pronded with a company car but does not participate in any of the company's pension arrangements, share
or bonus schemes

Richard Davey received fees of £68,000 His fees included the additiona! fees for chairing the Remuneraton Comsmittee and being the senior
independent non-executive director

Save for John Srmith, whose fees prior to 1 Apnl 2007 were paid directly to his employer, non-executive directors historically received 90% of their
total fees in cash and the remaining 10% has been used to purchase shares in the company A similar arrangement was in place for the Chairman
but with 853% of fees paid in cash and 15% used to buy shares in the company From 1 April 2008 the board decided to cease requiring directors
to take fees In shares and, instead, will leave decisions regarding the holding of shares to indwvidual non-executive directors
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Non-executive directors do not participate in share or bonus schemes, nor 1s any pension provision made

Non-executive directors normally serve three three year terms They do not have service contracts however their terms of engagement are
regulated by letters of appointment, details of which are shown below

Chairman and

nan executive directors Initial appointment Current appointment Current expiry date*
Sir John Egan 1 October 2004 1 January 2008 31 December 2010
Bernard Bulkin 1 January 2006 1 January 2006 31 Decermber 2008
Richard Davey 1 January 2006 1 January 2006 31 December 2008
Martin Houston 1 September 2003 1 September 2006 31 August 2009
Martin Lamb 29 February 2008 29 February 2008 28 February 2011
Baroness Noakes 29 February 2008 29 February 2008 28 February 2011

*subject to the requirements of the company's articles of association for the reappointment of directors at Annual General Meetings

Details for the non-executive director who retired from the board during the year are as follows

Non-executive director Initial appointment Last appointment Date retired

John Smith 3 Novernber 2003 3 November 2006 29 February 2008

The text and tables that follow cormprise the auditable part of the directors' remuneration report, being the infarmation required by the UKLA
Listing Rules 386 and 988

Directors’ emoluments
Basic salary and fees'

Annual  Termination Total Total
Cash Shares Total BIKs? bonus* payment QOther* 2007/08 2006/07
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Chairman and other

non-executive directors
Sir John Egan {Chairman) 1855 345 2300 263 - - - 2563 2564
Bernard Bulkin 504 56 560 - - - - 560 510
Martin Houston 387 43 430 - - - - 430 430
Martin Lamb (app 29 208) 31 03 34 - - - - 34 -
Baroness Noakes {app 29 2 08} 43 G5 48 - - - - 48 -
Richard Davey 612 68 680 - - - 08 688 647
Marisa Cassoni {left 6 1006) - - - - - - - - 238
John Smith (left 29 2 08) 504 - 504 - - - - 504 550
Martin Flower ({left 10 6 06) - - - - - - - - 226
Executive directors

Tony Ballance (app 2 1008) 794 - 794 101 343 - 71 1309 -
Martin Kane {(app 21008) Bo69 - 869 35 375 - 322 1601 -
Michael McKeon 3925 - 3925 73 i713 - 151 586 2 7047
Andy Smith (app 21008} 1191 - 1191 23 514 - 320 2048 -
Tony Wray 3488 - 3488 171 1521 - 1025 6205 4199
Martin Bettington ({left 6 10 06) - - - - - - - - 2481
Rachel Brydon-Jannetta® (left 29 12 06} - - - - - 1020 - 1020 414 8
Cobin Matthews (left 21008) 2892 2892 39 3840 8460 1466 1,669 7 1,2021
1,7195 520 17715 705 8306 948 0 3363 3,956 9 3,506 1
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1 Included withun fees for the non-executive cirectors are amounts to be received by way of shares rather than cash The gross value of the shares 1s recorded (n the table above
Non executive directors who were either appoeinted or retired duning the year received a ime apportioned award The number of shares received by each director was

Ordinary shares

of 97%p
Sir John Egan 1,501
Bernard Bulkin 315
Richard Davey 289
Martin Houston 181
Martin Lamb 12
Baraness Noakes 18

2 Benefits in kind received by Sir John Egan comprise the use of a company car Benefits in kind for executeve directors comprise the use of a company car, fuel private medical
insurance, life assurance and an incapacity benefits scheme Certain directors receive an allowance In fieu of a company car (see 4 below)

3 Colis Matthews' bonus 1s payable in cash The other directors receive 50% of their bonus in cash and 50% 1s deferred into shares to be held for three years and subject to
continued employment or good leaver provisions

4 Other emoluments include expenses chargeable to income tax allowances in heu of a company car, travel atlowances relocation expenses, telephone allowances, payments
made under the group's flexible benefit arrangements, amounts paid in heu of pension cantributions, contribution to legal fees and outplacement support Included in other
emaluments are

® Richard Davey - expenses chargeable to income tax £798

® Colin Matthews — amounts received in lieu of pension contnbutions £92,794 allowance in heu ¢f company ¢ar £9,130, taxable expenses £154, travel allowance £7,609,
contnbution to legal fees £1 000 and outplacement suppart £36,000

® Michael McKeen - allowance in lieu of company car £15,000 and taxable expenses £113

® Tony Wray — amounts receved 1n lieu of pension contribubions £94,380, flexible benefits payments £3,314, allowance 1n lieu of company ¢ar £1 250 and compensation for return
of fuel card £3 600

® Andy Srmith - amounts recewed in lleu of pensicn contributions £25 256 allowance 1n leu of company car £6 676 and taxable expenses £61

® Marlin Kane - amounts received in heu of pensicn contnbutions £26 059 allowance in heu of company car £3 929 flexible benefits payments £2,215 and taxable expenses £6

#® Tony Ballance - flexible benefits payments £3,454 and compensation for return of fuel card £3 600

5 Represents amounts paid under an agreement settled in 2006/07

Directors’ pension provisions

Increase/ Increase/

{decrease} (decrease)

Service In accrued Transter Transfer n transfer

completed Increase pension value of value of value

In years Accrued n accrued dunng accrued accrued over the

(including pension at pension the year pension at pension al year net

transferred 31 March dunng (net of 31 March 31 March  of directors’

N service 2008 the year inflation} 2008 2007 contributions

credits) Epa ipa £pa £000 £000 £000
Martin Kane 35 96,129 1,339 (2,358) 8295 8771 (498)
Andy Smith 3 12,27 4,084 3,767 1095 781 247
Tony Wray 3 11,538 4,050 3,758 877 673 236
Transfer

Increase/{decrease) value of increase

Accrued pension
at 31 March 2008

Increase n
accrued pension
during the year

In gocrued pensien
during the year
(net of inflation)

1N accrued benefits
net of directors
contnbutions

£pa £pa £pa £000
Martin Kane 96,129 1,339 (2,358} 94
Andy Smith 12,217 4,084 3,767 298
Tony Wray 11,538 4,050 3,758 275
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

The directors of the company at 31 March 2008 and their beneficial interests 1n the shares of the company were as follows

1) Beneficial holdings
At 1 Apnl 2007

{or date of appointment if later) At 31 March 2008 At 2 June 2008
Number of ordinary Number of ordinary Number of ordinary
shares of 97'%p each shares of 97'%sp each shares of 973%p each

Chairman and other non-executive directors
Sir John Egan (Chairman) 6,109 7,610 7,610
Bernard Bulkin 239 554 554
Richard Davey 299 588 588
Martin Houston 1,086 1,267 1,267
Martin Lamb - 12 12
Baroness Noakes - 18 18

Executive directors

Tony Ballance - - -
Martin Kane! 5,292 5,292 5972
Michael McKeon - - -
Andy Smith - - -
Teny Wray - - -

1 Martin Kane acquired 306 shares on 2 May 2008 following the exercise of his 2003 5 year sharesave scheme oplion He also acquired 374 shares on 2 May 2008, following the
exercise of his 2005 3 year sharesave scheme option

The executive directors have further interests in the company’s ordinary shares of 97%sp each by wirtue of having received contingent awards

of shares under the Severn Trent Plc Long Term Incentive Plan The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis The Severn Trent Employee Share
Ownership Trust 1s operated in conjunction with the LTIP Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three years and specific
performance criteria have been satisfied

Executrve directors have a technical interest in 768,910 shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust The details of the performance
criterna are explatned on page 41 of the remuneration report The individual interests, for the current executive directors and for the

executive directors who left during the year, which represent the maximurn aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become
entitled, are as follows

Maximum outstanding

Awards Maximum Awards Awards  awards as at 31 March 2008

granted awarg vested lapsed or earher date of leaving

Tony Ballance 5 September 2005 6,025 - - 6,025
19 June 2006 4,782 - - 4,782

18 July 2007 3,261 - - 3,261

Martin Kane 5 September 2005 5,897 - - 5,897
19 June 2006 4,680 - - 4,680

18 July 2007! 3475 - - 3,475

Michael McKeon 19 June 20062 36405 - - 36,405
19 June 2006 30,118 - - 30,118

18 July 2007! 12,363 - - 12,363

Andy Smith 5 September 2005 12,307 - - 12,307
18 June 2006 12,210 - - 12,210

18 July 2007! 5,881 - - 5,881

Tony Wray 5 September 2005 17,548 - - 17,948
19 June 2006 22.385 - - 22,385

18 July 2007! 9,189 - - 9,189

Colin Matthews 15 December 2004 52600 - {52,600) -
5 September 2005 53,333 - - 53,333

19 June 2006 56980 - - 56,980

1 The market price on the date of the 2007 award was 1370p

2 Michagl McKeon receved an additional LTIP award 1n 2006 (n accordance with commiiments made by the company upon appotntment The award was made pursuant to the
exemption provided in Lesting Rule 94 2, since it exceeded the normal 125% of secunty imit The award s subject 1o the same performance conditions as for all other awards
granted on the same date

No further awards have been made under the LTIP as at 4 June 2008
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As disclosed last year, the committee determined that the targets applytng to the 2004 awards had not been met and they lapsed in full

The performance period for allocations of shares made on 5 September 2005 ended on 31 March 2008 The committee has subsequently
determined, based on the company's Total Shareholder Return and Economic Profit targets over the three year performance period, that
participants are entitled to 50% of the award The actual number of shares to which each individual has become entitled from the 2005 award

1s shown below The market price on the date of the 2005 award was 1,017p

Perfarmance Accrued Total number of ordinary
shares dividend shares of 97%4sp each vested
awarded shares from the 2005 award
Tony Batlance 3,013 318 3,331
Martin Kane 2,949 312 3,261
Andy Smith 6,154 651 6,805
Tony Wray 8,974 949 9,923
As at 4 June 2008 the shares from the 2005 contingent award had not vested but would do sc as soon as practicable
1) Options over ordinary shares
At the start Exercised Cancelled Granted
of the year or dunng during during
subsequent date the year the year the year At the end Year of Exercise Date
of appointment (No of {No of (No ot of the year grant of price from which Expiry
Sharesave! (No of shares) shares) shares) shares) {No of shares) option {p) exercisable date
Martin Kane 306 - - - 306 2003 536 May 2008 Oct 2008
374 - - - 374 2005 759 May 2008 Oct 2008
227 - - - 227 2006 823 May 2009 Oct 2009
322 - - - 322 2007 1172 May 2010 Oct 2010
- - - 314 314 2008 1221 May 2011 Oct 2011
Michaet McKeon 1,499 - - - 1,499 2007 1172 May 2014 Qct 2014
Andy Srmith 1,136 - - - 1,136 2006 823 May 2009 Oct 2009
Tony Wray 1,136 - - - 1,136 2006 823 May 2009 Qct 2009

1 The executive directors in common with all eligible UK employees of the group are entitled to participate 1n the company's HM Revenue and Customs approved Sharesave Scheme
The terms and conditions applicable to these options are those provided in that scheme The options have no performance conditions as such conditions are not permitted

by legislation

2 At the close of business on 31 March 2008 the mid market price of the company s shares was 1419p (31 March 2007 1434p) and the range during the year was 1244p tc 1582p

3 On 9 October 2006 Severn Trent Plc's ordinary shares of 65%sp were consolidated into ordinary shares of 97%sp No adjustment was made to the shares awarced under the LTIP
or granted under the Sharesave Scheme LTIP awards made pnor to the consalidation witl vest over ordinary shares of 97'%sp and Sharesave Options granted prier

to the consolidation will be exercised over ordinary shares of 37*4,p

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the directors’ remuneration report en 4 June 2008

o i

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2008 which comprise the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash fiow staterment, the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
and the refated notes 1 to 47 These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting polictes set out therein We have also
audited the information in the directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Severn Trent Ple for the year ended 31 March 2008

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for thus report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilittes for preparing the Annual Report, the directors’ remuneration report and the group financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and Internaticnal Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union are set out 1n the
statement of directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view, whether the group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act 1985 and Ariicle 4 of the IAS Regulation and whether the part of the directors’
remuneration report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report

to you whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the group financiat statements The information given
in the directors’ report includes that specific information presented in the chairman’s statement, the chief executive’s review and the performance
reviews that are cross referred from the business review section of the directors’ report

In addition we report to you if, In our opinton, we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding director's remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisiens of the 2006 Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report «f it does not We are not required to consider
whether the board’s statements on internal control cover all nsks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures

We read the other information contarned in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the
audited group financial statements We consider the implhications for cur report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opimon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
includes examunation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors In
the preparation of the group financial staternents, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide

us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report

to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the averall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to

be audited

QOpinion
In our opinien

@ the group financial statements give a true and fair view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
group's affairs as at 31 March 2008 and of its profit for the year then ended,

& the group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation,

@ the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985, and

® the information given in the directors’ report i1s consistent with the group financial statements

Delortte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, UK

4 June 2008
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2008

2008 2007
Note £m £m
Turnover 56 15524 1,4802
Operating costs before exceptional tems 7 (1,0829) (1,0749)
Excephional restructuring costs and termination of operations 8 (14 9) (149
Exceptional flood costs net of insurance recoveries 8 (13 6) -
Exceptional provision for fines and penalties 8 (35 8) -
Exceptional provision for third party legal costs 8 (4 5) -
Excepticnal demerger costs 8 - (16 7)
Total operating costs 7 (L1517 (1,1065)
Exceptional profit on disposal of property and businesses 8 - 563
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 469 5 4053
Excepticnal items 8 (68 8) 247
Profit before interest and tax 400 7 4300
Finance income 10 1171 863
Finance costs 11 (294 5) (240 1)
Net finance costs (177 4) (1538)
(Losses)/gains on financial iInstruments 12 (310) 438
Share of results of associates and joint ventures o1 05
Profit before tax, {losses)/gains on financial instruments and exceptional items 2922 2520
Exceptional items 8 (68 8) 247
(Losses)/gains on financial instruments 12 (310) 488
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1924 3255
Taxation on profit on ardinary activities — current tax 13 (56 2) (58 5)
- deferred tax 13 197 (184)
- excephional deferred tax ansing on change of rate 13 547 -
Total taxation 13 182 (769)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 2106 2486
Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 14 08 200
Profit for the period 2114 2686
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 2095 2671
Equity minority interests 19 15
2114 2686
Earmings per share {pence)
From continuing operations
Basic 16 893 1061
Diluted 16 887 1051
From continwing and discontinued operations
Basic 16 897 1147
Diluted 16 890 1136
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Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March 2008

2008 2007
(restated)
Notes £m £&m
Non current assets
Goodwill 17 502 491
Other intangible assets 18 107 2 1012
Property, plant and equipment 15 57312 55211
Interests in joint ventures 20 01 05
Interests in assocrates 21 a1 34
Dervative financial instruments 22 513 191
Available for sale financial assets 22 01 02
5,944 2 5,694 6
Current assets
Inventory 23 248 224
Trade and other receivables 24 4341 3871
Derivative financial instruments 22 53 16
Cash and cash equivalents 25 6544 1432
1,1186 5543
Total assets 7,062 8 6,2489
Current llabilities
Borrowings 26 (459 5) (631 8)
Dervative financral instruments 22 (89) (26)
Trade and other payables 27 (423 4) 405 1)
Current income tax labilities (324) (59 0)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 30 (50 4) (67
(9746) (1,1122)
Non current habthties
Borrowings 26 (36277 (26390)
Derivative financial instruments 22 (73 8) (1137
Trade and other payables 27 (220 4) (1883)
Deferred tax liabilities 28 (808.3) (891 1)
Retirement benefit obligations 29 (126 0) (135 1)
Provisions for other liabifities and charges 30 (26 8) 322
{4,8830) (39994
Total iabilhities (5,8576) (51116)
Net assets 1,205 2 1,137 3
Capital and reserves attributable to the company’s equity shareholders
Called up share capital 31 2297 2283
Share premmium account 32 €643 575
Other reserves 33 427 4 419C
Retained earnings 34 4796 4294
Equity attributable to the company's equity shareholders 1,2010 1,134 2
Minarity interests 34 42 31
Total equity 34 1,205 2 1,137 3
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2008

2008 2007

Notes £m Zm
Cash generated from operations 37 645 9 5740
Interest paid (153 5) (148 6)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (20 6) (202)
Tax paid (76 2) (360)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3956 3692
Investing activities
Interest received 240 124
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures 03 15
Net loans (repaid by)/advanced to associates and joint ventures 07 05
Net cash inflow from avallable for sale fixed asset 1nvestments - 02
Cash demerged with Biffa Plc (note 35) - (21 9)
Proceeds on disposal of subsidianes net of cash disposed (note 35) - 1306
Proceeds on disposal of associate - 263
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 34 622
Purchases of intangible assets and goodwill (335) (215)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (443 6) (427 2)
Contributions and grants received 341 350
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (416 0) (1989}
Financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent (147 3) (739 5)
Dividends paid to minonty interests 08) (16}
Repayments of borrowings (634 6) {789 9)
Repayments of ckilgations under finance leases (23 1) (34 6)
New loans raised 1,3271 1,4184
Issue of shares to shareholders of the parent 82 100
Issue of shares to minorities 10 -
Net cash generated from/{used 1n) financing activities 5305 (13686}
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 5101 337
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 1431 1104
Effect of foreign exchange rates 02 (10
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 37 6534 1431
Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash and cash equivalents 37 654 4 1432
Bank overdrafts 37 (10) €1
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 37 653 4 1431
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 31 March 2008

2008 2007
£m m
Exchange movement on translation of overseas results and net assets 26 (255)
Exchange differences on hedges of net investment - 64
Tax on exchange differences on fereign currency hedging 41 (19)
(Losses)/gains on cash flow hedges taken to equity (2 3) 62
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges taken to equity 07 (18)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schermes (27 B) (14 3)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses 78 43
Change of tax rate on deferred tax previously recognised directly in equity 54 -
Net expense recognised directly in equity {9 5) (26 6)
Transfers
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement in the period 46 46
Deferred tax on transfers to iIncome statement (13) (14)
33 32
Profit for the period 2114 2686
Total recognised income for the period 2052 2452
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the company 2033 2437
Minonty interests 19 15
205 2 2452

52 Severn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2008




Notes to the group financial statements

1 General information
The Severn Trent group has a number of operations, these are described in the segmental analysis in note 5

Severn Trent Plc 15 a company incorparated and domiciled 1n the United Kingdom, the address of its registered office ts shown on the back
of the cover of the Annual Report and Accounts

Severn Trent Plc 1s histed on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and IFRIC interpretations issued and effective and ratified by the European Union as at 31 March 2008 and those paris of the
Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS as adopted by the European Union

The financial statements have been prepared under the tustorical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and
habihities (Including denvative instruments} at fair value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reparting period
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may ultimately differ

from those estimates

The cornparative figures for the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 have been restated to reclassify the analysis of dervative financial instruments
between current and non current amounts This balance sheet was onginally prepared on the basis of widely prevaihng practice at that time which
was to classify as current assets or habilities all derivative instruments that were not designated as hedges However, in May 2007 the International
Financral Reporting Interpretations Commuttee reported that it had recommended to the IASB that IAS 1 be amended to remove the implication
that such classificatton was required In view of this decision the group now classifies all derivative financial assets and liabilities according to their
maturity The impact on the comparative balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 1s to decrease current assets and increase non current assets by

£12 5 mullon and to decrease current habilities and increase non current labihties by £57 5 rmillion

b) Basis of consolidation

The financial statements include the resulis of Severn Trent Plc and iis subsidianies, joint ventures and associated undertakings The results of
subsidianes, joint veniures and associated undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation, and excluded from the date of
disposal

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated where the group has the power to control a subsidiary

The results of joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the company exercised joint control under a contractual
arrangement

The results of associates are accounted for on an equity basis where the company holding is 20% or more or the company has the power to
exercise significant influence

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidianes are identified separately from the group’s equity therein Minonity interests consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the minority's share of changes in equity since that date
Losses attributable to the minonty in excess of the minonty’s interest in the subsidiary's equity are allocaled against the interests of the group
except to the extent that the minonty has a binding obligation and 1s able to make an additional investment to cover the losses

All intra group transactions, balances, income and expenses are elminated on conschdation

¢) Revenue recogmtion
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and intercompany sales, in the crdinary
course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue 1s not recogrised uniil the service has been provided to the customer, or the goods to which the sale relates have either been despatched
to the customer or, where they are held on the customer's behalf, title has passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and waste water charges unbilied at the yearend The accruat 15 estimated using
a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by taniff, which is calculated from historical billing infoermation

In respect of long term contracts, revenue 1s recognised based on the value of work carned out duning the year with reference to the total sales
value and the stage of completion of these contracts

Interest tncome 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate apphcable Dividend income
from 1nvestments 1s recogmsed when the group's rights to receive payment have been established Interest and dividend income are included
in finance income
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

d) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are income or expenditure, which indivmidually or, If of a similar type, 1n aggregate should, in the opinion of the directors, be
disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the financial statements are to give a true and fair view In this context, materiality 1s assessed at the
segment level

e} Taxation

Current tax payable i1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the iIncome statement because
it excludes items of Income and expenses that are taxable in other years and 1t further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible
The group’s hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxatron 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities and
therr carrying amounts in the financial statements A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised 1o the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available in the future to utilise it Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have then been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deterred income tax asset 15 realised or the
deferred tax ltabihty 15 settled

) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the faur value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired Goodwill ansing on
acquisition of subsidianes 1s included in Iintangible assets, whilst goodwill anising on acquisiion of associates 1s included In investments in
assoclates If an acquisition gives rise to negative goodwill this is credited directly to the income statement Fair value adjustments based on
provisional estimates are amended withun cne year of the acquisition, if required, with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on all acquisitions prior to 1 Apnil 1998 was wnitten off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated against reserves
Purchased goodwill arising on acquisitions after 31 March 1998 1s treated as an intangible fixed asset

Goodwill I1s tested for imparrment in accordance with the policy set out above and carried at cost less accumulated impatrment losses Goodwill
Is allocated to the cash generating unit that derives benefit from the goodwiil for impairment testing purpases

Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit and all or part of that unit 15 disposed of, the associated goodwill 15 included n the carrying
amount of that operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation

g) Intangible non current assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and when acquired in a business combination are capitalised at far value at the date
of acquisition Fellowing initial recogrition, the historical cost maodel s apphied to intangible assets Amortisation charged on assets with finite lives
1s taken to the income staterment through operating expenses

Finite Ife intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of impairment exist

h) Research and development
Research expenditure s expensed when 1t 1s incurred Development expenditure 1s capitalised and written ott over its expected usefu! economic life
where the following cnteria are met

® an asset 1s created that can be identified,
@ 1t 15 probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
@ the development cost can be measured reliably

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relating to research and development projects i1s capitalised and written off over the expected useful
life of those assets

1) Pre-contract costs
Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred except where 1t 1s probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they are recogrised as !
prepayments which are written off to the income staterment over the life of the contract
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1) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment comprises

1) Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets are included at cost (or deemed cost on transition to IFRS) less accumulated depreciatton The costs of like for ke
raplacernent of infrastructure components are recognised In the income statement as they anse Where it 1s probable that the money spent will
cause future economic benefits to flow to the group, then costs are capitahsed Infrastructure assets are depreciated over their useful economic
lives, which are as follows

Years
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
u} Other assets
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Freehold land 15 not depreciated Other assets are depreciated over their
estimated economu¢ lives to their residual value, which are principally as follows

Years
Buridings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 2-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated untdl commissioned

Interest costs of debt raised to finance new property, plant and equipment are not inciuded within the cost of those fixed assets, but are expensed
to the income statement as they arise

k) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee
(finance leases), the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments is capitalised as an asset with a
corresponding ability representing the obligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge,
the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the incorme statement at a constant rate over
the period of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation s charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the
lease period

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor, these are
classified as operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight iine basis over the term of the lease Leases of
land are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership 1s transferred at the end of the lease

I) Grants and contributions
Grants and contributions received in respect of non current assets, including charges made for new connections to the water and sewerage
networks, are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the useful economic life of those non current assets

Grants and contnbutions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in the inceme
statement 1n the period that they become recevable

m) Impairment of non current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an item of property, plant and eguipment, or any other non current asset s estimated to be less than tts
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs Recoverable
amount 15 the hugher of fair value less costs to sell or estimated value In use at the date the impawrment review 1s undertaken Fair value less costs
to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the assets Iin an arm'’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties,
less costs of disposal Value in use represents the present value of future cash flows expected o be denved from a cash generating unit, discounted
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the cash generating unit or asset

The discount rate used Is based on the group's cost of capital adjusted for the nisk profiles of individual businesses

Goodwill s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews are also carried out if there 1s an indication that an impairment may have occurred,
or, where otherwise required, to ensure that non current assets are not carried above their estimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised in the income staterment
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

n) Investments

After imitial recogniticn at cost (being the fair value of the consideration paid), Investments which are classified as available for sale are measured
at fair value, with gatns or losses recogmised in equity When an available for sale investment is disposed of, or tmpaired, the gain or loss previously
recognised in equity 1s taken to the income staternent Where there 1s no active market 1n the investments and the fair value cannot be measured
reliably, the investments are held at cost

Other investments are classified as held {o matunty when the group has the positive intention and abulity to hold to maturity Investments held for
an undefined period are excluded from this classification Such investrments (and those held to maturity) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or losses being recogrised 1n the ncome statement

o) Financial instruments

1) Debt instruments

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the net fair value of the consideration received After initial recognition, interest
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Where a loan or borrowing
18 1n a fair value hedging relationship it 1s remeasured for changes in fatr value of the hedged risk at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses
being recognised In the income statement (see below)

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process

u) Denvative inancial instruments and hedging activities

The group uses derivative financtal instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its
risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations Such derivative instruments are initially recorded at cost and subsequently
remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet date The fair value of cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to market exchange rates and interest rates at the period end Net interest recewvable or payable n respect of derivative
financial iInstruments 1s included in finance income or finance costs

In relation to fair value hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the gamn or loss on the hedging instrument 15 taken to the incorme
staternent where the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item (see above)

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge I1s recogrised directly in equity and the ineffective portion 1 the income statement The gains or losses
deferred 10 equity in this way are recycled through the income statement in the same period In which the hedged underlying transaction or firm
commitment 1s recognised m the income statement

Where forward currency contracts and fereign currency borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign currency denominated
operations, to the extent that they are designated and effective as net investment hedges, they are matched in equity against changes n value of
the related assets Any ineffectiveness s taken to the income statement

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, 1s sold, terrminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that date any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogrised in equity 1S kept In equity until the forecast transaction
occurs, or transferred to the income statement of the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

For dervatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, gains or losses are taken directly to the tncome statement n the period

Denvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 15 not carried at farr value, with gains and losses reported i1n the income
staternent

p} Inventory
Inventory and work in progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour, materials, transport and attributable
overheads

q) Trade receivables

Trade receiwvables are measured at fair value on imtial recognition and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method unless there 15 objective evidence that the asset 1s impaired, where it 1s written down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable
amount s recognised as an expense

Trade recewables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are assessed collectively for impairment by reference to the group’s histoncal
collection experience for receivables of similar age

r) Trade payables
Trade payables are imitially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
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s) Retirement benefits
The group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme hatslities s recorded on the
balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using bid price Defined benehit pension scheme liabilities are measured at the balance
sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected umit method and discounted at the current rate of return en high quality corporate
bonds of equivalent term and currency to the hability Service cost, which 1s the increase (n the present value of the habilities of the group’s
defined benefit pension schemes expected to arise from employee service in the period, Is Included 1n eperating casts The expected return on the
scheme's assets and the increase during the period in the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, anising from the passage of time, are included
in other finance income or cost

Actuanal gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, changes 1n actuarial assumptions and amendments to pension plans are charged
or credited {6 equity and recorded In the statement of recognised income and expense

Contributions to defined contnibution pension schemes are charged to the income staterment in the peried in which they fall due

t) Prowvisions
Provisions are recognised where

@ there s a present obligation as a result of a past event,
® 1t 5 probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
® a reliable estimate of this amount can be made

Insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified, based on advice from the
group's independent insurance advisers

u) Purchase of own shares
The group balance sheet includes the shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust and which have not vested unconditionally
by the batance sheet date These are shown as a deduction fram shareholders’ funds until such time as they vest

v} Share based payments
The group operates a number of equity settled, share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the employee services received
1n exchange for the grant 1s recogrised as an expense over the vesting pernod of the grant

The fair value of employee services 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted calculated using an appropriate pricing
model, excluding the impact of any non market vesting conditions The number of awards that are expected to vest takes into account non market
vesting conditions incfuding, where appropriate, continuing employment by the group The charge 15 adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as
a result of failling to meet a non market condition

w) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly iguid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigmificant nsk of change in value Such investments are normally those with less than three
months" maturity from the date of acquisition and include cash, balances at banks and investments in hquidity funds Cash and cash equivalents
also include overdrafis repayable on demand

x) Foreign currency
The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling, the presentatienal currency of the group, using average
rates of exchange ruling durnng the year

The net investments in overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year end
Exchange differences thus arising are treated as movements in equity On disposal of a foreign currency denominated subsidiary, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity since 1 April 2004 relating to that entity 1s recognised tn the income statement under the transitional rule
of IFRS 1

Exchange differences ansing in respect of foreign exchange instruments taken out as hedges of overseas investments are also treated as
movements 1n equity to the extent that the hedge Is effective (see note 2(1))

All other foreign currency denominated assets and habilities of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated into the relevant
functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the year end Any exchange differences so anising are dealt with through the income
statement Foreign currency transactions ansing during the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the
transaction All profits and losses on exchange ansing during the year are dealt with through the income staternent
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

y) Dhiscontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group) 1s avatlable for immediate sale and the sale 1s hughly probable and expected to occur within
one year then the disposal group 1s deemed as held for sale The disposal group 1s measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell

Where a group of assets which comprises operations that can be clearly distinguished operationally and for financial reporting purposes from the
rest of the group, (a component), has been disposed of or classifted as held for sale, and it

@ represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
@ s part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
® 1s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resate

then the compoenent Is classified as a discontinued operation

Non current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Depreciation is not
charged on such assets

3 New accounting policies and future requirements

in the current year the group has adopted IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2007, and the related amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and

the changes to I1AS 1 has been to expand the disclosures provided In these financial statements regarding the group’s financial instruments and

management of capital (see note 22) Four Interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Repoerting Interpretations Committee are effective

for the current period These are IFRIC 7 ‘Applying the Restaternent Approach Under 1AS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies',

IFRIC 8 ‘Scope of IFRS 2', IFRIC 9 ‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’, and IFRIC 18 ‘Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment’ The !
adoption of these Interpretations has net led to any changes in the group's accounting policies '

The following statements have been 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and are likely to affect future financial statements

International Financial Reporbing Standard 8 ‘Operating Segments’ (IFRS 8) was 1ssued in November 2006 and 1s required to be implemented by
Severn Trent from 1 April 2009 The standard requires :dentification of operating segments based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker in order to atlocate resources to the segment and assess its performance The impact of the standard on
Severn Trent's financial statements 15 not expected to be significant since the group's segmental reporting already closely reflects reports regularly
reviewed by the Chief Executive and the board

IFRIC 12 'Service Concession Arrangements’ was 1ssued in November 2006 and 1s required to be implemented by Severn Trent from 1 Apnl 2008
The interpretation draws a distinction between two types of services concession arrangement, those where the operator receives a financial asset,
spectfically an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from a government body in return for constructing or
upgrading a public sector asset, and those where the operator receives an intangible asset, the right to charge for the use of the public sector
asset that it constructs or upgrades The interpretation will be applicable to the group’s contracts with the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD) and 1s
expected to result in the recognition of both a financial asset in respect of the right to receive cash i return for upgrading the MoD assets and an
intangible asset ansing from the right to provide water and sewerage services

IFRIC 13 *Customer Loyalty Programmes’ was 1ssued In June 2007 and 1s effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
The interpretation addresses accounting by entities that grant loyalty award credits to customers It 1s not anticipated to have any impact on
the group's financial statements

IFRIC 14 ‘IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimimum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction’ was 1ssued mn July 2007 and 1s
required to be implemented by Severn Trent from 1 April 2008 The interpretation addresses when refunds or reductions in future contributions
should be regarded as avallable, and therefore recognised as an asset, in accordance with IAS 19, how a mimimum funding requirement might
affect the availability of reductions in future contributions, and when a mimimum funding requirement might give nise to a hability The impact of
the interpretation will be dependent on the actuarial position of the group's defined benefit schemes (n the future

IAS 23 (revised) was 1ssued in March 2007 and 1s required to be implemented by Severn Trent from 1 April 2009 The revision to the standard
removes the option of immediately recogrising as an expense borrowing costs that are derectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that takes a substantial penod of time to get ready for use or sale Such costs are therefore required to be capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset The revised standard will require Severn Trent to change its existing policy and 15 likefy to result in a proportion of
borrowing costs that are currently expensed being capitalised 1n property, plant and equipment or intangible assets The costs will then be
amortised over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets
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IAS 1 (revised) was 1ssued 1in September 2007 and 1s required to be implemented by Severn Trent from | April 2009 The revision I1s aimed

at improving users’ abihity to analyse and compare the information given in financial statements The changes made are to require information
in financial staterments to be aggregated on the basis of shared charactenstics and to introduce a statement of comprehensive income

Since Severn Trent already presents a statement of recognised income and expense, the changes will have no sigrificant impact on the group
financial statements

IAS 27 (revised) was issued 1in January 2008 and Is required to be implemented by Severn Trent from 1 Apri 2010 The revised standard requires
the effects of all transactions with non controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there 15 no change in control The standard also specifies the
accounting when control 1s lost Severn Trent has had no transactions in the current or prior year that would have been impacted by the revised
standard

IFRS 3 (revised) was 1ssued in January 2008 and 1s required to be implemented by Severn Treat from 1 Apnl 2010 The standard continues to
apply the acquisihion method to business combtnations, with some significant changes Severn Trent has had no transactions in the current or prior
year that would have been impacted by the revised standard

The directors assess that the cther standards and interpretations 1ssued but not yet effective are not applicable to the group

4  Sigmficant accounting Judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group's accounting policies, the group 1s required to make certain jJudgments, estimates and assumptions that it
believes are reasonable based on the information available The more significant jJudgments and key assurmphions and sources of estimation
uncertainty are summarnsed below

1}  Goodwili impairment

Determiring whether goodwilt 1s impaired requires an estmation of the value in use of the cash generating units (CGU) to which goadwill has been
allocated The value in use calculation requires the group to estimate the future cash flows expected to ause from the CGU and a surtable discount
rate to calculate present value Details of the assumptions used are set out in note 17 to the financial statements

u) Depreciation and carrying amounts of property plant and equipment
Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for property, plant and equipment requires estimates to be made of the useful
lives of the assets The estimates are based on engineening data and the group's experience of similar assets Details are set out in note 2(e)

1) Retirement benefit obhigations

Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires assumptions to be
made concerning long term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and longevity of current and future
pensioners Changes in these assumptions could significantly impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The
group makes assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuaries Detals of the assumptions
made are sei out in note 29 to the financial staternents

v) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgments to be made regarding the result of negotiations with and enquines from tax
authorities in a number of jurnisdictions The assessments made are based on advice from independent tax advisers and the status of angaing
discussions with the relevant tax authorities

v) Provtsions for other habihities and charges

Assessing the financial outcome of uncertain commercial and legal positions requires judgments to be made regarding the relative merits of each
party’s case and the extent to which any claim against the group 1s likely to be successful The assessments made are based on advice from the
group's internal counsel and, where appropriate, independent egal advice
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

5 Segmental analysis
The group 15 organmised into two main business segments

Water and Sewerage

Prowides water and sewerage services to domestic and commercial customers 1n England and Wales

Water Technologies and Services

Provides services and products associated with water, waste water and contaminated land principally in the US, UK and Europe

The group 15 also organised into geographical regions, UK, US and Europe Geographical information 15 classified by the jocation of the principal

operations of each business unit

a) Primary reporting format - business segment

‘Water
Water and  Technologles
Sewerage and Services

Corporate

and Other Ehmunations Consohdated
m £m £m

2008 Im Zm
External sales 1,278 0 274 4 - - 15524
Inter segment sales 12 229 52 (29 3) -
Total sales 1,279 2 297 3 52 (293) 1,5524
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 462 3 207 (112) (23) 469 5
Exceptional items (note 8) (633) 45) (10) - (68 8)
Profit before interest and tax 3990 162 (12 2) 23) 4007
Share of results of associates and joint ventures - 01 - - 01
Segment result 3990 16 3 (12 2) 23 4008
Total net finance costs and net (losses)/gains on financial instrurnents (208 4)
Profit before tax 192 4
Tax 182
Profit from continuing aperations 2106
Profit from discontinued operations {note 14) 08
Profit for the period 2114
Water

Water and  Technologies Corporate

Sewerage and Services and Other  Ehminations Consolidated
2007 £m im £m £m £m
External sales 12163 2626 13 - 14802
Inter segment sales 18 263 30 (37 1) -
Total sales 1,2181 2889 103 (371) 14802
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional iterms 4130 197 (26 3) (11 405 3
Exceptional items (note 8) 213 147 (113) - 247
Profit before interest and tax 4343 344 (37 6) 11) 4300
Share of results of associates and joint ventures - 08 (0 3) - 05
Segment result 4343 352 (379 (11) 4305
Total net finance costs and net gains/{losses) on financial instruments (1050)
Profit before tax 325%
Tax (769)
Profit from continuing operations 2486
Profit from discontinued operations (note 14) 200
Profit for the period 268 6
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In 2007 discontinued operations included

Waste

us

Management Laboratories Ekmunatians Total
im £m £m im
External sales 4010 94 4 - 4954
Inter segment sales 39 17 (56) -
Total sales 4049 961 (56) 495 4
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional iterns 512 80 - 592
Exceptional items (note 8) - {315) - (315)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 05 - - 05
Segment result 517 (23 5) - 282
Total net finance costs ©on
Exceptional net gain an disposal of discontinued operations 71
Tax (15 2)
Profit from discontinued operations for the period 200
Other segment items are
Water
Water and  Technologies Corporate

Sewerage and Services
im

and Other Ehminations  Consolxdated
£m im £m

2008 im
Capital expenditure 4463 70 04 4 4) 4493
Depreciation and amortisation 2275 63 01 21) 2318
Waler
Water and Technologies Corporate
Sewerage and Services and Other Elminations Consolidated
2007 im £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure 3995 6l - {43) 4013
Deprectation and amortisation 2412 66 03 {(35) 244 6
The segment assets and habihities are as {ollows
Water Unallocated
Water and Technologies Corporate
Sewerage and Services  Eliminations and Other Consolidated
2008 Zm £m £m &m £m
Assets
Segment assets 6,5901 2459 (193 2419 7.0586
Interests in associates and joint ventures 02 40 - - 42
Group total assets 6,5903 2499 (193 2419 7.0628
Liabihities
Segment habilities (708 8) {B6 1) - (50627) (58576)
Water Unallocated
Water and  Technologies Corporate
Sewerage and Services  Eliminations and Other Consohdated
2007 £m £m £m £m im
Assets
Segment assets 58947 2265 (169) 1417 6,2450
Interests in associates and joint ventures 05 34 - - 39
Group total assets 58952 2289 {(169) 1417 6,2489
Liabilities
Segment habilities {6187} {663) - (44266) (51116}

Segment assets comprise goodwill and other intangible assets, property plant and equipment, inventories, dervatives designated as hedges for
future transactions, recewables and operating cash Deferred taxation, investments and derivatives designated as hedges of borrowings are all

included 1n unallocated corporate assets

Segment kabiliies comprise operating labihities Taxation and corporate borrowings and related hedging derivatives are all included 1n unallocated

corporate habilities
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

5 Segmental analysis continued
b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
The group’s turnover analysed by geographical market {by destination) was as follows

Continuing Discontinued
operations operations
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m &m £m
Turnover
UK 13550 1,2888 - 3870
us 1099 1241 - 943
Europe 425 334 - 141
Other 450 339 - -
1,552 4 14802 - 495 4

The carrying amount of the group's assets and additions to property, plant and equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assats

are located was as follows

Total assets - Capital
based on location expenditure

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m im £m £m

UK 6,8981 6,103 1 444 7 3983
us 1119 586 a2 30
Europe 523 872 0.4 -
Other 0.5 - - -
7.0628 65,2489 4493 4013

Amounts relating to discontinued activities - - - 390
7,0628 6,2489 4493 4403

6 Revenue

2008 2007

£m £m

Water and sewerage services 1,279 2 1,2093
Other services 2057 2177
Sales of goods 501 595
Revenue from long term contracts 467 308
Eliminations (29 3) (37 1)
Total turnover 1,552 4 1,4802
Interest recevable (note 10Q) 237 57
Revenue from discontinued operations - 5028
Total revenue 1,576 1 19887
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7 Operating costs

2008 2007
Before Belore
exceptional  Exceptional exceptional Exceplional

costs costs Total costs costs Total

im £m Em £m im £m

Wages and salaries 2346 81 2427 2420 30 2450
Social security costs 183 01 184 173 - 173
Pension costs 330 - 330 390 78 468
Share based payments 40 - 40 26 - 26
Total employee costs 2899 82 2081 3009 108 3117
Power 420 02 422 617 - 617
Raw materials and consumables 1126 64 1180 1033 - 1033
Rates 601 - 601 573 - 573
Imparrment of trade debtors 227 - 227 227 - 227
Service charges 286 - 286 276 - 276
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2045 - 2045 2039 119 2158
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 273 - 273 288 - 288
Hired and contracted services 1281 142 142 3 1254 89 1383

Qperating lease rentals

- land and buildings 45 - 45 48 - 48
- other 16 - 16 31 - 31
Hire of plant and machinery 61 12 73 54 - 54
Research and development expenditure 49 - 49 42 - 42
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (17) - 17) 07) - ©7N
Foreign exchange gains 01 - 01 {02) - {02)
Water and sewerage infrastructure maintenance expenditure 1112 - 1112 981 - 981
Other operating costs 96 2 386 1348 1076 - 1076
1,1387 688 1,207 5 1,1553 316 1,1869
Release from deferred income 51 - (51) {39 - {(35)
Own work capitalised (507 - (507 (76 9 - (76 9)
Total operating costs 1,082 9 688 1,15.7 10749 316 1,1065

Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8 The pension costs shown above include current and past service costs Other pension costs
(interest costs, expected returns on assets and actuanal gains and losses) are included in finance costs and the statement of recognised income
and expense

During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors in respect of continuing and discontinued activities

2008 2007

£m &m

Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the company's annual accounts g2 02
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and therr associates for other services to the group

The audit of the company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 06 05

Total audit fees 08 07

— Other services pursuant to legislation 01 01

- Tax services - -

- Other services - 03

Total non audit fees 01 04

Other services In 2007 compnised controls reviews £0 1 mullion and vartous other services £0 2 milhion

Detasls of directors’ remuneration are set out in the directors' remuneration report cn pages 38 to 47
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

8 Exceptional items
2008
An exceptional charge of £68 8 million arose in the penod This comprised

@ acharge of £13 9 million in Water and Sewerage and £1 O million in Corporate arising from the ongoing and developing programme to
restructure and realign the business by improving standards through process improvement, enhancements to supporting technology, systems
and facilities and the development and retraining of our people,

® anet cost of £13 6 million ansing from the flooding incidents that affected the Water and Sewerage networks during the summer of 2007
This includes costs of £29 6 milhon which have been identified to date less insurance recoveries of £16 0 million which have been received
Costs still to be incurred are expected to relate mainly to the replacement of damaged assets which will be covered by insurance recoveries,

® acharge of £35 8 million relating to a provision anising from Ofwat’s proposal to fine Severn Trent Water for misreporting customer service
data and fallure to meet Guaranteed Standards of Service in 2005/06 The provision has been recorded on the basis that the best available
evidence for making an estimate of the fines that will be payable s Ofwat's proposals However, Ofwat's consultation relating to the fines
remains open, and there 1s a right of appeal at its conclusion, so the amounts that eventually become payable might not be the amounts
proposed by Ofwat, and

® acharge of £4 5 million relating te third party legal costs incurred in the conclusion of a Water Technologies and Services arbitration to settle
an interpretation on a long term operating service contract

2007
A net exceptional credit of £24 7 million arose in respect of continuing operations and an exceptional charge of £24 4 million arose 1n respect
of discontinued operations in the year ended 31 March 2007

The exceptional credit in continuing operations comprised

® acharge of £14 9 million 1n Water and Sewerage arising from a prograrnme to restructure and realign the business including write off of
decommuissioned assets £11 9 million and restructuring costs of £3 million,

® acharge of £16 7 million in corporate costs, ansing from the demerger of Biffa Pic, including £7 8 millron relating to the settlement of pension
obhgations, and,

® acredit of £56 3 milhion of which £36 2 million arose from the disposal of properties in Severn Trent Water, £14 7 mitlion arose in Water
Technelogies and Services from the disposal of Aquafin and £5 4 million in Corporate and Other businesses from the disposal of Severn Trent
Property and other property assets

The exceptional charge in discontinued operations comprised

® acharge of £31 5 mullion arising from the impairment of goodwill relating to US Laboratories,
® aloss of £2 4 mullion on the sale of US Laboratones, and
® agamn of £8 5 million on the sale of Biffa Belgium

9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) during the year

2008 2007
Number Number

By type of business
Water and Sewerage 5,696 5,494
Water Technologies and Services 2,985 3,056
Other businesses and Carporate 26 100
Continuing operations 8,707 8,650
Discontinued operations - 4,089

8,707 12,739

10 Finance income

2008 2007
£m £m

Interest revenue earned on
Bank deposits 173 54
Other financial income 64 03
Total interest revenue 237 57
Expected return on defined benefit scheme assets 934 806
Total finance income 1171 863

All interest revenue relates to loans and receivables
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11 Finance costs

2008 2007
£m &m
Interest on bank ioans and overdrafts 13.6 284
Interest on other loans 177.5 1226
Interest on finance leases 20.6 202
Total borrowing costs 2117 1712
Cther financial expenses 22 02
Interest cost on defined benefit obligations 806 675
Unwinding of discounts on provisions - 12
Total finance costs 294 5 2401
12 (Losses)/gains on financial instruments
2008 2007
£m £m
Gain on dervatives 1n a designated far value hedge accounting relationship 938 417
Loss aristng on adjustrment for the hedged item in a designated {air value hedging relationshep (95 9) (410)
Fair value losses on cash flow hedges transterred from equity (4 6) (46)
{Loss)/gain ansing on revatuation of derivatives not in a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship (24 3) 527
(31 0) 488
13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax (credit)/charge in the year
2008 2007
im £m
Current tax
Cantinuing operations
Current year at 30% (2007 30%) 68 7 679
Prior year at 30% (2007 30%) (12 5) G4
Tota! current tax relating to continuing operations 56 2 585
Current tax relating to discontinued operations - g2
Total current tax 56 2 677
Deferred tax
Continuing operations
Onginatten and reversal of temparary differences - current year (2.4) 350
Ornigination and reversal of temporary differences - prior year (17 3} (166)
Exceptional deferred tax credit arising from change of rate (547 -
Total deferred tax relating to continuing operations (74 4) 184
Deferred tax relating to discentinued operations - 60
Total deferred tax (74 4) 244
Total tax (credit)/charge relating to continuing operations (18 2) 769
Total tax charge relating to discontinued operations - 152
Total tax {credit)/charge (182) g21
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

13 Taxation contnued
b) Factors affecting the tax {credit)/charge in the year

The tax expense for the current year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK, 30% (2007 30%) The differences are

explained below

2008 2007
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Continuing operations 1924 3255
Discontinued operations 08 352
1932 3607

Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 30% (2007 30%) 580 108 2
Tax effect of share of results of associates and joint ventures o1 01
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible in determining taxable profit 87 59
Effect of different rates of tax in overseas junsdictions (0 5) (06)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years (84 5) (21 5)
Total tax (credit)/charge (182) 921

The adjustments in respect of prior years arose as a result of agreeing open computations with the relevant tax authorities, the reduction of

tax rate for deferred tax from 30% to 28% and, in 2007, the recogniticn of a deferred tax asset of £7 7 million for previously unrecognised tax

losses th the US

The draft Finance Act 2008 includes legislation which would prevent the group from claiming industnal buildings allowances on affected assets
after 2011 It s proposed that this change 1s introduced by reducing the rate of allowances that may be claimed from 1 Apnii 2008 to 31 March

2011 at whtech pont the allowances will be removed The directors estimate that, if enacted, the proposed changes would increase the future

corporation tax charge by up to £12 milhion in the three years up to abohtion of the allowance

¢) Tax (credited)/charged directly to equity

In addition to the amount {credited)/charged to the ncome statement, the following amounts of tax have been (Credited)/charged

directly to equity

2008 2007
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments 27) -
Tax on exchange differences on foreign currency hedging a1) 19
Total current tax (credited)/charged directly to equity (6 8) 19
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gains/(losses) (78) (43)
Tax on cash flow hedging 06 32
Tax on share based payments 41 ©6)
Effect of change of tax rate (54) -
Total deferred tax credited directly to equity (85) (i7n
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14 Discontinued operations

There were no transactions during the year that resuited in operations being classified as discontinued in the previous year, Bitfa Belgium,
Biffa Plc and Severn Trent Laboratones Inc were classified as discontinued operations The profit from discontinued operations in the year arose

from the settlernent of outstanding matters relating to the disposal of Severn Trent Laboratorses Inc

a) Profit from discontinued operations

2008 2007
£m £m
Turnover - 495 4
QOperating costs - (4362)
Profit before interest tax and exceptional items - 582
Net finance costs - o1
Share of joint ventures and associates - 05
Profit before tax and exceptional items - 596
Tax - (152)
Profit after tax - 44 4
Exceptional impairment of goodwill - (315)
Excephional net gain on disposal of discontinued operations 08 71
Attributable tax expense - -
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations o8 200
b) Cash flows from discontinued operations
2008 2007
£m im
Met cash flows from operating activibies - 753
Net cash flows from investing activities 31 (262)
Net cash flows from financing activities - 3317
31 3808
¢) Earmings per share from discontinued operations
2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average Per average Per
nurnber share number share
Earntngs of shares amaount Earmngs of shares amoun
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share from discentinued operations 08 2336 03 200 2329 86
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 08 2353 03 200 2351 85
15 Dividends
Amounts recogrised as distnbutions to equity holders 1n the period
2008 2007
Pence Pence
per share £m per share im
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007/2006 3868 904 3197 1114
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008/2007 2434 56.9 2277 529
Special dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 - - 16500 5752
6302 147 3 21974 7395
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 4129 969

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to appraval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a lkability in these

financial statementis

On the demerger of Biffa Plc the ordinary share capita!l of the company was consolidated with the intention that the share price of Severn Trent Plc
shares would be similar before and after the demerger Two new Severn Trent shares were 1ssued for every three old Severn Trent shares held The
per share amounts disclosed above are the amounts that were declared on the shares in 1ssue at the time They have not been restated for the

share consolidation
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

16 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares 1in 1ssue during the year, excluding those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive
ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price 15 less than the average market price of the
company’s shares during the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations are calculated on the basis of profit from continuing cperatiens attributable to
the equity holders of the cornpany

The calculatign of basic and diluted earrings per share I1s based on the following data

Earnings
2008 2007
£m £m
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earmings per share from continuing and discontinued operations being
Profit for the period attributable to the equity holders of the cormpany 2095 2671
Adjustment to exclude
Profit for the period from discontinued operations (0 B) (20 0)
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 2087 2471
Number of shares
2008 2007
m 14
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpcse of basic earnings per share 2336 2329
Effect of dilutive potential crdinary shares
Share options and LTIPs 17 22
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earmngs per share 2353 2351
Adjusted earnings per share
2008 2007
Pence Pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 978 824
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 971 816

Adjusted earmings per share figures are presented for continuing operatrons These exclude the effects of deferred tax, gains/lesses on finangial
instruments and exceptional items in both 2008 and 2007 The directors consider that the adjusted figures provide a useful additional indicator of
performance The denomenators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as those used in the
unadjusted figures set out above

The adjustments 1o earnmings are as follows

Adjustments to earnings

2008 2007
£m £m
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 2087 2471
Adjustments for
Exceptional fines 358 -
Exceptional flood costs 136 -
Exceptional restructuring costs 149 149
Exceptional provision for third party legal costs 45 -
Excepticnal demerger and related costs - 167
Exceptional profit on disposal of property and businesses - (563)
Current tax refated to exceptional items at 30% (5 6) -
Losses/(gains) on financial instruments 310 48 8)
Deferred tax (74 4) 184
Earnings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earmings per share 2285 1820
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17 Geodwill

2008 2007

£m im

Cost and net book value
At 1 Apni 491 506 3
Impairment of US Laboratories (see below) - 3195
Disposal of subsidianes - (414 1)
Additions 04 -
Adjustment to consideration on acquisitions 1n prior years - ©3)
Exchange adjustments 07 (113)
At 31 March 502 491
Goodwill impairment tests
Goodwll 15 allocated to the group's cash generating units {CGUs) identified according to country of operation and business segment
A summary of the goodwtll allocation by CGU 15 presented below

2008 2007

£m £&m

Water Technologies and Services
Water Punfication US 212 210
Contract Operations US 95 96
UK Services 0.2 g2
UK Laboratories 120 120
Services ltaly 73 63

502 491

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s deterrmined using value in use calculations These calculations use cash flow projections based on finangial
budgets approved by management covering a five year penod Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using an estimated
nominal growth rate stated below The growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy 1n which the CGU operates

Nominal growth rate Discount rate
2008 2007 2008 2007
% % % %
Water Technologies and Services 30 30 115 117

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the business segment The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included 1n industry reports The discount rates used are pre-tax and retlect specific risks relating to the segment

On 4 September 2006, the group agreed to sell its US Laboratories business to TestAmerica Holdings Inc for £77 1 muliion This resulted in an
impairment of £31 5 million in the goodwill relating to the US Laboratories business, which was recogrused In the group’s financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2007 This transaction was completed on 29 December 2006 (see note 36)
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

18 intangible assets

Computer Other
software assets
internally Internally
generated Purchased generated Total
£im £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2006 875 1250 199 2324
Additions 47 156 12 215
Disposals (02) @ 0) o B3
Disposal of subsidiaries - 24) (36) 60)
Exchange adjustments - ©2) (©6) ©8)
At 1 April 2007 920 1290 168 2378
Additions 80 225 26 331
Disposals - 55 02 %7
Exchange adjustments (0 4) 03 06 05
At 31 March 2008 93 6 1453 198 2647
Amortisation
At 1 April 2006 (39 4) (69 1) (115) (1200)
Amortisation for year (12 2} (15 6) (16) (29 4)
Disposals 01 82 - 83
Disposal of subsiharies - 14 27 41
Exchange adjustments - 01 03 04
At 1 April 2007 {51 5) (75 0) (1o1) (1366)
Amortisation for year (10 4) (157) 12 (27 3)
Disposals - 65 02 67
Exchange adjustments - 02 1) ©3
At 31 March 2008 (619) (84 4) (11 2) (157.5)
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 377 609 86 107 2
At 31 March 2007 405 540 67 1012

Other assets pnmarnly cempnise capitalised development costs and patents
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19 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Infrastructure

Fued plant
and

butldings assets equipment plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnit 2006 2,3490 36836 27386 635 88407
Additions 107 4 98 3 2137 80 427 4
Disposals (197 (14) (68 8) (13 0) (1029)
Disposal of subsidiarnes (370 2) - {364 4) - (734 6)
Exchange adjustments 39 - (11 7) ©3) (159)
At 1 Apnl 2007 20626 37865 2,507 4 58 2 84147
Additions 1293 942 1881 46 4162
Disposals {4 0) - {(113) (49 (202)
Reclassifications and transfers 02 - 03) 01 -
Exchange adjustments 0N - 16 (10 05
At 31 March 2008 2,1880 3,880 7 26855 57.0 88112
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2006 (786 4) (9783) (1,3050) (279) (3,09786)
Charge for year {59 6) (213) {166 0) (76) (254 5)
Disposals 133 14 553 113 813
Disposal of subsidiaries 1863 - 1781 - 364 4
Exchange adjustments 32 - 96 - 128
At 1 Apni 2007 (643 2) {998 2) (1,2280) (242) (28930)
Charge for year (429) (22 1) (1320) (75) (204 5)
Dispesals 40 - 109 36 185
Exchange adjustments - - 01 (0 5) ©0a)
At 31 March 2008 (682 1) (1,0203) (1,3490) (28 6) (3,0800)
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 1,505 9 2,860 4 1,3365 284 57312
At 31 March 2007 1,4194 27883 1,2794 340 55211
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases
Fixed plant
Land and Infrastructure and Movable
buildings assets equipment plant Total
im im im im £m

Net book value
At 31 March 2008 - 1231 1627 - 2858
At 31 March 2007 - 1272 1851 - 3123

Plant and equipment includes £388 3 muthon (2007 £180 3 mullion) 1n respect of assets in the course of construction for which no depreciation

15 charged
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

20 Interests in joint ventures

2008 2007
£m £m
Group’s share of
Long term assets 01 01
Current assets 04 09
Current habilities (05) (06)
Ameunts due from joint ventures 01 01
01 05
Group's share of
Turnover 06 16
Operating costs (0 6) (11)
Operating profit - 05
Finance costs - (0 2y
Profit before tax - 03
Tax - on
Profit after tax - G2

The joint venture has no stgnificant contingent hatihities to which the group 1s exposed and the group does not have any sigmficant contingent
habiities 1n relation to its interests in the joint venture The group has no capital commitments in relation to its interests in the jomnt venture

Particulars of the group's pnncipal joint venture undertaking at 31 March 2008 are

Percentage
of share A ordinary B Qrdinary
Nature of business  capital held shares of £1  shares of £1

Cognica Limited Asset Management 50% 100,000 100,000

*af which the group holds 99,999
The country of incorporation and main gperation of the joint venture 1s Great Britain and 1t 15 registered in England and Wales

21 Interests in associates

2008 2007
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 34 196
Dispesals - (150)
Share of profits 01 09
Dividends receivable - (15)
Other movements 06 06
At 31 March 41 34
Group's share of
Total assets 194 146
Total habihities {15 3) (112)
41 34
Turnover 55 246
Profit before tax 03 o9

The associate company has no significant contingent habilities to which the group 1s exposed and the group does not have any sigrificant
contingent habilities in relation to its interest In the associate The group has no capital commitments 1n relation to its interests in the associate
The principal associate at 31 March 2008 was

Percentage of
Equity interest share capital held Nature of business

S || Societa Consortile per Azron 15,312,000 of €1 25% Water and sewerage

The country of incorporation and mamn operation 1s ltaly
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22 Fwancial instruments
a) Capital management

It 1s the group's strategy to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtan both the quantum required and the lowest cost compatible with
the need for continued availability The group 1s funded using a mixture of equity and debt (including fixed rate, index linked and floating rate)
The group's target for gearing (measured by the ratio of net debt to regulatory capital value} for the current regulatory period 1s 60% At 31 March

2008 the geanng ratio calculated by this method was 58 0% (2007 56 4%)

Duning the year the group 1ssued a further £400 milhon of 50 to 60 year maturities bonds to the index linked bonds markets The group also
borrowed £150 rmillion from the European Investment Bank and £199 million via a commercial bank loan The group also extended the range of
markets from where it obtains funds through a €700 milion etght year Eurobond issue, which was entirely swapped into sterling at the 1ssue date

At 31 March 2008 the group's equity and debt capital comprised the following

2008 2007
£m £m
Cash and short term deposits (654 4) (143 2)
Bank overdrafts 10 01
Bank loans 7427 462 6
QOther loans 29581 23996
Obligations under finance leases 3854 408 5
Net debt 3,4328 31276
Equity attributable to the company's equity shareholders 1,2010 1,134 2
Total capital 46338 42618
b) Categories of financial assets
2008 2007
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Cross currency swaps - 12
Interest rate swaps 37 125
37 137
Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair value
Cross currency swaps 528 31
Interest rate swaps 01 39
529 70
Available for sale investments carried at fair value
Unguoted shares 01 02
Loans and receivabtes (including cash and cash equivalents)
Trade receivables 1994 1813
Short term deposits 608 4 1000
Cash at bank and in hand 460 432
853 8 3245
Total financial assets 9105 3454
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non current assets
Dernivative financial instruments 513 181
Available for sale financial assets 01 02
514 193
Current assets
Denvative financial instruments 53 16
Cash and cash equivalents 6544 1432
Trade and other receivables (note 24) 1994 1813
859.1 3261
9105 3454
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

22 Financial instruments continued
¢) Categories of financial hatnlities

2008 2007
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps (67 8) (57 5)
Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging instruments carned at fair value
Cross currency swaps {13 2) (65 3)
Interest rate swaps an (05)
(14 9) (65 8)
Other financial habihties
Bank loans (742 7) (462 6)
Other loans (2,9581) (23996)
Obligations under finance leases (3854)  (40B5)
Overdraft (10} 01)
Trade payables (40 3) 327
(4,127 5) (3,3035)
Total financial habilities (4,2102) (34268)
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non current habilities
Derivative financial instruments (738) (1137)
Borrowings (3,6277) (26390
{3,7015) (2,752 7)
Current liabilities
Derwative financial instruments (8 9) 905
Borrowings (459 5) (631 8)
Trade payables (note 27) (40 3} (327
(5087) (674 1)
(4,2102) (3,4268)
d) Derivative contracts
2008 2007
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£im £m £m £m
Cross currency swaps — fair value hedges 528 (13 2) 31 (65 3)
Cross currency swaps — derivatives not in a formal hedge relationship - - 12 -
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 01 (17) 39 (0 5)
Interest rate swaps — dernvatives not n a formal hedge relatienship 37 (67 8) 125 (57 B)
Total 566 827) 207 (1233}
Less non current portien
Cross currency swaps — fair value hedges 476 44) 27 (55 7)
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges - (16) 39 (0 5)
Interest rate swaps — derivatives not in a formal hedge relabonship 37 (67 8) 125 (57 5}
Total non current 513 (73 B) 191 (113 7)
Current portion 53 (89) 16 (26)
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e) Fair values of inancial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded 1n an active market {for example, over the counter dervatives) is determined by using
valuation techmiques The group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date Discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value for the debt Discount rates are denved from yield curves based on quoted
interest rates The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows estimated and discounted
based on the applicable yield curves denved from quoted interest rates

Cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date and
yield curves derved from guoted interest rates matching the matunities of the contracts

The fair values of the unquoted equity instruments cannot be measured reliably since there 1s no active market in the instruments Hence, the
investments are held at cost It 1s not possible to determine a range of estimates within which the fair values are highly likely to he

The nominal values less impairment provisions of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values The fair value of
financial habilities tor disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
avallable to the group for similar financial instruments

2008 2007
Book value Fairvalue Book value Fair value
£m £m £m im

Prnimary financial instruments held or 1ssued to finance the group’s operations
Trade receivables 199 4 1994 1813 1813
Short term deposits 608 4 608 4 1000 1000
Cash at bank and in hand 46 0 460 432 432
Borrowings falling due within one year {459 5) (433 4) (6318) {603 6)
Borrowings falling due after more than one year (36277 (3,4294) (26390) (2,5722)
Trade payables (40 3) (40.3) (327} 327}
Dernvative financial instruments held to manage the currency and interest rate profile
Interest rate swaps and simtlar instruments (657) (657) (41 6) 416)
Currency instruments - cross currency swaps 396 396 610) (610)
Other financial assets
Available for sale financial assets 01 01 g2 02

f) Financial nisk factors

The group's activities expose 1t to a variety of financial nisks market risk (including currency and interest rate rnisk} credit risk, liguidity nsk and
inflation nisk The group's overall nsk management programme addresses the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential
adverse effects on the group's financiat performance or position

Financial risks are managed by a central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of directors Group Treasury
dentifies evaluates and hedges financial risks 1n close co-operation with the group's operating units The board provides wnitten principles for
overall risk managerment, as well as wnitten policies covering specilic areas such as exchange rate nsk, interest rate rnisk, credit risk, the use of
derivative and non derwvative financial instruments and the investment of surplus funds Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge
exposures to changes In exchange rates and interest rates The group's palicy 1s that derwvative financial instruments are not held for trading

1)  Market risk

The principal market risks that the group 1s exposed to are fluctuations in interest rates Since substantally all of the group’s profits and net assets
arise from Severn Trent Water which bas no significant exposure to changes in exchange rates, the sensitivity of the group's results to changes in
exchange rates is not materiai

Interest rate nsk
The group’s Income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates

The group’s interest rate risk anses from long term barrowings Borrowings i1ssued at vartable rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk Group policy 1s to maintain over 50% of borrowings 1n fixed rate
instruments At 31 March 2008 some 70% of the group's net debt was fixed (2007 69%)

The group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating to fixed interest rate swaps Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the group agrees with other parties to
exchange, at specified intervals {(mainly biannually), the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rates calculated by reference to
the agreed notional principal amounts The group has entered into a senes of long dated interest rate swaps to hedge future debt Economically
these act to fix debt within the group which 1s denominated as floating rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict critena of IAS 39
This has led to a £24 3 milhion charge (2007 credit of £52 7 milhon) 1n the income statement

Some of the group's debt 1s index linked, that ts its cost 1s inked to changes in the Retail Price Index (RP() This debt provides an economic hedge
for Severn Trent Water's revenues and regulatory asset values that are also RPI linked under its regulatory regime
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

22 Financial instruments conttnued

Financial habilities analysed by interest rate after taking account of various interest rate swaps entered into by the group

MNon interest Floating Fixed
bearing interest interest Index
liabihties rate rate linked Total
As at 31 March 2008 £m £m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - 5008 1010 1419 7437
Other loans - 7452 1,3340 8789 29581
Finance leases - 2091 1763 - 3854
Other financial habilities 403 - - - 403
403 1,455 1 16113 1,0208 4,127 5
Impact of interest rate swap not matched against specific debt instruments - (8734) 8734 - -
403 5817 2,4847 10208 41275
Weighted average interest rate 59%
Weighted average period for which interest 1s fixed (years) 156
Mon interest Fioating Fixed
beartng Interest interest Index
hiabilites rate rate hinked Total
As at 31 March 2007 im £m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - 1519 1750 1358 4627
Other loans - 1,207 6 7429 4491 23996
Finance leases - 2406 1679 - 4085
Other financial habtlities 327 - - - 327
327 1,600 1 10858 584 9 3,3035
Impact of interest rate swap not matched against specific debt instruments - (1,072 6} 1,0726 - -
327 5275 2,1584 584 9 3,3035
Weighted average interest rate 57%
Weighted average period for which interest 1s fixed (years) 135
Investments in interest earning assets analysed by currency after taking account of various currency swaps entered into by the group
Non interest Floating Fixed
beanng interest interest Index
labikities rate rate Iinked Total
31 March 2008 £&m £m £m im £&m
Available for sale financial assets 01 - - - 01
Loans and receivables 1994 - - - 1964
Cash and cash equivalents ~ 654 4 - - 654 4
1995 654 4 - - 8539
Non interest Floating Fixed
bearning Interest interest Index
lizbilities rate rate linked Totat
31 March 2007 im £m im £m £m
Available for sale financial assets 02 - - - 02
Loans and receivables 1813 - - - 1813
Cash and cash equivalents - 1432 - - 1432
1815 1432 - - 3247
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the group’s financial instruments to changes in interest rates at 31 March was as follows
2008 2007
Impact on +0 5% -05% +05% -05%
Profit or loss (0 5) 0s (13) 13
Equity (14) 14 42) 42
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Inflation rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the group’s financial instrurnents to changes in smpact on milatien at 31 March was as {ollows Tius analysis excludes any impact
on Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatory Capital Value

2008 2007
Impact on +1 0% -1 0% +05% -05%
Profit or loss (74) 74 21 21
Equity (74) 74 21 21

Exchange rate risk

The group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from net investments i foreign operations, primanly with
respect to the US dollar and the eura However, since substantially all of the group's profits and net assets arise from Severn Trent Water, which
has no sigmificant exposure to changes in exchange rates, the sensitivity of the group's results to changes in exchange rates 1s not matenal

The group has a significant value of foreign currency debt, primartly in US dollars, yen and euros Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions
are denominated in a currency that 1s not the entity’s functional currency To manage the foreign exchange risk ansing from foreign currency debt
the group enters into cross currency swaps with external parties

The group’s risk management policy 1s {o hedge 100% of all foreign currency dencrminated debt At 31 March 2008 alt foreign currency
denominated debt was hedged (2007 100%)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
Since substantially all of the group's profits and net assets arise trom Severn Trent Water which has no exposure to changes in exchange rates,
the sensitivity of the group’s results to changes in exchange rates 1s not matenal

Monetary assets and labilities by currency, excluding functional currency

Certain of the group's subsidiaries operate In markets where the local currency s different from the functional currency of the operation Exchange
risks relating to such operations are managed centratly by Group Treasury through forward contracts to buy or sell currency External foreign
exchange contracts are designated at group level as hedges of foreign exchange risk on specific assets, liabihies or future transactions on a gross
basis The net amount of foreign currency assets and Tlabilities and the forward contracts that have been faken out to hedge the exchange risks on
these assets and liabiities and on future committed transactions are summarised delow

As at March 31 2008
Net foreign currency monetary assets

US dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m m £m
Functional currency of operation
Sterling @3 10 - 07
US dollar - 38 - 38
Euro - - - -
Total 03) 48 - 45
As at March 31 2007
Net foreign currency moneiary assets
US dollar Euro Other Tatal
£m £m £m £m
Functional currency of operation
Sterling 02 10 - 12
US dollar - - - -
Euro - - - -
Total 02 10 - 12
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

22 Financial instruments continued
11} Credit nsk

Operatronally, the group has no significant concentrations of credit nisk It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history, other than in Severn Trent Water, whose operating licence obliges 1t to continue to supply domestic
customers even 1n cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided against accounts recevable and movements on the provisicn duning the

year are disclosed in note 24

For financing purposes, derivative counterparties and cash transactions are imited to high credit quahty financial institutions The group has

pohcies that imet the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution

Credit nisk analysis

Amount

Credit Credit outstanding

himit Trmat at 31 March
2008 2007 2008 2007
Rating £m m £m im
AAA 750 650 204 132
Double A range 1,250 1,350 5377 1589
Single A range 50 200 12 90
2,050 2,200 5593 1811

The amounts of derivative assets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as follows

Cross currency swaps Interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps
not hedges cash flow hedges
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Rating £im £m £m im £m im
AAA 357 04 - - - 19
Double A range 152 12 37 125 01 20
Single A range 20 15 - - - -
529 31 37 125 01 39

ury Ligendety risk

Prudent hquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash balances and the avalabihity of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facihties and the ability to ¢lose out market positions Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibility in funding by momitering
forecast and actual cash flows and the matunity profile of financial assets and liabihties and by keeping committed credit ines availlable

At the balance sheet date the group had the following committed undrawn borrowing facilities available

2008 2007

£m £m

Expinng within one year - -
Expinng in more than one, but not more than two years 417 -
Expining 1n more than two, but not more than five years 458 3 5000

5000 5000

In addition, the group has a committed facihity of £80 0 million (2007 £800 mullion), of which up to £60 million may be drawn in the form of
money market borrowings and the balance not utilised by such drawings may he drawn as overdraft The amount undrawn at the year end was
£80 0 milhon (2007 £47 2 millign)

Financial habihties analysed by maturity date
The following tables detall the group's remaining centractual maturity for its non dernvative financial liabilities The information presented s based
on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted cash flows including principal and interest

Financial hiabilities falling due

Within Between Between After

one one and two and more than
year two years five years five years Total
31 March 2008 £m £m £m £m im
Bank overdrafts 10 - - - 10
Bank loans 2385 1283 690 547 7 9835
Other loans 3371 1987 4432 8954 4 99384
Finance leases 573 6l 4 1135 3112 543 4
Other financral habilities 403 - - - 403
Total 674 2 3884 6307 98133 11,5066
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Other loans includes index linked debt with maturities of up to 60 years

Financial habihities falling due

Within Between Between After

ong one and two and moare than
year two years five years five years Total
31 March 2007 £m £m £m £m £m
Bank overdrafts 01 - - - 01
Bank loans 1031 215 1356 3719 6321
Qther loans 2651 2400 3382 6,189 0 7,0323
Finance leases 529 58 8 1468 3300 5885
Other financial habiities 327 - - - 327
Total 4539 3203 6206 6,890 9 8,2857

The following tables detail the group’s hquidity analtysis for its derivative financial instruments The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted net cash inflows and outflows on the derivative financial instruments that settle on 2 net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows
and outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or recevable 1s not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the balance sheet date

Within

Financial assets falling due
Between Between After more

one one and two and ¢ than Total
twi 1i
31 March 2008 - O m
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps 297 11 0% 349 666
Instruments settled gross
Cross currency swaps
Cash receipts 477 462 606 446 1991
Cash payments (34 4) (36 4} (487) (353) (154 8)
Net cash flow 133 98 119 93 443
Total 430 109 128 44 2 1109
Financial liabiities falling due
Within Between Between After mare
one one and two and than
year two years five years tive years Total
31 March 2008 m £m £m £m £m
Instruments settled net
Interest rate swaps 3B (64) (126) (824) {104 5)
Instruments settles gross
Cross currency swaps
Cash receipts 708 642 771 3861 5982
Cash payments (89 5) (68 9) @32 (3837 (635 3)
Net cash flow (187) @7 (16 1) 24 (37 1)
Total (21 8) (111) (287) (80 0) (141 6)
Financial assets falling due
Within Between Between After more
one one and two and than
year two years five years five years Total
31 March 2007 &m £m £m £m £m
Instrumenté settled net
Interest rate swaps 53 67 91 170 381
Instruments settles gross
Cross currency swaps
Cash receipts 15 120 322 - 457
Cash payments (21} (107) (129) - 257
Net cash flow (06) 13 193 - 200
Total 47 80 284 170 581
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

22 Finanecial instruments continued

Financial liabihties falling due

within Between Between Aftar more
one one and two and than
year two years five years five years Total
31 March 2007 £m £m £m £m £m

Instruments settled net

Interest rate swaps (0 9) (12) (46) (142 2) (148 5)
Instruments settles gross

Cross currency swaps

Cash receipts 476 774 782 2290 4322

Cash payments 712) {127 1) (104 9) (278 4) (581 6)

Net cash flow {23 6) (497) {(267) (49 4) (149 4)
Total {24 1) (50 9) (313) (191 6) (297 9)

g) Hedge accounting
The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates Hedge accounting is adopted
for such instruments where the criteria set out in IAS 39 are met

1) Fair value hedges

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than sterling — principally US dollar and euro Cross currency swaps are entered into at
the time that the debt s drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR n order to mitigate the group's
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations The terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt hence the
swaps are expected to be effective hedges At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as fair value hedges was as follows

Notional
principal amount Fair value

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m im £m £m
US dollar 555 561 67) 84
Euro 5810 409 2 218 (o))
Yen 2518 2548 (20) (55 4)
Czech krona 1003 378 246 24
Other 147 145 19 13
1,003 3 7724 396 (62 2)

un) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating interest
rate amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on
the future cash flow exposures ansing from i1ssued vanable rate debt The group has also entered (nto a number of interest rate swap contracts
with start dates set at annual intervals throughout the AMP4 regulatory period Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the risk of changing
interest rates on debt which 1s highly probable to be issued over the AMP4 period to fund Severn Trent Water’s capital programme and have been
accounted for as cash flow hedges The fair value of interest rate swaps at the balance sheet date I1s determined by discounting the future cash
flows using the yield curves prevailing at the balance sheet date and the credit risk inherent in the contract

The interest rate swaps settle net on a biannual basis The floating rate on the interest rate swaps ts six months LIBOR

Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Average contract Notional
fixed interest rate principal amount Fair valua
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Perigd to maturity % % £m £m £m £m
Less than 1 year - - - - - _
1-2 years - - - - - -
2-5 years 476 474 1420 2360 (01) - -
More than 5 years 518 - 147 -~ (19 5
156 7 2360 (16) (G 5)
Changes in the amounts deferred in equity during the period relating to cash flow hedges were as fallows 2008 200
7
&m £m
Fair value gains/(losses) deferred in equity at start of the period 41 (24)
Fair value (losses)/gains recognised in equity in the period (23) 64
Fair value gains transferred to finance costs in the period 46 01
Fawr value gams deferred in equity at end of the period 64 41
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During the period the group has ceased to account for certain forward start swaps as cash flow hedges because the group was not able to identify
specific debt instruments that would enable the strict hedge accounting ¢nteria of IAS 39 to be met when the swaps started Fair value losses
amounting to £0 5 million relating to these swaps that had been taken directly to equity will be transferred to the income statement on a straight
line basis over the remaining lives of the swaps Any future changes in the fair values of the swaps will be recorded in the income statement

Detalls of interest rate swaps that have not been accounted for as cash flow hedges, including those where hedge accounting has been
discontinued 10 the period, are summarnised below

Average contract Notional
Contracts where the group pays fixed interest fixed interest rate prnincipal amount Farr value
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Penod to matunty % % im Lm £m £m
Less than 1 year - - - - - -
1-2 years - - - - - -
2-5 years 534 491 2130 4130 (18) (18)
5-10 years 632 632 2350 2250 (18 8) (134)
10-20 years - - - - - -
20-30 years 483 483 5600 5600 427) (354)
1,0080 1,1980 (63 3) (50 6)
During the year the group cancelled swaps with a notional value of £338 mullion
Average contract Nohonal
Contracts where the group receives fixed interest fixed interest rate principal amount Fair value
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Period te matunty % % im £m £m im
5-10 years 518 518 2000 2000 08) (69)
2000 2000 (08) (69)
23 Inventory
2608 2007
£m £m
inventory and work in progress 248 224
24 Trade and other receivables
2008 2007
£m £m
Trade receivables 2828 2560
Less provision for impairment of recevables (83 4) (74 7)
Trade receivables — net 1994 1813
Recevables {from related parties 02 03
Other amounts receivable 249 378
Prepayments and accrued ncome 2096 167 7
4341 3871

The carrying values of trade and other recevables are reasonable approximations of their fair values
There 15 no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade recevables

Prepayments and accrued income include £13 3 million (2007 £8 2 million) in respect of amounts due fram customers for contract work and
£42 4 million (2007 £19 1 mithon) which s recoverable after more than one year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the indwidual business unit level By far the most significant business unit of the group 1s
Severn Trent Water, which represents 82% of group iurnover and 67% of trade recewables Severn Trent Water has a statutory obligation to provide
water and sewerage services to custorners within its region Therefore there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to its trade recevables
and the credit quality of its customer base reflects the wealth and prospenty of all of the commercial businesses and domestic households within
1ts region None of the other business units are indvidually significant to the group
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

24 Trade and other recewvables continued
Mavements an the doubtful debts provision were as follows

2008 2007

£m im

Balance at the beginning of the period 747 701
Amounts written off during the perod (14 0) (183)
Amounts recovered dunng the year 07 -
increase 1n aliowance recogmsed n profit or loss 234 229
Balance at end of year 834 747

Included 1n trade receivables are batances with a carrying amount of £170 5 milhon (2007 £141 8 million) which were past due at the reporting
date but for which no specific provision has been made as the collective impairment recorded against such assets 1s considered to be sufficient
allowance for the risk of non collection of such balances

The aged analysis of past due recevables that were not indwidually impaired was as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

0-90 days 706 597
91-365 days 610 695
1-2 years 227 93
2-3 years 133 30
More than 3 years 29 03
Total 1705 1418

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are provisicns against specific trade receivables amounting to £7 4 million (2007 £3 8 mullion)
The age of the impaired receivables was as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

60-90 days 02 11

91-365 days 09 03

1-2 years o7 03

2-3 years 36 01

More than 3 years 31 32

Total 85 50
25 Cash and cash equivalents

2008 2007

£m im

Cash at bank and in hand 460 432

Short term bank deposits 608 4 1000

654 4 1432

Of the £608 4 mithion of short term bank deposits, £47 7 mdion {2007 £51 5 million) 15 not available for use by the group as it 15 held as security
for insurance cbligations

Net cash and cash equivalents mnclude the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement

2008 2007

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 654 4 1432
Bank overdrafis (note 26) (10) 01
6534 1431
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26 Borrowings

2008 2007
£m £m
Bank overdrafts 10 01
Bank loans 7427 4626
Other loans 29581 23996
Obligations under finance leases 3854 4085
Borrawings 4,087 2 32708
2008 2007
£m £m
The borrowings are repayable as follows

On demand or within one year (included in current abilities) 4595 6318
In the second year 2335 2546
In the thurd to fifth years inclusive 1553 2962
After five years 3,2389 2,088 2
Included tn nan current habilities 36277 26390
4,087 2 3,2708
The group's borrowings are denominated n the following currencies after taking account of cross currency swaps 2008 2007
£m m
Sterling 4,085 4 3,2691
Euro 18 17
4,087 2 3,2708

The fair values of the group’s borrowings were
2008 2007
£m &m
Bank overdrafts 10 01
Bank loans 6114 4297
Other loans 26467 2,1701
Obligations under finance leases 6037 4085
3,8628 3,008 4

Fair values are based on expected future cash flows discounted using LIBOR forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments

Fixed interest debt has a weighted average interest rate of 5 9% (2007 5 7%) for a weighted average period of 15 6 years (2007 13 5 years)

Further details of bank facitities are given in note 22

Obhgations under finance leases are as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Gross obhgations under finance leases 5435 5882

Less future finance charges (158 1) (1797)

Present value of lease obhgations 3854 4085
A matunty analysis of gross obligations under finance teases 1s presented in note 22

Net obligations under finance leases fall due as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

within one year 386 327

In the second year 430 409

In the third to fifth years inclusive 749 1056

After five years 227 9 2293

3458 3758

3854 4085

The remaiming terms of finance leases ranged from 3 to 24 years at 31 March 2008 Interest terms are set at the inception of the lease
Leases with capital outstanding of £176 mullion (2007 £168 million) bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5 4% (2007- 5 2%)

The lease obligations are secured against the related assets The fair value of the finance lease obligatiens is not signiiicantly different from

their carrying value

There were no contingent rents, escalation ¢lauses or matenal renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not impose

restrictions on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing

Severn Trent 83

Sjuawale}s enueuly dnoin




Notes to the group financial statements continued

27 Trade and other payables
2008 2007

£m im
Current habilities
Trade payables 403 327
Social security and other taxes 69 67
Other payables 414 342
Accruals and deferred income 3348 3315

4234 4051

Non current habilities
Deferred income 2146 1830
Accrued expenses 58 53

2204 1883

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade payables 1s not materially ditferent from their fair values
Accruals and deferred income includes mil (2007 £2 5 mullion) in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work
28 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax labilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting perod

Accelerated Retirement Farr value
tax benefit of financial
depreciation cbligation Tax losses  instruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnit 2006 9316 (66 6) On (308) 361 8702
Charge/(credit) to mncome (84) 177 (86) 147 90 244
Charge/(credit) to equity - (43) - 32 0 86) 17
Disposals (3 5) 126 07 - (123) (25)
Exchange differences (01) - 03 - 05 07
At 1 Apnil 2007 9196 4086) 77 (129) 327 8911
Charge/(credit) to income (57 0) 142 {11) 83) (222) (74 4)
Charge/(credit) to equity - (89} - 17 13 (85)
Exchange differences - - 01 - - 01
At 31 March 2007 862 6 {35 3) 87) (19 5) 92 8083
Certain deferred tax assets and habihities have been offset The offset amounts are as follows
2008 2007
£m im
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months (23 9) (44 8)
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months - 47

(239 {49 5)

Deferred tax hability to be recovered after more than 12 menths 8322 9378
Deferred tax hability to be recovered within 12 months - 28

8322 9406
808 3 8911

n addition to the amounts disclosed above, at 31 March 2007 the group had unused tax losses of £4 9 million available for offset against future
profits No asset had been recogrised for these losses since it was not considered probable that there would be sufficient taxable profits available
against which the losses could be utilised [n the year ended 31 March 2008 the unused losses have been recogmised in full

The draft Finance Act 2008 involves legislation which, If enacted, would prevent the group from clairming industrial buildings allowances on
affected assets after 31 March 2011 The current best estimate of the impact of this legislation 1s that it would increase the group’s deferred
tax hability by £168 million
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29 Retirernent benefit schemes

Defined benefit schemes

a) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covering the majonty of UK employees The defined benefit schemes
are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and their assets are held in separate funds administered by trustees The trustees are
required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries A formal actuanal valuation of each scheme 1s carried out an behalf of the
trustees at triennial intervals by an independent professionally quatified actuary Under the defined benefit schemes, members are entitled to
retirement benefits calculated as a propartion (varying between one thirtieth and one eightieth for each year of service) of their salary for the final
year of employment with the group or, if tugher, the average of the highest three consecutive years salary in the last 10 years of employment

The final salary sections of all of the pension schemes hsted below are closed to new entrants and the age profile of scheme participants is
expected to rise and hence service costs are also expected to rnise in the future

The UK defined benefit schemes and the date of their last formal actuanial valuation are as follows

UK defined benefit scheme Date of last formal actuanal valuation
Severn Trent Pension Scheme (STPS)* 31 March 2004
Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme (SSPS) 31 March 2004
Severn Trent Water Mirrer Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2006

*The STPS Is by far the largest of the group's UK defined benefit schemes

On the demerger of Biffa Plc the company entered into an agreement with that company and the trustees of the STPS, the SSPS and the UK
Waste Pension Scheme (UKWPS) whereby the assets and liabilities relating to Biffa Pic employees tn the STPS and the SSPS would be transferred
to the UKWPS with effect from 31 March 2007 The net deficit relating to Biffa Plc employees at the demerger date was £39 millien This has been
included 1n the net assets that formed the dividend i1n specie on demerger The reduction in the deficit between the demerger date and 31 March
2007 was treated as an exceptional loss on settlement of £7 8 million

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted by the
Finance Act 1989 earmings cap Prowision for such benefits amounting to £6 4 million (2007 £7 5 mullion) 15 included as an unfunded scheme
within the retirement benefit obligation

b) Actuanal assumptions
The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the valuations of all
group schemes) were as follows

2008 2007
% %
Price inflation 340 300
Salary increases 4,90 450
Pension increases in paysment and deferred 340 300
Discount rate 640 540
Long term rate of return on
Equities 8 00 825
Gilts 455 4865
Corporate bonds 640 540
Property 630 655
Cash 525 525

The assumption for price inflation 1s derived from the difference beiween the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on index Iinked gilts The
discount rate 1s based on the annualised yield from the 1Boxx over 15 year AA rated sterling corporate bond index At 31 March 2008 the yield on
this index was distorted by certain bonds that were exhubtting unusually high yields These bonds have been excluded from the calculation of the
discount rate

The expected rate of return on scheme assets 1s based on market expectations at the beginring ot the penod for returns over the Iife of the benefit
obligation For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rates of return are based on market yields at the balance sheet date For equities, an equity
risk prermium has been added to the gt rate

The mortality assumptions adopted are based on mortality tables applicable to the sex and year of birth of individual members, with the “medium
cohort" allowance for future improvements in longevity For men, the assurnptions are based on the “00" senes tables and for women, the “92"
senies, both projected to calendar year 2005 with medium cohort improvements to 2005 and a two year age rating applied These have been
based on a mortality investigation carried out In conjuction with the STPS, on behalf of the trustees, as at 31 March 2007

For the year ended 31 March 2007 the revised mortahty assumption had not been agreed when the financial statements were approved and
the financial impact of the improvements in longevity amengst the scheme members was not known The group applied a loading of 4 26%
of labilities as a reserve against longevity improvernents, increasing the habihties at 31 March 2007 by £60 mullion Had the revised mortality
assumption been in place at 31 March 2007, the increase n habilies from this change 1n isolation would have been £4m less than the
loading adopted
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

29 Retirement benefit schemes continued
The hfe expectancies implied by the mortality assumptions adopted at each year end are as follows

2008 2007
Age to which current pensioners aged 65 are expected to live
- men (years) 851 842
- women (years) 88 2 871
Age to which future pensioners aged 45 at the balance sheet date are expected to live
- men {years) 859 849
- women (years) 889 880

The calculation of the scheme Labilittes 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions and in parbicular to the assumptions relating to discount rate, price
inflation and mortahty The following table summarnises the estimated impact on scheme labilittes and service cost resulting fram changes to key
actuarial assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumptian Impact on scheme abihities

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by £2% mlion

Price inflation Increase/decrease by 0 1%, Increase/decrease by £25 miflion

Meortality Increase hfe expectancy by one year Increase by £36 5 millicn

¢) Amounts recogmsed in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes 2008 2007
£m £m

Amounts charged to operating costs

Current service cost (31.5) 41 1)

Past service cost - (0 4)

Exceptional settlement - (78

(315 (49 3)

Amounts charged to finance costs

Interest cost (80 6) (730)
Amounts credited to finance income

Expected return on scheme assets 934 870
Total amount charged to the income statement {18 7) (353)

The actual return on scheme assets was a loss of £32 3 million (2007 gain of £76 4 mihon)
Actuanal gains and losses have been reperted in the statement of recognised Income and expense

d) Amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the group’s obligations under defined benefit schemes

2008 2007
£m £m

Fair value of scheme assets

Eguities 7575 8i15

Gilts 3626 2485

Corporate bonds 1250 1032

Property 766 863

Cash 106 1151
Total fair value of assets 1,3323 1,364 6
Present value of defined benefit obhigatrons - funded schemes (1,45198) (1,4922)

(119 6) (127 6)
Present value of defined benefit obligations — unfunded schemes (6 4) (79
Liability recogrused in the balance sheet (126 0) (135 1)
Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
2008 2007
£m £m

Fawr value at 1 April 1,364 6 14029
Expected return on scheme assets 934 870
Contnbutions from the sponsoring companies 556 974
Contributions from scheme members 81 75
Assets transferred to Biffa Plc - (162 5)
Actuarial losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense (125 7) (10 86)
Benefits paid (637) (57 1)
Fair value at 31 March 1,3323 1,364 6
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Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Present value at 1 Apnl 1,4997 16248
Service cost 315 41%
Exceptional loss on settlement - 78
Interest cost 806 730
Contnbutions from scheme members 81 75
Liabilities transferred to Biffa Plc - (201 5
Actuanal losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense (97 9) 37

Benefits paid

(637) (571

Present value at 31 March 1,458 3 1,499 7
Gf which

2008 2007

£m £m

Amounts relating to funded schemes 1,451 9 1,492 2

Amount relating to the unfunded scheme 64 75

1,458 3 14997

e} Contributions to the schemes

Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer The demerger of Biffa Plc and
other disposals have resulted in addittonal contributions being made in recent years The average leve! of normal contributions (expressed as

a proportion of pensionable payroll) paid to the STPS during the year was

2008 2007

% %

Current service 16 16
Deticit funding 14 14
Total 30 30

The contribution tevels will be revised following the finalisation of the actuarial valuation of the scheres as at 31 March 2007 Until such time as
the contribution levels are agreed 1t 1 not possible to estimate the contributions that will be payable in the year ending 31 March 2009

The history of actual and expected performance of pension schermne assets and habilities 1s

2007 2006 2005
£m £m £Lm
Present value of definec benefit obligations (1,4987) (16248) (1,3944)
Fair value of scheme assets 1,364 6 14029 1,0769
Deficit in the schemes (1351) {(2219) (3175)
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets (106) 1791 375
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities 37 (152 8) 57

Defined contribution schemes

The group also operates defined contribution arrangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees In September 2001, the Severn Trent
Group Pension Scheme (an occupational defined contribution scheme) was established to ensure comphiance with stakeholder legislation and to
provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement This was closed to new entrants on 1 Apnil 2005 and replaced by the Severn Trent

Stakeholder Pension Scheme

The total cost charged to operating costs of £1 5 million (2007 £2 7 million) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group at
rates specified 1n the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2008, all centributions {2007 100%) due in respect of the current reporting period

had been pasd over o the schemes
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

30 Provisions

Fines Environmental
and and landfill

Restructuring Insurance penalties restoration Other Total

im £m £m £m £m £

At 1 Apnl 2006 76 287 - 668 04 1102
Charged to income statement 11 90 - 26 08 211
Utilisation of provision (54) 31 - 40) o7 (21 B)
Unwinding of discount - - - 12 - 12
Disposal of subsidiaries - (3% - {66 6) - (71 B}
At 1 April 2007 33 261 - - 05 389
Charged to income statement 45 39 358 - 50 455
Utiisation of provisicn 37 (7 6) - - (01) (114)
Exchange difference - - - - - 02
At 31 March 2008 41 224 358 - 54 772
2008 2007

£m £m

Incltuded in

Current habtlities 504 67
Non current habilittes 268 322
772 389

The restructunng provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed restructunng programmes

Derwent Insurance Lid, a captive insurance company, 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Provisions for claims are made as set out in
note 2(t) The associated outflows are estimated to anse over a period of up to five years from the balance sheet date

The onerous or loss making contract provision relates to specific contractual liabilities either assurmed with businesses acquired or ansing in

existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues The associated outflows are estimated to

accur over a period of ten years from the balance sheet date

Provisions relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it 1s probable will be paid 1n respect of claims ansing from

services performed by these businesses, overseas employee tax habilities, and the indemnities descnibed in note 38(c)

On 8 April 2008, Ofwat published its proposals to fine Severn Trent Water £35 8 million for misreporting customer service data and fallure to meet
Guaranteed Standards of Service in 2005 A praovision has been made for the full amount of the proposed fine The provision has been recorded

on the basis that the best availlable evidence for making an estimate of the fines that wilt be payable 1s Cfwat's proposal However, Ofwat's

consultation relating to the fines remains open, and there 1s a nght of appeal at its conelusion so the amounts that finally become payable might

not be the amounts proposed by Ofwat

Environmental and landfill restoration provisions reflected costs to be incurred over the operational Iife of individual landfill sites and in the case
of aftercare costs, for up to 30 years thereafter Discounting was applied Following the disposal of Biffa Belgium and the demerger of Biffa Plc

the group no longer has any landfill operations

Other provisions include a charge relating to third party legal costs incurred in the conclusion of a Water Technologies and Services arbitration to

settle an interpretation on a long term operating service contract

31 Share capital

2008 2007
£m £m
Total authorised share capital
346,783,834 ordinary shares of 97%sp (2007 346,783,834 ordinary shares of 97%sp) 3395 3395
Total 1ssued and fully paid share capital*
234,600,076 ardinary shares of 97" %sp (2007 233,164,566 ordinary shares of 973sp) 2297 2283
Changes n share capital were as follows
Nurnber £m
Ordinary shares of 97'7%sp
At 1 April 2007 233,164,566 2283
Shares 1ssued at 473p, 536p, 548p, 568p, 592p, 759p, 823p or 1,172p
under the group's Employee Sharesave Scherne 1,292,887 13
Shares 1ssued at 688p, 720p, 738p, 934p, or 1,005 3p under the group’s Share Option Scheme 142,613 o1
At 31 March 2008 234,600,076 2297
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32 Share premium

2008 2007

£m im

At 1 April 575 486
Employee share cphion scheme 68 89
At 31 March 643 575

33 Other reserves

Capital Translation Total

redemphtion Infrastructure exchange Hedging other

reserve reserve reserve reserves yeserves

£m im £m £m £m

At 1 Apnil 2006 1561 3142 178 557) 4324
Total recognised income for the penod - - (255) 121 {134)
At 1 April 2007 1561 3142 (77 (43 6) 4190
Total recognised income for the period - - 67 17 84
Transfers - - (15 15 -
At 31 March 2008 1561 3142 (25) 4049 427 4

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The infrastructure reserve arose on restating infrastructure assets to fair value as deemed cost on transition to IFRS

The translation reserve anises from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial posihion of foreign subsidianes as well as
foreign exchange differences ansing from hedges of net investment

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions of IAS 39

and the transition rules of IFRS 1

34 Movement in shareholders’ equity

Equity

attnbutable

{0 the equity

holders

Share Share Other Retained of Severn Minonity
capital premium reserves earnings Trent Plc Interests Total
&m £m im £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2006 2272 486 4324 1,188 2 18864 26 1,8990
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 11 89 - - 100 - 100
- value of employees’ services - - 36 36 - 36
Dwidends - - - (739 5} (7395) (10 (740 5)
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 06 (013 - 06
Demerger of Biffa Plc - - - (280 6) (2806) - (2806)
Total recognised income for the period - - (13 4) 2571 2437 15 2452
At 1 Apnil 2007 2283 575 4190 4294 1,1342 31 11,1373
Share gptions and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares issued 14 68 - - 82 - 82
- value of employees’ services - - - 40 40 - 40
Dividends - - - (147 3) (147 3} (08) (148 1)
Current tax on share based payments - - - 27 27 - 27
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - (4 1) (41} - 41)
Total recognised income for the period - - 84 1949 2033 19 2052
At 31 March 2008 2297 643 4274 4796 1,2010 42 1,2052

Retained earnings are stated after deducting £7 3 milhon (2007 £7 3 million) representing own shares purchased by the Severn Trent Employee
Share Ownership Trust for certain senior employees under the Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) The man features of the LTIP are set out 1n
the directors’ remuneration report on pages 38 and 47 At 31 March 2008, the trust held 768310 ordinary shares of 97%%p (2007 819,240

ordinary shares of 97'4sp)

The market value of these shares at 31 March 2008 was £109 mullion (2007 £11 7 mullion)
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

35 Share based payment
The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees During the period, the group recognised total expenses of
£4 0 million (2007 £3 6 million) refated to equity settied share based payment transactions

The weighted average share price during the period was £14 20 (2007 £1382)

At 31 March 2008 the number of awards and options that were exercisable under each of the share based remuneration schemes was as follows
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

exercisable average exercisable average

options/ exercise options/ exercise

awards price awards price

2008 2008 2007 2007

tong Term Incentive Plan - - - -

Employee Sharesave Scheme 970,995 638p 1,218,693 550p

Approved Share Option Scheme 12,012 770p 51,382 749p

Unapproved Share Option Scheme 49,304 724p 156,786 728p
1,032,311 1,426,861

1} Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Under the LTIP annual conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and sentor staff Awards are subject to perfermance
conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting penod During the year awards over 126,189 shares (2007 339,564 shares) were
made to 32 employees (2007 46 employees) The fair value of each award was £4 77 (2007 £6 04)

Detalls of changes in the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of
awards
Outstanding at 1 April 2006 2,540,004
Granted during the year 339,564
Cancelled durng the year (416,047)
Exercised dunng the year (76,810
Lapsed during the year (929,074)
QOutstanding at 1 April 2007 1,457,637
Granted during the year 126,189
Cancelled during the year (16,635)
Lapsed during the year (672,662)
QOutstanding at 31 March 2008 894,529
Details of LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March 2008 were as follows
Narmal date
of vesting Number of shares
2008 2007
Date of grant £m im
December 2004 2007 - 672662
September 2005 2008 467,696 481,816
June 2006 2009 300,644 303,159
July 2007 2010 126,189 -

894,529 1,457,637

The fair value of the LTIP awards made during the year was calculated using the Mente Carlo method using the principal assumptions set out
below

Assumptions 2007/08 2006/07
Expected volatity — Severn Trent Pic 15% 15%

- comparator group 20% 15-20%
Correlation between Severn Trent Plc and comparator group 309, 25%
Expected Itfe (years) 3 3
Proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 0% 0%

Severn Trent share price volatility 1s based on observations of histarical weekly volatility over a three year period Weekly volatility in the observed
data varied between 10% and 20%

For the 2007/08 award the comparator group is the compantes ranked 51-150 1n the FTSE index Comparater group volatility was therefore based
on observed volatility for the FTSE 250 index Correlation between Severn Trent and the comparator group was based on the average pairwise
correlation for campanies in the FTSE 250 For the 2006/07 award the comparator group volatility was based on the actual observed volatiity for
the companies within the comparator group and the correlation between Severn Trent and the comparator group was calculated from the average
pairwise correlation between Severn Trent and the compantes within the comparator group

The share price at the grant date was £13 70 {2007 £11 78)

Dividends ‘paid’ on shares during the vesting period are accumulated during the vesting period and released subject ta achievement of the
performance condition, in the same manner as the underlying shares As a result a dividend yield assumption 1s not required

Details of the basis of the LTIP awards are set out in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 38 to 47
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1)) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares in the company to those employees who

have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a period of three, five or seven years

Details of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below

weighted
Number average
of share exercise
oplions price
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2006 571507% 641p
Granted durning the year 561,552 1.172p
Forfeited during the year (129,177) 693p
Cancelled during the year (112,999) 734p
Exercised dunng the year {1,124,660) 559p
Expired during the year (24,239) 628p
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2007 4,885,552 717p
Granted during the year 643,788 1,221p
Forfeited during the year (128,895) 823p
Cancelled during the year {55,175) 914p
Exercised during the year (1,293,356) 559p
Exprred during the year (18,277) 712p
Qutstanding at 31 March 2008 4,033,637 843p
Sharesave ophions outstanding at 31 March 2008 were as follows
Number of
shares
Date of grant Normal date of exercise Option pnce 2008 2007
January 2000 2007 473p - 284939
January 2001 2008 568p 79,406 85,549
January 2002 2007 or 2009 548p 82,807 463,725
January 2003 2008 or 2010 536p 560,996 534,156
January 2004 2007, 2009 or 2011 582p 401,026 978,115
January 2005 2008, 2010 or 2012 759p 894,078 979,030
January 2006 2009, 2011 or 2013 823p 860,438 943,247
January 2007 2010, 2012 or 2014 1,172p 513,194 556,791
January 2008 2011 or 2013 1,221p 641,692 -
4,033,637 4,885,552
The fair value of the Sharesave options granted during the year was calculated using the Black Scholes model The principal assumptions were
as follows
Scheme year 2007/08 2006/07
Scheme type 3 year 5 year 3 year 5 year 7 year
Expected volatihty 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%
Risk free rate 424% 4 29% 519% 504% 492%
Expected dvidend yield 40% 4.0% 40% 4 0% 4 0%
Propartion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 15 0% 17 0% 150% 17 0% 13 0%
Expected life (years) 325 525 325 525 725
Fair value per share - sharesave 307p 312p 295p 305p 306p

Expected volatility 1s based on observations of historical weekly volatility over a three year period Weekly volatility 1n the observed data vaned

between 10 and 20%
The nisk free rate 1s derived from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration fo the Sharesave contracts
The proportion of employees expected to cease employment before vesting 1s based on historically observed data

The following data was used in the calculation of the fair value of the sharesave ophions

Schemne year 200708 2006/07

Scheme type 3 year 5 year 3 year 5 year 7 year
Share price at grant date 1,520p 1,520p 1,428p 1,428p 1,428p
Vesting perod (years) 3 5 3 5 7
QOption hfe (years) 35 55 35 55 75
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

35 Share based payment continued
1} Employee Sharesave Scheme continued

The number of employees entering intoe sharesave contracts and the number of options granted during the year were as follows

Scheme year 2007/08 2006/07

Scheme type 3 year 5 year 7 year 3 year 5 year 7 year
Number of employees 1,638 630 - 1,420 511 96
Number of aptions granted 384,033 259,755 - 343413 175583 42546

) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group compames During the year the beard has announced that it will make
awards under the SIP, to Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Plc employees, based on performance against Severn Trent Water’s targets for its
Key Performance Indicators Elgble employees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of £750 It 1s expected that these awards will be

made 1in August 2008 SIPshares vest with the employees immediately

v) Approved Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme (formerly Executive Share Option Scheme), the board has granted directors and other executives
options to purchase ordinary shares in the company No awards have been made under this scheme since July 2003

Weighted

Number average

of share exercise

options price

Cutstanding at 1 Aprnl 2006 253,437 768p
Forfeited during the year (86,656) 695p
Exercised duning the year (115,399) 800p
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2007 51,382 816p
Exercised during the year {39,370) 830p
Outstanding at 31 March 2008 12,012 770p

Options outstanding under this scheme at 31

March 2008 were as follows

Number of shares

Date of grant Normal date of exercise Option price 2008 2007
June 1998 2001-2008 1005p - 8,956
June 1999 2002-2009 934p 3,211 12,677
June 2000 2003-2010 688p 3,416 14,360
July 2001 2004-2011 738p 1,016 7,722
June 2002 2005-2012 720p 4,369 7,667

12,012 51,382

v) Unapproved Share Option Scheme

The board has granted executives options to purchase crdinary shares in the company under an unapproved share option scheme No awards
have been made under this scheme since July 2003

Details of the movements in the share awards outstanding during the year are as follows

Weighted

Number average

of share exercise

options price

Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2006 745,084 724p
Forfeited during the year (264,860) 691p
Exercised duning the year (329,216) 749p
Qutstanding at 1 April 2007 151,008 728p
Exercised during the year (101,704) 729
Outstanding at 31 March 2008 49,304 724p

Optiens outstanding under this sgcheme at 31

March 2008 were as follows

Number of shares

Date of grant Normai date of exercise Option price 2008 2007
June 1999 2002-2009 934p 108 5,899
June 2000 2003-2010 688p 5,449 36,758
July 2001 2004-2011 738p 18,848 58,897
June 2002 2005-201 2 720p 24,899 49,454

48,304 151,008
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36 Disposal of subsidiaries
On 29 December 2006 the group sold Severn Trent Laboratories Inc to TestAmerica Holdings Inc

The contract relating to the disposal of Severn Trent Laboratories Inc required adjustments to the consideration based on the values of certain
assets and liabihities 1in completion accounts drawn up to the date of disposal The completion accounts were agreed with the purchasers during
the year ended 31 March 2008 This resulted in a further gain on disposal of £0 8 million which has been inctuded in discontinued operations

37 Cash flow statement
a) Reconcihiation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2008 2007

£m £m

Profit before interest and tax from continuing operations 4007 4300
Profit before interest and tax from discontinued operations o8 349
4015 4649

Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment 204 5 2545
Amortisation of intangible assets 273 294
Impairment of goodwill - 315
Pension service cost 315 493
Pension contributions (55.6) (97 4)
Share based payments charge 40 36
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment an (39 6)
Profit on sale of subsichianes and assocrates - (24 5}
Deferred income released 52) (3 5)
Provisions charged to income statement 495 211
Utiisation of provisions for habilities and charges (11.4) {218)
Increase 10 stocks (2 4) (4 5)
Increase in debtors (44 3) @20
Increase in creditors 48.2 30
Cash generated from operations 6459 5740
Interest paid (153 5) (148 6)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (20 6) (20 2)
Tax pad (76 2) (360Q)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3956 3692

b) Analysis of net cash and cash equivalents

2008 2007

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 654 4 1432
Bank overdrafts (10) o1
6534 1431

¢} Non cash transactions
No additions to property, plant and equipment duning the year were financed by new finance leases (2007 nil)

38 Contingent habihities

a) Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No hability 1s expected to arise in respect of either
bonds or guarantees

b) Regulatory matters
In May 2004 an employee of Severn Trent Water raised a number of allegations relating, in particular, to alleged accounting inaccuracies and
regulatory returns

On 7 March 2006 Qfwat published its intenm report concerning the allegations of false reparting made against Severn Trent Water in 2004
In responding to the report Severn Trent Plc agreed to credit customers’ accounts and reduce future tanffs
The company also acknowledged that Ofwat may expect further amends to be made to customers

Severn Trent Water has pleaded guilty to two offences relating to leakage data supplied to Ofwat in 2001 and 2002 A sentencing hearing to
determine the amount of the fine began on 2 June 2008 and is due to resume on 1 July 2008 When concluded, Severn Trent Water wili be
able to commence discussions with Ofwat concerming further amends {0 be made to customers

No rehiable estirmate can currently be made of the amount that will become payable as a result of the SFO charges or Ofwat’s final conclusion in
respect of the allegations of false reporting Consequently no provision has been included In these financial statements in respect of these matters

¢) Disposa! of subsidiaries
The group has given certain guarantees and indemnities in relation to disposals of businesses

In June 2005 The Flemish Waste Agency (OVAM) instigated an investigation by the Antwerp Examining Magistrate into Biffa Belgium's waste
recyching operations in connection with the payment of environmental taxes Two of the Biffa Belgium companies were indicted by the Flemish
prosecuting authorities on 13 December 2005

On 3 March 2008 the company was inforrmed by the purchaser of the Biffa Belgium companies that certain directors of these companies had
been summoned to appear before the court in Antwerp The Biffa Belgium companies were not surnmoned However, under Flemish law the Biffa
Belgium companies may be civilly liable for cnmunal penalties that may be levied upon the directors
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Notes to the group financial statements continued

38 Contingent liabihties continued

Separately, the Nivelles Public Prosecutor 1ssued a claim on 22 November 2006 against Biffa Belgium that may relate to the same matters
investigated in the Flanders region

Pursuant to the sale agreement of 11 May 2006, the group has given an indemnity 1n relation to certain costs that may be suffered by the former
Biffa Belgium businesses as a result of these proceedings A provision of £1 6 milhion is included in these financial statements for Labilities that
may result from this iIndemnity

On 5 March 2007 the group received notice of a claim for €23 4 milhon from Veolia Proprete SA alleging breach of warranty in relation to the
disposal of Biffa Belgium The group has subsequently received notice from Veolha of a further claim for €5 rmullion relating to the same matter
The group considers that there 1s no basis for this claim and hence no prowistan has been recorded in the financial statements 0 relation to
this matter

The group 15 not aware of any other liability that 1s hkely to result from these guarantees and indemmities that has not been provided for in these
financial statements

39 Financial and other commitments

2008 2007
£m £m

Investment expenditure commitments
Contracted for but not prowided in the financial statements 2614 2427

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water has longer term expenditure plans which in¢lude investments to achieve
improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage
sServices

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum operating lease payments under non cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows

2008 2007

£m &m

Within one year 62 70
In the second to fifth years inclusive 136 170
After more than five years 103 100
301 340

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment

40 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 41 29p per share Further details of this are shown in note 15

41 Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on conselidatien and are not included In
this note Transactions between the group and its asscciates and joint ventures are disclosed below

Trading transactions

Amounts due from Amounts dug to

Sale of goads Purchase of goods retated parties related parties
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
im im £m £m
Cognica - - 01 01 - - - -
Si 124 77 - - 137 95 - -
Detroit Water 01 02 - - o1 - - -
125 79 01 01 138 95 - -

The related parties are associates and joint ventures in which the group has a participating interest

Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise the executive directors and senior management of Severn Trent Plc, Severn Trent Water, and Severn Trent
Services

The remuneration of the directors is included within the amounts disclosed betow Further information about the remuneration of individual
directors 1s provided 1n the audited part of the directors’ remuneration report on pages 38to 47

2008 2007

£m £m

Short term empioyee benefits 44 64
Post employment benefits 05 08
Termination benefits 11 05
Share based payments 08 0t
68 78
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42 Principal subsidiary undertakings and their directors
Details of the principal operating subsidiaries are given below

A complete list of subsidiary undertakings 1s available on request
to the company and will be filted with the next annual return

Water and Sewerage

Severn Trent Water Ltd

2297 Coventry Road, Birrmingham B26 3PU
Tel 0121 722 4000

Directors

Sir John L Egan A [ Ballance
B Bulkin R H Davey

M J Houston M J Kane

M J Lamb M J E McKean
Baroness Noakes A P Smith

A P Wray

Water Technologies and Services

Severn Trent Services Inc

Suite 300, 580 Virginia Drive,

Ft Washington, Pennsyivania 19034 2707, US

Tel 001 215 646 9201

{Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)

Directars

D L Chester
K J Kelly

L F Graziano

Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc

Park 10, 16337 Park Row

Houston, Texas 77084, US

Telephone 00t 281 578 4200

(Incorperated and operational in the Umited States of America)

Directors

D L Chester
K J Kefly

L F Graziano

Severn Trent Services Lid
Park Lane, Minwarth, Sutton Coldhield, West Midlands B76 9BL
Tel 0121 313 2300

Durectors
L F Graziano R C McPheely
K A A Porntt P M Semor

Severn Trent Water Punfication Inc

3000 Advance Lane, Cotmar

Pennsylvania 18915, US

Tel 00} 215 997 4000

(Incorporated and operationat in the United States of Amenica)

Directors

D L Chester
K 1 Kelly

L F Graziano

Severn Trent Metering Services Ltd
Smeckley Wood Close

Chesterfield Trading Estate
Chesterfield $41 9PZ

Tel 01246 456658

Directors
L F Graziano R C McPheely
K A A Porritt P M Senior

Severn Trent Services Internatienal Ltd
2308 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 312
Tel 0121 722 6000

Directors
L F Graziane R C McPheely
K A A Porntt P M Serior

C2C Services Ltd

(80% owned)

2308 Coventry Road, Birmingham B26 3JZ
Tel 0121 722 6000

Directors

W F Earp A J Handford
B M Herner R J Phillips
W G Weatherdon E A Wilson

Severn Trent Laboratories Lid
STL Business Centre, Torrington Avenue

Coventry Cv4 9GU

Tel 024 764 21213

Directors

L F Graziano R C McPheely
K A A Porntt P M Senior

Other businesses

Derwent Insurance Ltd

6A Queensway, PO Box 64, Gibraltar

Tel Q0 35047529

(Insurance company — incorporated and operational in Gibraltar)

Directors

J Davies N Feetham
F B Smith F White
GT Fiduciary Services Limited

Severn Trent Luxembourg Overseas Holdings SA
1A rue Thomas Edison L-1445 Strassen, Luxembourg
(Finance company registered and operational in Luxembourg)

Directors

O L Chester L F Graziano
M J £ McKeon X Pauwels
D Robyns F B Smith

Country of incorporation and main operation 15 Great Britain and
registration 1s England and Wales unless otherwise stated

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless otherwise
indicated All shareholdings are in ordinary shares

All substdiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation

As at 4 June 2008
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Severn Trent Ple for the year ended 31 March 2008 which comprise the balance
sheet, statement of total recognised gains and losses and the related notes 1 to 19 These parent company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2008 and on the information in
the directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 QOur audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent perrrutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilitres of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepaning the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements in accordance with apphicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out In the statement of
directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent company
financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with the Campanies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opimion the
directors’ report i1s consistent with the parent company financial statements The information given 1n the directors’ report includes that specific
information presented in the chairman’s staterment, the chief executive’s review and the performance reviews that are cross referred from the
business review section of the directors’ report

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or If information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether it 1s consistent with the
audited parent company financial statements We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
rmatenal inconsistencies with the parent company financiat statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any further information outside the
Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance wrth International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board

An audit includes exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements
It alsc includes an assessmemnt of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adeguately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary In order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements are free frorn matertal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other wrregulanty or error [n forming our opimion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the parent company financial statements

Opinion
In our opinton

® the parent company financial staternents give a true and fair view, In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2008,

@ the parent company ftnancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act 1985, and

® the information given in the directors’ repert 1s cansistent with the parw.uy—ﬁnancual staterments

Deloitte & Touche LLP > \ C Z %

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, UK
4 June 2008

96 Severn Trent Annual Report and Accounts 2008




Company balance sheet

At 31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2007
£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 2 - o1
Investments in subsidiaries 3 3,3871 3,2609
Dernvative financial instruments 46 06
3,3917 3,2616
Current assets
Debtors 4 498 108 2
Derrvative financial instruments 10 16
Cash at bank and in hand 1900 4980
2408 607 8
Creditors armounts faling due within one year 5 (748 4) (703 9)
Net current habihities (507 6) @6 1)
Total assets less current habilities 28841 3,1655
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (131 2) (238 3)
Net assets 2,752 9 29272
Capital and reserves attnibutable to the company's equity sharehelders
Called up share capital 10 2297 2283
Share premium account 11 64 3 575
Other reserves 12 144 0 1408
Retained earnings 13 2,314 9 2,5006
Equity attributable to the company's equity shareholders 13 2,752 9 29272
Jf of the board who approved the accounts on 4 June 2008
bg Michael McKeon
Chairmak / Finance Director
Company statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2008
2008 2007
£m £m
Transfers
Transfers to profit and loss account on cashflow hedges 32 32
Deferred tax on transters to profit and loss account (0.9) (10
23 22
(Loss)/profit for the pereod (41 0) 14024
Total recognised gains and losses for the period (387) 1,404 6
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Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as madified by the revaluation of financial assets and habilities
(including derivative instruments) at far value through profit or loss and in accardance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and comply with the requirements of the United Kingdom Cempanies Act 1985 (the Act)

b) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other assets are depreciated
on a straight line basis over their estimated econonuc ives, which are principally as follows

Years
Buildings 30-60
Vehicles, computers and software 2-15

c) Leased assets

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee
tfinance leases), the assets are accounted for as if they had been purchased and the fair values of mimmum lease payments are shown as an
obligation to the lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease in proportion to the
capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease period All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are charged to the prafit and loss account an a straight ine basis
over the hife of the tease

d) Impairment of fixed assets and thvestments

Impairments of fixed assets and (nvestments are calculated as the difference between the carrying value of net assets of income generating units,
including where appropnate investments and goodwill, and their recoverable amounts Recoverable amount 1s defined as the higher of net
realisable value or estimated value in use at the date the impairment review 1s undertaken Net realisable value represents the net amount that can
be generated through sale of assets Value in use represents the present value of expected future cash flows discounted on a pre-tax basis, using
the estimated cost of capital of the income generating unit Impairment reviews are carried out if there 1s some indication that an impairment may
have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not carried above their esttmated recoverable amounts
impairments are recognised in the profit and loss account and, where matenal, are disclosed as exceptional

e} Financial instruments

Debt instruments

All loans and borrowings are imbially recogmsed at cost, being the net fair value of the consideration received After initial recognition, interest
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amorbised cost using the effective interest rate methed Where a loan or borrowing
15 1n a fair value hedging relationship 1t ts remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at the balance sheet date with gains or losses
being recognised in the income statement (see beilow)

Gains and losses are recegmised In the profit and loss account when the iabihties are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The company uses dernwvative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its
risks assoclated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations Such derivative instruments are initially recarded at cost and subseguently
remeasured at fair value for the reported balance sheet The fair value of cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts
15 calcuwiated by reference to market exchange rates and interest rates at tne penod end

In relation to far value hedges which reet the conditions for hedge accounting, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is taken to the profit
and loss account where the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item (see above)}

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge is recogmised directly in reserves, and the ineffective portion in the profit and loss account The gains or losses
deferred 1n reserves in this way are recycied through the profit and loss account in the same period Iin which the hedged underlying transaction or
firm commitment 1s recognised in the profit and loss account

For denivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, gains or losses are taken directly to the profit and loss account in the perrod

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualtfres for hedge
accounting At that date any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recogrised in reserves Is kept tn reserves unti the forecast
transaction occurs, or transferred to the proiit and loss account if the forecast transaction i1s no longer expected to occur

Dervatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their rnisks and charactenistics
are not closely related to those of the host contract or the host contract 1s not carried at far value with gains and losses reported 1n the profit and
loss account

f) Investments
Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings are held at historicat cost

After mmitial recognition at cost (being the fair vatue of the consideration pard), investments which are classified as held for trading or available for
sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised 1n profit and loss or equity respectively When an avallable {for sale investment 1s
disposed of, or impaired, the gain or loss previcusly recognised in reserves is taken to the profit and loss accournt
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Other investments are classified as held to maturity when the company has the positive intention and ahihity to hold to maturnity Investrments held
for an undefined period are excluded from this classification Such investments (and those held to maturity) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains or losses being recognised 1n the profit and loss account

g} Share based payments
The company operates a number of equity settled, share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the employee services
receved 1n exchange for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting pencd of the grant

The fair value of employee services is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted calculated using a pricing model, excluding
the impact of any non market conditions The number of awards expected to vest takes into account nen market vesting conditions including,
where appropriate, continuing employment by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a resuilt of falling to meet

a non market based condition

h) Cash flow statement
The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Financial Reporting Statement 1 ‘Cash Flow Staterments’ and not produced a cash
flow staterment

1} Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s fully provided for in respect of tming differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes
only to the extent that the group has an obhgation 10 pay more tax in the tuture or a nghi to pay less taxin the future Deferred tax assets are

only recogrused to the extent that taxable profits are expected to arise (n the future Material deferred taxation balances arising are discounted

by applying an appropnate risk free discount rate

1} Pensions

The company participates in the group’s defined benefit and defined centribution pension schemes, details of which are set out In note 29 to the
group financial staterents However, the company 15 currently unable to identify its share of assets and tiabilities relating to the defined benefit
schemes The pension costs charged against the operating profit are the contnibutions payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period

in respect of the defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

2 Tangible fixed assets

Land and Plant and
buildings equipment Totat
£m £m £m
Cost
At I April 2007 and at 31 March 2008 Q7 42 49
Depreciation
At 1 April 2007 07 41 48
Charge for year - 01 01
At 31 March 2008 07 4.2 49
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 - - -
At 31 March 2007 - 01 01
3 Investments
Subsidiary undertakings
Shares Loans Total
£m &m £m
At 1 April 2007 1,294 1 19668 3,2609
Additions/loans advanced 970 - 970
Disposals/loans repaid - (108) (108)
Loans exchanged for shares 1,7144 (1,714 4) -
Foreign exchange movement - 400 400
At 31 March 2008 3,1055 2816 3,3871

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the company are given in

note 42 of the group financial statements
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

4 Debtors
2008 2007
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings 45 940
Deferred tax 59 96
Other debtors 0.1 09
Corporation tax recoverable 377 -
Prepayments and accrued income 1.6 37
49,8 108 2
5 Creditors amounts falling due within one year
2008 2007
£m £m
Bank overdrafts - -
Other loans 1425 5512
Borrowings 142.5 512
Dervative financial instruments 4,2 188
Trade creditors - o8
Amounts due to group undertakings 590 6 1053
Qther creditars - 73
Taxation and social security 0.2 08
Corporation tax payable - 60
Accrued expenses 109 137

7484 7039

6 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

2008 2007
&m £m
Borrowings — other loans 1081 2074
Derivative financial instruments 231 234
Other creditors - 75
1312 2383

7 Employee costs and auditors’ remuneratton
2008 2007
im £m
Wages and salaries 1.0 107
Social security costs 03 08
Pension costs 25 10
Total employee costs 38 125

For details of directors’ remuneration see the directors’ remuneration report on pages 38 to 47

Auditors' fees in respect of the company were £200,000 (2007 £200,000) For full detaits of the fees paid to the avditors by the group,
see note 7 of the group financial statements

Fees payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP and their associates for non audit services to the company are not required to be disclosed because
the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basts

8 Employee numbers

The average number of employees of the company (including executive directors) durnng the year was 14 (2007 84)

All were based (n the United Kingdorm
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9 Borrowings
The fair value of the company's borrowings were

2008 2007
£m im
Other loans 2407 7113

Fair valugs are based on expected future cash flows discounted using LIBOR forward interest rates related to the expecied timing of payments

After talung into account interest and cross currency swaps, 100% of the company's borrowings are at fixed interest rates (2007 38%)
In 2007 the remainder of the company's debt was held at floating rate Floating rate debt bears interest at LIBOR

Fixed rate debt has a weighted average interest rate of 6 4% (2007 64%) for a weighted average period of 6 2 years (2007 7 2 years)

Borrowings analysed by matunity date

2008 2007
£m im
Borrowings due within one year 142 5 5512
Borrowings due after one year
Between one and two years 461 1307
Between two and five years 238 534
After more than five years 38.2 233
Total borrowings due after one year 1081 2074
2506 7586
Borrowing facilittes
The company has the following undrawn commutted borrowing facilities available at 31 March 2008
2008 2007
£m £m
Expiring 1n more than one but not more than two years 417 -
Expiring in between twe and five years 458 3 5000

5000 5000

In addition, the company has a committed facility of £800 mitlion (2007 £80 0 million}, of which up to £60 milion may be drawn 1n the form of
money market barrowings and the balance not uthsed by such drawings may be drawn as overdraft The amount undrawn at the year end was
£80 million (2007 £47 2 mithon)

The faciliites are in the joint names of the company and Severn Trent Water Ltd
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

10 Share capital

2008 2007
£m im
Total authorised share capital
346,783,834 ordinary shares of 97%sp (2007 346,783,834 ordinary shares of 97%sp) 3395 3395
Total ssued and fully paid share capital
274,600,076 ordinary shares of 97%sp (2007 233,164,566 ordinary shares of 97 %up) 2297 2283
Changes In share capital were as follows
Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97%sp
At 1 April 2007 233,164,566 2283
Shares 1ssued at 473p, 536p, 548p, 568p, 592p, 759p, 823p or 1,172p under
the group's Employee Sharesave Scherne 1,292 897 13
Shares 1ssued at 688p, 720p, 738p, 934p, or 1,005 3p under the group’s Share Option Scheme 142,613 01
At 31 March 2008 234,600,076 2297
11 Share premuum
2008 2007
£m £m
ALY Aprid 5758 486
Employee share option scheme 68 89
At 31 March 643 575
12 Other reserves
Capital
redemption Hedging Special Total other
reserve reserves reserve reserves
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnil 2006 1561 (18 5) - 1376
Cash flow hedges - transfer to net profit - 32 - 32
Transfer from profit and loss account - - 7113 7113
Dwidend I1n specie paid - - (711 3) {711 3)
At 1 Apnl 2007 1561 {15 3) - 1408
Cash flow hedges — transfer to net profit - 32 - 32
At 31 March 2008 156 1 {12 1) - 1440

The capital redemption reserve arose on the repurchase of B shares This i1s not distributable
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13 Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity

Equity
attrnibutable
to the equity
holders
Share Share QOther Retatned of Severn
capital premum reserves garnings Trent Ple
£m im £m im £m
At 1 Apnl 2006 2272 486 1376 25487 29621
Cash flow hedges
- transfers to net profit - - 32 - 32
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 11 B9 - - 100
- value of employees’ services - - - 14 14
Net profit for the year - - - 14024 1,4024
Transfer to special reserve - - 7113 (711 3) -
Dividend 1n specie paid - - (71 3) - (711 3)
Dividends - - - (739 4) (739 4)
Deferred tax on items posted directly to equity - - - (12} (12)
At 1 Apnil 2007 2283 575 1408 25006 29272
Cash flow hedges
- transfers to net profit - - 32 - 32
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 14 68 - - 82
- value of employees’ services - - - 40 40
Net loss for the year - - - (407 40 7)
Dwvidends - - - (147 3 (147 3)
Deferred tax on items posted directly to equity - - - an a7n
At 31 March 2008 2297 643 1440 2,314 9 2,7529

In previous years £1,221 2 million of the company’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructuring exercises and 1s noi considered likely
to be distributable As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no profit and loss account is presented for the company

The dividend 1n specie paid represents the shares in Biffa Plc that were transferred to the shareholders of Severn Trent Plc to elfect the demerger

of Biffa Plc

14 Employee share schemes

For details of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company, including the calculation of the fair value of awards,

see note 35 of the consolidated financial statements

Details of LTIP conditional awards and share options granted by the cornpany to its employees are set out below

The company has charged £0 1 rmllion (2007 £1 4 milhion) to the profit and loss account in respect of share based payments

2008 2007
Number of Weighted Number of Wetghted
exercisable average exercisable average
options/ exercise options/ exercise
awards price awards price
Long Term Incentive Plan - - - -
Employee Sharesave scheme 1,259 589 7p 3,292 486 8p
1,259 3,292
1} Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
Details of changes 1n the nurmber of awards outstanding during the year are set out below
No of awards
Qutstanding at 1 Apnil 2006 871,860
Granted during the year 208,404
Vested during the year (13,944)
Lapsed during the year (359,494}
Qutstanding at 1 Apnit 2007 706,826
Granted during the year 45,148
Cancelled during the year (12,708)
Lapsed during the year (315,712)
Quistanding at 31 March 2008 423,554
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

14 Employee share schemes continued
Awards outstanding at 31 March 2008 were

Number of shares

Date of grant Normal date of veshing 2008 2007
December 2004 2007 - 315712
September 2005 2008 208,922 219,115
June 2006 2009 169,484 171,999
July 2007 2010 45,148 -
423,554 706,826

1) Employee Sharesave scheme
Weighted
Number average
of share exercise
optiens price
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2007 11,068 884p
Granted during the year 1,106 1,172p
Lapsed during the year (535) 1,128p
Exercised during the year (2,257) 1,065p
Qutstanding at 31 March 2007 9,382 1,028p
Cancelled during the year (3,007 898p
Exercised during the year {3,292) 487p
Outstanding at 31 March 2008 3,083 780p

Number of shares

Date of grant Naormal date of exercise Option price 2008 2007
January 2000 2007 831ip - 2,688
January 2002 2007 or 2009 548p 1,010 1614
January 2005 2008, 2010 or 2012 759p 249 249
January 2006 2009, 2011 or 2013 823p 1,363 3,725
January 2007 2010, 2012 or 2014 1,172p 461 1,106
3,083 9,382
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15 Pensions

The company operates a number of defined benefit schemes (being the Severn Trent Pension Scheme, the Severn Trent Water Mirror Image
Pension Scheme and the Severn Trent Semior Staff Pension Scheme) In addition, the group operates an unfunded arrangement for certain
employeeas whose earnings are above the pension cap

Further detars regarding the operation of these schemes are given in note 29 of the group financial statements

The company 15 currently unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and habilities from the group’s defined benefit schemes, and hence
it continues to account for the cost of contnbutions as if the scheme was a defined contribution scheme

The pension charge for the year was £2 6 milhign (2007 £1 0 milhon}

16 Related party transactions
The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 and not disclosed details of transactions with other undertakings within
the Severn Trent group of companies

17 Conttngent habihities

a) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liabilities are expected to arise In respect of either
the bonds or guarantees

b} Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings Under these arrangements
participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances, which can be offset against balances
of participating companies

18 Post balance sheet events
On 4 June 2008 the board of directors proposed a final dividend of 41 29p per share

19 Dividends
For details of the dividends paid and proposed in 2007/08 and 2006/07 see note 15 in the group financia! statements
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R —
Five Year Summary
IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS UKGARP
2008 2007 2006 20058 2004
tated tated tated
Continuing operations (IFRS)/Continuing and discontinued (UK GAAP) £m £m (res as.rn) (res a;m) (res £m)
Turnover 1,552 4 1,4802 1,4553 12523 20151
Profit betore interest, goodwili amortisation and exceptional items 469 5 4053 3930 3095 4406
Goodwtill amortisation - - - - (29 8)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptiona! items 469 5 4053 3930 3095 4108
Net exceptional items (68 8) 247 (15 7) 23) 116
Net interest payable before (losses)/gains on financial instruments (177 4) {153 8) (1639) {164 1) (168 0)
(Losses)/gains an finangial instruments (310} 488 367) - -
Results of associates and joint ventures o1 05 11 07 -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 192 4 3255 1778 1438 254 4
Current taxation eon profit on erdinary activibes (56 2) {58 5) (615) (191) {333}
Deferred taxation 744 (184) 73 (34 3) {(363)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 2106 2486 1236 904 1848
Discontinued (IFRS) 08 200 994 677 -
Profit for the period 2114 2686 2230 1581 1848
Net assets employed
Fixed assets 58929 56755 56,3916 6,290 8 58039
Qther net liabihties excluding net debt, retirement benefit obligation and provisions (217 3) (2429) (212 2) (2183) (2667
Derivative financial instruments (26 1) (102 6) (1300) - -
Retirement benefit obligation (126 0) (1351} (2219) {317 5) -
Provisions for l:abilities and charges and deferred tax (885 5) {930 0) (9804) (10109 5720y
Net assets held for sale - - 130 - -
46380 4,264 9 48601 4,744 1 49652
Financed by
Called up share capital 2297 2283 2272 2258 2252
Reserves 9713 9059 1,669 2 16218 19885
Total shareholders' funds 1,2010 1,134 2 1,896 4 184756 22137
Minonty shareholders' interests 42 31 26 19 24
Net debt 34328 31276 29611 28946 2,7491
46380 42649 48601 4744 % 4965 2

Statistics
Earnings per share {(continuing) (UK GAAP continuing and discontinued) 893 106 1p 529p 390p 803p
Adjusted earnings per share 978 824p 704p 52 6p 92 1p
Dividends per share (excluding specral dividend) 6563 61 45p 5113 48 51p 47 D4p
Dividend cover (before exceptional items and before deferred tax) 13 18 13 12 13
Gearing 74 0% 733% 60 9% 61 0% 554%
Ordinary share price at 3! March 1,419p 1,434p 1,117p 915p 76lp
Average number of employees (FTE) — Water and Sewerage 5,569 5,289 5,188 5,106 4,598

- other 2814 7,172 11,124 11,268 16,7985

Foliowing the implementation of UITF 38 - ‘Accounting for ESOP Trusts’, the 2004 balance sheet was restated to reflect shares held by the Severn
Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust which have not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet date The 2003 comparatives have not been

restated for this in the above table

Gearing has been calculated as net debt divided by the sum of equity and net debt
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Information for shareholders

Electromic commumnications and the Severn Trent Pic website

At the 2007 Annual General Meeting (AGM) a resolution, amending
the articles of association, was passed allowing the company to
communicate with shareholders either via the Severn Trent Plc website
or by post The company wrote to shareholders in April 2008 asking
that they return the reply card enclosed, choosing to either

® provide an emall address to receive notifications when shareholder
documentatron 1s made available on the website, or
® continue to receive shareholder documentation in hard copy

If the completed card was not returned then, in accordance with the
Companies Act 20086, shareholders were deemed to have agreed to
recewe shareholder documentation via the Severn Trent Plc website
These shareholders, and those who have positively elected for website
communication, were sent, on the pubhcation date, a written notification
that the 2008 shareholder documents are available to view on the
Severn Trent Plc website at www severntrent com

The new arrangements enable sharehglders to access information
immediatety as it becomes avalable By using electrenic
communications the company s also able to both reduce its impact
on the environment from reducing the use of paper and the energy
requtred for publication and distribution, and benefit from savings
associated with reduced printing and mailing costs

The Severn Trent Plc website at www severntrent com also prowides
company news and information, together with links to the company's
operational businesses websites

The investors’ section of the website contains up to date information
for shareholders including

comprehensive share price information,

financial results,

a history of dividend payment dates and amounts, and

access to current and historical shareholder documents such as the
Annual Repert and Accounts

Shareholders who register to receive shareholder documentation from
Severn Trent Plc electromically can

view the Annual Report and Accounts on the day 1t 1s published,
recelve an emall alert when shareholder documents are available,
cast their AGM vote electronically, and

manage theirr shareholding quickly and securely online, through
Shareview

Visit www shareview co uk for more information and to register for
electronic shareholder communications

Severn Trent shareholder helpline
The company's registrar 1s Equinih Limited Equinit’s main
responsibilities include

® mamntaining the shareholder register, and
® making dividend payments

If you have any queries on the following matters you can contact
Equiriti via one of the methods below

transfer of shares,

change of name or address,

amalgamating different share accounts (arnsing from inconsistencies
In name or address details),

lost share certificate,

lost or out of date dividend cheques and other dividend queries,
death of the registered holder of shares, or

any other query relating to your Severn Trent shareholding

Tel 0871 384 2967*
Textphone QB71 384 2255*

By post Equimiti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex,
BN9S 6DA

E-mail severntrent@equinit com

*calls to these numbers are charged at 8 pence per minute from a BT
landhine Other telephony providers’ costs may vary

A range of frequently asked questions is aiso available at
www shareview co uk
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Dividend payments directly into bank accounts
Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank or building society
account This service has a nurnber of benefits

there 15 no chance of the dividend cheque being lost in the post,

no waiting for funds te clear as the cash 1s paid directly into the
account on the payment date without the need to pay in the cheque
and walt for it to clear,

reduces the paper and postage we use, and

beginming with the 2008/09 financial year, a single consolidated tax
voucher wiil be 1ssued at the end of each tax year, in April, in ime
for your self-assessment tax return

QOverseas dividend payments

A service has been established to provide shareholders 1n over 30
countries with the opportunity to receive Severn Trent dividends in their
local currency For a small adnuristration fee, shareholders can have
thew dividends automatically converted from sterling and paid into their
bank account, normally within five working days of the dividend
payment date For further details, please contact +44 121 4157044

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent shares, you will need
to use a stockbroker or high street bank which trades on the London
Stock Exchange There are also many telephone and online services
available to you If you are seling, you will need to present your share
certificate at the time of sale Details of a low cost dealing services may
be obtained from www shareview co uk or 0845 603 7037

Shareholder secunity

Shareholders are advised to be wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to
buy shares at a discount, or offers of free reports about the company
More detalled information can be found at www fsa gov uk/consumer

Unsohicoited mail

The company 1s legally obliged to make its share register available
to the general public Consequently some shareholders may recelve
unsolicited mail If you wish to imit the amount of unsolicited mail
you recewe please contact

The Mailing Preference Service (MPS), DMA House, 70 Margaret Street,
London W1W 855

Alternatively, register online at www mpsonline org uk or call the MPS
Registration hne on 0845 703 4599

Share price information

As well as using the company website to view details of the current and |
histoncal Severn Trent share price, shareholders can find share prices
listed iIn most national newspapers Ceefax and Teletext pages also display |
share prices that are updated regularly throughout the trading day For

a real tirne buying or selling price, you should contact a stockbroker

Gifting your shares

To transfer your shares to another member of your family as a gift,
please request a gift transfer form from Equinitt The completed transfer
form together with the retevant share certificate(s) should be returned
to Equiniti to record the change in ownership

If you have a small number of shares and would hike to donate them to
charity, please ask Equinmiti for a ShareGift (chanity donation scheme)
transfer form Information is alse available on the ShareGift website at
www sharegift org or by telephoring 0207 337 0501

Financial calendar

18 June 2008 Ex-dividend date for 2007/08 final dividend
20 June 2008 Record date for 2007/08 finai dividend
22 July 2008 AGM, international Convention Centre,

Birmingham, B1 2EA

Payment date for proposed 2007/08
final dividend

Announcement date for 2008/09 interim results

1 August 2008

27 Novermber 2008

16 January 2009 Payment date for proposed 2008/09

interim dwidend
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Information for shareholders continued

Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2008 Number

Number of % of of shares
Category shargholders shareholders {mithons} of shares
Individual and joint accounts 70,452 8207 2600 1109
Other* 6,068 793 208 60 8891
Total 76,520 100 00 234 60 10000

Number

Number of % of of shares
Size of Holding shareholders shareholders {mitlions} of shares
1-499 57,195 7474 1117 476
500-999 13,280 17 3% 934 398
1,000-4,999 5,063 662 853 364
5.000-9,999 266 G35 181 077
10,000-49,999 327 043 783 334
50,000-99,999 125 gle 867 369
QOver 100,000 264 035 18725 7982

Total

76,520 100 00 234 60 10000

*includes insurance companies, nominee cornpanies, banks pension funds, other corporate bodies, imited and public hmited companies

Useful historical information

Share capital reorgamsation - August 1997

On 11 August 1997, the company's share capital was reorganised and
then consolidated whereby, for every 20 existing ordinary shares of

£1 00 each, shareholders received 19 new ordinary shares of 65%:p
each and 20 B shares of 38p each

At the Annual General Meeting on 1 August 2000, shareholders resolved
to cancel the B shares and, following an application to the Courts, the
caprtal of the company was reduced and the B shares were cancelled
with effect from 1 November 2000

Information on the capital gains treatment of both events is avallable
from the Investor Centre pages at www severntrent com
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Demerger of Biffa Plc, return of capital by payment of a special
dividend and consclidation of Severn Trent Plc shares ~ October 2006
On 9 October 2006 the dermerger of Biffa Plc was completed and, for
each existing Severn Trent Plc share of 65%sp each held at the Record
Time of 6 00pm ¢n friday 6 October 2006, shareholders in the
company received

@ one Biffa Plc share of 10p each, and
® 2 special dvidend of 165p

At the same time as the demerger, every three Severn Trent Pi¢ shares
of 65%sp each were consolidated into two new Severn Trent Ple shares
of 37%sp each

The special dividend was paid on 20 Qctober 2006 At the same time,
share certificates for the new Severn Trent Plc shares and the Biffa Ple
shares were sent to shareholders
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